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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Call to order the Board of Directors of

·3· ·the Louisiana Economic Development Corporation.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Rollcall, please.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. A.J. Roy.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Alden Andre.

11· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

12· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Louis Reine.

14· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

15· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Charles Jackson.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Ms. Mandi Mitchell.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

23· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Cal Simpson.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Nittin Kamath.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. KAMATH:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Sue Durand.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Here.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Kimberly Johnson.

12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

13· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Todd McDonald.

15· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

16· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:

17· · · · · · · · · ·We have a quorum.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· We have a quorum.· We do

20· ·have a quorum.

21· · · · · · · · · ·And welcome, everyone, to our December

22· ·meeting.· I'll ask everyone to please silence your cell

23· ·phone.

24· · · · · · · · · ·The first order of business is the

25· ·presentation of the minutes of the LEDC Board meeting of
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·1· ·July 27th.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to approve as presented; second.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?

·4· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

·7· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

10· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection, so ordered.

13· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business is the Screening

14· ·Committee minutes, September the 28th.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Move to accept.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to accept as presented.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

23· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?

24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

·2· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· House can bring us up to

·9· ·speed on two in-house approvals.

10· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Marissa Doin.· I have one

13· ·loan update for y'all today:· Vinh Loi Corporation.

14· ·It's a holding company that was established this year,

15· ·2018, created to purchase a building for an auto repair

16· ·shop.· There are two equal owners, Kenneth Duong and

17· ·Dennis Dang.

18· · · · · · · · · ·This one was brought to us by United

19· ·Community Bank.· They requested a 75 percent LED

20· ·guaranty for a total loan of $157,500 for 60 months.

21· · · · · · · · · ·As a result of the loan, Vinh Loi

22· ·Corporation will be creating two full-time jobs and

23· ·retaining two jobs.· The funds will be used to purchase

24· ·a second location here in Baton Rouge.· The building

25· ·will be upgraded with personal funds of the owners.· It
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·1· ·will also be backed by real estate of the building

·2· ·valued at 210,000.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Sales have been continually consistent,

·4· ·and the business is profitable.· And this was approved

·5· ·by staff in October.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?

·7· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·No.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. PETE:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· I have another loan that

12· ·was approved, CMED Corporation.

13· · · · · · · · · ·CMED Corporation's loan guaranty

14· ·application was presented to us by Farmer's State Bank.

15· ·It was from the acquisition of an existing oil field

16· ·supply company, Production Rental & Supply, which was

17· ·found in 2003.· The company was located in Lafayette,

18· ·Louisiana.· PRS was a well-known oil field company in

19· ·its earliest days and remained open for 15 years.· PRS

20· ·targeted drilling, production and completion market.

21· ·PRS's clientele included Baker Hughes, Cardinal Services

22· ·and Pioneer Wireline.· PRS offered a full range of

23· ·safety supplies, hardware, power tools and other

24· ·supplies for the oil field industry.· The owner had

25· ·decided to sell the company due to extenuating
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·1· ·circumstances.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·CMED Corporation was started by Ms. Edna

·3· ·Sue Turner, David Billeaud, Herbert Turner and Coby

·4· ·Bernard.· The management team has an extensive

·5· ·background in the oil field tool supply industry.· Edna

·6· ·and Herbert Turner have been the owners and operators of

·7· ·Bulldog Services, LLC, an oil field services company in

·8· ·Lafayette, Louisiana since 2012.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Farmer's State Bank is structuring the

10· ·loan for a $200,000 term loan.· The loan guaranty

11· ·request was for 75 percent for three years.· The loan

12· ·was secured by the inventory and equipment and further

13· ·supported by the unlimited guarantees of the owners.

14· · · · · · · · · ·The approval of this loan created three

15· ·new jobs and retained one job, and the standard

16· ·contingencies are in place.

17· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?

18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

20· · · · · · · · · ·The next order of business is the EDAP

21· ·program that's unsponsored, Champion Home Builders,

22· ·Incorporated.

23· · · · · · · · · ·Morning, gentlemen.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Stanley Bienemy representing staff
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·1· ·today, I have with me Mr. Tom Stoneburner representing

·2· ·Champion Home Builders, LLC (sic).· This is an

·3· ·unsponsored EDAP award for payroll credit in the amount

·4· ·requested of $500,000.· The company will be located in

·5· ·Vernon Parish located at 350 Industrial Park Road in

·6· ·Leesville, Louisiana.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·The company is the leading manufacturer

·8· ·of manufactured homes, modular homes as well as mobile

·9· ·homes.· The job performance goals of the company has

10· ·agreed to are to maintain 200 new jobs with an annual

11· ·payroll of $8.2-million.· All of these jobs and payroll

12· ·must be remain during the life of the contract.

13· · · · · · · · · ·Vernon Parish's unemployment rate was

14· ·6.4 percent as of September 2018, compared to the state

15· ·rate of 5 percent for the same time period.· The per

16· ·capita income for Vernon Parish in 2016 was $38,929

17· ·compared to a state per capita income of $42,298.

18· · · · · · · · · ·The projected economic benefit to the

19· ·state is a projected state revenue of $4,229,064, minus

20· ·the $500,000 EDAP, and $3,314,064 for Quality Jobs, an

21· ·estimation of over 10 years, which would give the state

22· ·a net revenue of $415,000.

23· · · · · · · · · ·The project will represent a

24· ·$1.3-million investment in the area by Champion, and the

25· ·company will renovate two existing buildings totaling
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·1· ·246,000 square feet in the Leesville Northside

·2· ·Industrial park.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·The EDAP funds will be used to purchase

·4· ·capital equipment, which can be used -- (inaudible) --,

·5· ·and the company also plans to bring 200 new direct jobs

·6· ·with an annual salary of 35,000 plus benefits.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Staff recommends approval of this

·8· ·project as an unsponsored EDAP payroll credit award with

·9· ·our basic contingencies put in place as well as a

10· ·first-position lien on equipment or equivalent

11· ·collateral sufficient to reasonably secure payments that

12· ·will become due.· The company has agreed to create and

13· ·maintain 200 jobs to maintain through the life of the

14· ·contract with the above-state payroll through 2028.· The

15· ·capital investment by Champion Home Builders will be

16· ·$1.3-million by December 31st, 2019.

17· · · · · · · · · ·And we'll turn it over to Mr.

18· ·Stoneburner to speak a little bit about the project.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:

20· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· My name is Tom Stoneburner.

21· ·I will be the General Manager of the operation in

22· ·Leesville, and I represent Skyline and Champion in this

23· ·matter here today.

24· · · · · · · · · ·And just to give you a little quick

25· ·detail about the company, we do build manufactured
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·1· ·housing, and we can build anything from a small section,

·2· ·double section up to a hotel or an apartment complex.

·3· ·We did build two motels/hotels in Leesville out by the

·4· ·gate at Fort Polk, so we do have that ability as a

·5· ·company.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Our beginning product we will build in

·7· ·Leesville will be the single section, doublewide section

·8· ·because that's what we do to train our employees.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·The company has 5,500 employees and 28

10· ·factories, so this will be number 29.· Upon the

11· ·approval, I'm ready to go.· There will be a construction

12· ·phase at the factory lasting about 90 days, and in that

13· ·90 days, I'll hire 20 to 25 employees to do the

14· ·construction work to retrofit buildings so that the

15· ·construction processes can begin about April.

16· · · · · · · · · ·I'll bring in approximately 50 employees

17· ·at the beginning, and should start hiring and training

18· ·them in late February, first of March so that we can

19· ·train them how to do the jobs.· And quality is very

20· ·important in our factories because these are homes and

21· ·we do some extreme.· I will raise production.· I will

22· ·expect employment to be somewhere near 100 by the end of

23· ·the year as we continue these training processes and

24· ·ramp up production with the target of about 200

25· ·employees, seven to eight homes a day, somewhere in four
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·1· ·months.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·That's kind of the synopsis.· What kind

·3· ·of restricts that from even going faster is that we have

·4· ·to develop our product, what type of houses we will

·5· ·build.· Predominantly we will sell in Louisiana.· Our

·6· ·employees will predominantly come from Louisiana, and so

·7· ·we have to do all of this training on our product and

·8· ·our distribution to retailers here in Louisiana.· So

·9· ·it's takes about 24 months to get that going.

10· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions for me?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Questions or comments?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Have y'all started any process of

15· ·looking -- that seems like a significant amount of

16· ·employees in a relatively small community to find that

17· ·many employees.· Do you foresee that being a problem?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:

19· · · · · · · · · ·I don't.· I have been on the job for

20· ·about two weeks, and I did -- I'm moving here from

21· ·Nashville, Tennessee, so I've kind of met a lot of

22· ·people, talked with a lot of people.· We did have a job

23· ·fair in Leesville about a year ago to check the

24· ·employment numbers, and it looked very positive.· And

25· ·from around town, I am overwhelmed by people wanting to
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·1· ·come to work.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·What's the nature of the equipment that

·4· ·we're liening against?· Is it built-in for a special

·5· ·purpose or being acquired?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·It will be special purpose, but it won't

·8· ·be industry specific, but it will be large capital

·9· ·equipment.· I looked on the equipment list, and there

10· ·was some large welding materials, large moving materials

11· ·for the modular pieces of it.· So while it will be

12· ·specialized, it won't be industry specific.· It can be

13· ·used for multiple industries.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Can you design for the local market?

16· ·You don't use the same sorts of designs that are being

17· ·manufactured elsewhere?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:

19· · · · · · · · · ·We will take a look at those designs

20· ·elsewhere and make sure that they do fit into this

21· ·market.· The housing market is regional, but we will

22· ·start with what we have on the board already and fit

23· ·that.

24· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

25· · · · · · · · · ·And I guess if you're selling primarily
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·1· ·in Louisiana, you're comfortable that you've got a

·2· ·product that -- or you'll be able to design a product

·3· ·that will be fairly effective?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Prior to coming to Leesville, I was

·6· ·running the factory in Dresden, Tennessee selling into

·7· ·Louisiana, so I'm pretty familiar with what product

·8· ·sells here.· I just have to come down and not copy what

·9· ·another factory has been doing and look at price points

10· ·and factory-owned in high volume in Louisiana.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Other questions?

15· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Actually, my question had been asked, so

17· ·at the appropriate time, I would like to move favorable.

18· ·This project will bring 200 jobs to a region in our

19· ·state that has, for a number of years, carried an

20· ·unemployment rate that has been higher than the state's

21· ·average unemployment rates, so these are sorely-needed

22· ·jobs in the western portion of our state.

23· · · · · · · · · ·And I'd like to commend the work that

24· ·has been done on this project to present to the Board

25· ·not just the benefit to the company, but the benefit to
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·1· ·the state through the economic impact of the project

·2· ·along with the jobs for this community.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·So at the appropriate time, I would like

·4· ·to move favorable.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· We'll take that as a motion

·7· ·now.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Move to accept.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Second?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

16· · · · · · · · · ·Any other discussion?

17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

20· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

23· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations.· Please keep us posted,

·2· ·and we wish you the best.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, sir.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public along those

·7· ·lines?

·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

11· · · · · · · · · ·We have a modification of an EDAP award,

12· ·Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies, Inc.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning again.· Stanley Bienemy

15· ·representing staff today.· We have an EDAP modification

16· ·request to increase the approved and unsponsored EDAP in

17· ·the amount of 250,000 that was previously approved

18· ·about.

19· · · · · · · · · ·Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies was

20· ·originally approved on June 22nd, 2018 by this Board,

21· ·and the company was to be located at the Michoud

22· ·Assembly Facility in Orleans Parish.· Unfortunately,

23· ·NASA and Advanced Sinter were unable to come to terms

24· ·which would meet both companies' requirements and

25· ·timelines.· Advanced Sinter was proactive and found an
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·1· ·alternate site located in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Nothing materially changed about the

·3· ·project except the location and the timeline for the job

·4· ·requirements due to the delay because of the site.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Job performance goals that the company

·6· ·has agreed to will stay the same.· They will maintain 15

·7· ·new jobs with a -- create and maintain 15 new jobs and

·8· ·an annual payroll of 800,000 with a two percent annual

·9· ·increase.· All of these jobs and payroll must be

10· ·maintained during the life of the contract.

11· · · · · · · · · ·St. Tammany Parish's unemployment rate

12· ·as of September 2018 was 4.4 percent to the state's

13· ·average of 5 percent for the same time period.· The per

14· ·capita income for St. Tammany Parish for 2016 was

15· ·$52,109 as compared to the state per capita income for

16· ·the same time period of 42,298.

17· · · · · · · · · ·The projected economic benefits to the

18· ·state with the new site would be a state revenue of

19· ·$1,324,000 minus the $250,000 for the EDAP and $515,000

20· ·for Quality Jobs, which would give us an approximate

21· ·state revenue of $588,000.

22· · · · · · · · · ·Staff recommends approval of the project

23· ·modifications for the unsponsored EDAP for payroll

24· ·credit with our basic contingencies that we normally

25· ·have with a two percent annual increase of payroll, also
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·1· ·keeping the original approval date of June 22nd, 2018,

·2· ·while moving the start performance period to 2019.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·The total capital investment by Advanced

·4· ·Sinter will be $5-million by December 31st, 2019.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·And I'll turn it over to Rudolph Von

·6· ·Liechtenstein, and he will give you a little bit more

·7· ·detail about where the project is now.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·We'd like to start by thanking you once

10· ·again for this application.· So this is an exciting

11· ·moment for us, for Sinter Metal Technologies, which was

12· ·founded more than 50 years ago.· It's, as its name might

13· ·imply, a leading global player in the sinter technology.

14· ·Put simply, that's called technology.

15· · · · · · · · · ·For the love of technologies and

16· ·solutions and applications that are proprietary, and

17· ·having Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies leads to

18· ·better serve the U.S. market out of Louisiana is, of

19· ·course, a good choice.· We see from the tests that we

20· ·studied, this project is effectively creating a secure,

21· ·dual-sourcing for high-tech applications soft and

22· ·critical to our products.

23· · · · · · · · · ·This project is also very exciting

24· ·because of its nature.· The application (inaudible) of

25· ·the spectrum.· Additionally, Advanced Sinter Metal
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·1· ·Technologies' Slidell facility is to be highly

·2· ·automated, among other things, high-tech, automated

·3· ·quality control systems.

·4· · · · · · · · · ·I'd like, once again, to emphasize that

·5· ·despite the location and the schedule being pushed back,

·6· ·the project essentially remains the same.· The plans,

·7· ·stakeholders and commitments remain unchanged.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·We'd also like the share some of the

·9· ·recent and latest developments.· So at the beginning of

10· ·November, Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies secured the

11· ·location of production in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.

12· ·As of now, most of the pieces of equipment required to

13· ·start industry production of our metal parts have been

14· ·assembled in that facility.· Advanced Sinter Metal

15· ·Technology plans to start production in the end of

16· ·January 2019, at which time you are kindly and cordially

17· ·invited.

18· · · · · · · · · ·And as a final point, we entered into an

19· ·extending with LSU through a support letter for a

20· ·project to further confirmation to begin manufacturing

21· ·in Louisiana.· The project, with your involvement, will

22· ·come to fruition.· So, again, this is an exciting

23· ·project for us, and despite some unforeseen change, we

24· ·are grateful for the hospitality and the warm welcome

25· ·Louisiana has given to this project.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· If you have any questions.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Questions or comments?

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·No questions for me.· I just wanted to

·6· ·confirm my understanding that the only change is the

·7· ·start time of the project and the actual physical

·8· ·location.· Everything else that had been approved in

·9· ·June remains the same?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:

11· · · · · · · · · ·That is correct.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

15· · · · · · · · · ·And at this point, you're saying that

16· ·there's actually equipment that has already been

17· ·installed and the work has started?· I guess when we

18· ·approved it in June, that work had not yet started.

19· · · · · · · · · ·I guess I kind of had the understanding

20· ·in June that you were already set to go in at the

21· ·Michoud Facility.· That seemed kind of surprising to see

22· ·that that changed.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

24· · · · · · · · · ·It was indeed.· At the end of it, we was

25· ·unable to get commitment in a timely manner, and while
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·1· ·for all projected, Michoud costs and energy costs, and

·2· ·so at the end, we're lucky enough to find a beautiful

·3· ·spot in Slidell to move forward in a timely manner.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· So you're -- how far is the

·6· ·schedule slipped then?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·So we had a new official announcement at

·9· ·the Michoud the first of November last year, and the

10· ·understanding at the time was we could move in first

11· ·quarter of 2018.· Well, right now, production we think

12· ·will start at the end of January 2019, so it slipped one

13· ·year.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Due to one year of their time

16· ·commitments sliding back, we've had to move back the job

17· ·marker.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions or comments?

22· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

23· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Move to approve.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Motion for approval as presented.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

·6· · · · · · · · · ·Any other discussion?

·7· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public?

10· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none all in favor, "aye."

13· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

15· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

16· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

19· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Merci.· Bonne chance.· I think that's

24· ·correct.

25· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Next order of business is
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·1· ·the SSBCI program, Tactical Directional Drilling.

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. PETE:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Today we have Mr. Stacy

·5· ·Quebodeaux, Tony Howard and Gerard Labat today to

·6· ·present Tactical Drilling.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Farmer's State Bank has requested a loan

·8· ·guaranty for Tactical Directional Drilling.· Tactical

·9· ·Directional Drilling is a startup company that will be

10· ·owned by Mr. Anthony Howard, Stacy Quebodeaux and Chad

11· ·Walker.· It will provide horizontal directional drilling

12· ·services to gas, oil and chemical refineries and

13· ·manufacturing facilities, utility companies and pipeline

14· ·companies.· Tactical Directional Drilling will provide a

15· ·better alternative to open trenching for laying pipe

16· ·horizontally.

17· · · · · · · · · ·The company will specialize in smaller

18· ·jobs that competitors typically turn down due to the

19· ·significant overhead involved.· This company will pursue

20· ·the smaller drilling jobs.· The management is

21· ·experienced with Mr. Howard having 11 years with

22· ·horizontal directional drilling and civil construction,

23· ·Mr. Quebodeaux having 30 years in civil construction and

24· ·Mr. Walker having 10 years in horizontal directional

25· ·drilling.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Tactical will focus on the Gulf Coast

·2· ·area from Mississippi to Texas.· With the oil industry

·3· ·running multiple pipelines throughout the south,

·4· ·directional drilling is in high demand.· The drillers

·5· ·who will work with tactical have a great reputation in

·6· ·this industry and established industry contacts.

·7· ·Tactical will provide underground pipe installation for

·8· ·roadways, pipeline, wetlands, drainage and utility

·9· ·lines.

10· · · · · · · · · ·The loan structure is an $826,000 loan

11· ·backed by equipment value at $1,032,025.· The owners

12· ·have made a significant investment.· It is a 10-year

13· ·loan with an involvement of LEDC guaranty for five

14· ·years.

15· · · · · · · · · ·Our standard contingencies are in place.

16· ·Staff recommends approval for this application due to

17· ·the extensive experience of management and significant

18· ·investment by the owners, and the approval of this loan

19· ·will result in the creation of three jobs.

20· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Quebodeaux and Mr. Howard can

21· ·further elaborate on their company and if you have any

22· ·questions.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Questions or comments so far?

25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Gentlemen, do you have something you'd

·3· ·like to add?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·The one particular thing I'd really like

·6· ·to add is we have a letter with intent of work that is

·7· ·coming up, and actually he called us this morning on the

·8· ·way over here to wish us luck hoping that everything

·9· ·goes well here because he's actually looking at a job

10· ·right now in West Texas that we could probably start

11· ·sometime in the middle -- first to middle part of

12· ·February.· So the outlook is very, very promising right

13· ·now.· There's lots of work supposedly fixing to take

14· ·place in North Louisiana.· We just waiting to get a shot

15· ·at a piece of the pie, I guess I'd say.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. PORTER:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Can the gentleman introduce himself,

18· ·please.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Tony Howard.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Questions, comments?

23· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Do you send a local team or do you hire

25· ·at location, if you're in West Texas, for example?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·No, sir.· It's going to be us.· Wherever

·3· ·our equipment goes, we go.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Does the price and recent reduction in

·6· ·the crude oil affect y'all's business models?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·No, sir.· The price of crude oil gas

·9· ·really has no affect on what it takes for us to do our

10· ·job.· It can fluctuate and go down, but it has no

11· ·overall bearing on what we have to do.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. QUEBODEAUX:

13· · · · · · · · · ·A lot of jobs coming in is not just new

14· ·pipeline.· It's the replacing of the old existing

15· ·pipelines.· So, I mean, they have -- the oil has to flow

16· ·no what matter what the price is.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Do you anticipate that most of your

19· ·business will be out of state?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:

21· · · · · · · · · ·No, sir.· It can be in Louisiana just as

22· ·much as it could be in Texas.

23· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

24· · · · · · · · · ·I was just going to add, it's always

25· ·good to bring in that new dollar, so we like when you go
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·1· ·to work out of state and bring that revenue back here.

·2· ·So that's not a bad thing.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. QUEBODEAUX:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·It's just that it will be the locals

·5· ·that -- it's going to be Louisiana people that work for.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·That's the key.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. QUEBODEAUX:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Exactly.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions or comments?

12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

14· · · · · · · · · ·I would just like to move favorable at

15· ·the appropriate time.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

17· · · · · · · · · ·Motion for approval as presented.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

24· · · · · · · · · ·Any other discussion?

25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·2· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

·3· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations, gentlemen.· Please keep

10· ·us posted on the future and your successes.

11· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business, the Treasurer's

12· ·Report.· Ms. Villa.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Ann Villa, Undersecretary

15· ·for Louisiana Economic Development.· I'll present to you

16· ·the Secretary Treasurer's Report for December 10th,

17· ·2018, Fiscal Year 2019.

18· · · · · · · · · ·So as of today, the summary you have in

19· ·front of you shows our FY '19 budget for all programs as

20· ·$9,313,938.· And we have approved for just expenditures

21· ·for projects of $2,463,224.· And then we had the Board

22· ·approval of the pending projects of 654,875, which left

23· ·us balance of $6,195,839.· And we currently have a

24· ·million dollars in projects that are under review, which

25· ·gives us a projected yearend balance of $5,195,839.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·And the detail behind that is our Small

·2· ·Business -- State Small Business Credit Initiative

·3· ·Program, which has $452,224 projects that have been

·4· ·approved this year, and we have the Tactical Drilling

·5· ·that was just approved of 154,875, so we currently have

·6· ·a balance expected in that program of $1,295,698.· And

·7· ·we do still have our $190,000 Loan Assistance Program,

·8· ·which we're not projecting any projects, so we have

·9· ·those two together, which would give us a balance of

10· ·$1,485,698 that's expected at the end of the year.

11· · · · · · · · · ·And then for our Capital Outlay

12· ·Appropriation that we have for our Economic Development

13· ·Award Program, we have our budget for that is $7,221,141

14· ·for FY '19, and then we have projects that's been

15· ·approved for the EDAP Program of $1,561,000, and then in

16· ·our EDRED Program, we have projects of 450,000.

17· · · · · · · · · ·We have pending the Board approval is

18· ·the Champion Home Builders, which you just approved of

19· ·500,000, which would leave us a balance for both EDAP

20· ·and EDRED of $4,710,141.· And then we have a million

21· ·dollar project that's under review, which would give us

22· ·a yearend balance of $3,710,141 for both the EDAP and

23· ·the EDRED.

24· · · · · · · · · ·And then if you go to the next page, the

25· ·final page, our Projected Fund Balance for FY '19 that's
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·1· ·available for use is $14,500 -- the expected fund

·2· ·balance available is $14,947,976, and our expenditures

·3· ·are expected at $12,027,483, which would leave a balance

·4· ·projected of $2,920,493.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·If you have any questions on any of the

·6· ·reports.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Just one, Studio Network Project

·9· ·canceled?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· That was a project that came

12· ·before the Board back in --

13· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

14· · · · · · · · · ·That was the one in New Orleans?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

16· · · · · · · · · ·July.

17· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.· That was old Bally's Casino.

18· ·The project is not going forward with the bank.· They

19· ·decided to pull the loan due to some issue beyond the

20· ·bank's control and beyond our control.· It was separate

21· ·and aside from this particular project, so the bank

22· ·decided to pull it, and without a closing, we have no

23· ·guaranty at that point, so the money has now rolled back

24· ·into the availability for new loans for SSBCI.

25· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· And do we usually get notice

·2· ·when they cancel like that or do they just show up in

·3· ·the report?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Oh, yeah, we get notice pretty quickly.

·6· ·The bank, we spoke with the bank, and then I think in

·7· ·less than 24 hours after they made their decision, we

·8· ·got an official notice from them in writing that they

·9· ·were not going to pursue this loan any further.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

11· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

13· · · · · · · · · ·If you look back over the last year,

14· ·what do we think we might do in terms of the number of

15· ·projects and scope of projects going into the next year?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

17· · · · · · · · · ·For the Loan Guaranty Program?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

19· · · · · · · · · ·Well, in general.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

21· · · · · · · · · ·Well, in general, as far as the Loan

22· ·Guaranty Program, we hate losing the Network Lakefront

23· ·project because that would put our available SSBCI down

24· ·to under that million dollar mark, which we've been

25· ·trying to get there.· We do have some other potential
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·1· ·projects in the pipeline that we are hoping will come

·2· ·through.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·So we've got just under 1.3 million now

·4· ·left in SSBCI, which we have used up all of the admin

·5· ·expenses associated with that, so that is the last bit

·6· ·of dollars we have from that federal program.

·7· · · · · · · · · ·As far as EDAPs, I think we just got a

·8· ·whole batch of --

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

10· · · · · · · · · ·We have a lot in the pipeline that's not

11· ·been announced yet, so, you know, we're encouraged by

12· ·the traction that we have on that front as well.· So I

13· ·think we've seen this past year the number of EDAPs

14· ·increase and more come in front of the Board than we had

15· ·in previous, and I just -- I expect that to kind of

16· ·continue because we've seen that in the pipeline

17· ·projects.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

19· · · · · · · · · ·EDAPs are a little more difficult to

20· ·predict because there's a lot of different variables

21· ·involved.

22· · · · · · · · · ·With the loans, it's more directly tied

23· ·with our efforts getting out in the community and

24· ·keeping that awareness up within the community, also

25· ·with our partners across the state.· And we've been very
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·1· ·successful in the past year in continuing to increase

·2· ·those efforts going forward to branch out beyond the

·3· ·lending community and work more on the lines of the

·4· ·ground level with our Chambers of Commerce and more

·5· ·organizations in the local communities and a regional

·6· ·focus.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·How many SSBCI dollars have recycled?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

10· · · · · · · · · ·Have recycled?· It's over -- it's

11· ·definitely over 4-million.· I was looking at that number

12· ·last week, and it's definitely over 4-million that have

13· ·actually retoured.· I want to say it's closer to 5.· We

14· ·put a little over 8-million into the Guaranty Program,

15· ·and over half of it has definitely retoured and have

16· ·come back.

17· · · · · · · · · ·We've got it kind of just sitting there

18· ·in a holding pattern until we use up the rest of this

19· ·1.295, so it's there.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

21· · · · · · · · · ·But it's there for use once we exhaust

22· ·what we have?

23· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.

25· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·We didn't have as much return back for

·2· ·2018 as we had for 2017, but the prospects for 2019 to

·3· ·come back with recycled dollars is very well.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Any other questions, comments?

·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

·9· ·accept the Treasurer's report.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

11· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Motion and second.

16· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor, "aye."

17· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

19· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

23· · · · · · · · · ·The Accountant's report.· Good morning.

24· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Hello.· I'm Crystal
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·1· ·Dalgo.· The LEDC Accountant Status Report that I'm

·2· ·presenting is as of November 30th, 2018.

·3· · · · · · · · · ·The Direct Loan Portfolio is at zero

·4· ·doctors as the Golf Balls loan was paid off in May of

·5· ·2018.

·6· · · · · · · ·For EDAP Loan Portfolio, there's one loan,

·7· ·which is Town of Colfax, and it totals $345,431.· They

·8· ·made their once-a-year payment in October.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·The Guaranteed Loan Portfolio is at zero

10· ·dollars.· Deep Hole Drilling was paid off in December

11· ·2017.

12· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for Direct Loan Losses is

13· ·set at 15 percent, but it totals zero as the direct loan

14· ·was paid off in May.· The allowance for the EDAP Loan

15· ·Losses is set at 15 percent and totals $51,815.· And the

16· ·allowance for the Guaranteed Loan Losses is set at 18

17· ·percent and totals zero dollars, but the guaranty loan

18· ·was paid off in December.

19· · · · · · · · · ·So the SSBCI Guaranty Loan Portfolio,

20· ·for it we have 21 loans and it's totaling $6,397,115 as

21· ·of November 30th.· And as of November 30th, we have two

22· ·of the loans, C. Booty Enterprises and Reed's Lawn Care

23· ·are 30 days late and Acadian Cypress is reporting at 60

24· ·days late.

25· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed Loan
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·1· ·Losses is set at 18 percent for the current amounts, and

·2· ·then for past due amounts, they reflect between 25 and

·3· ·100 percent.· As of November 30th, the allowance totals

·4· ·$1,458,773, and reflects at 22.8 percent.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·And that concludes my report.· Are there

·6· ·any questions?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Reed's Lawn Care, is that one that we

·9· ·just approved in the last few months or was that an

10· ·older one?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

12· · · · · · · · · ·That was one approved last fiscal year.

13· ·I believe it was last fiscal year we did it.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

15· · · · · · · · · ·That's fairly recent, a little over a

16· ·year.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

18· · · · · · · · · ·A little over a year.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· That's a different lawn care, I'm

21· ·thinking.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

23· · · · · · · · · ·The C. Booty Enterprises, it's just a

24· ·notorious late payer since the beginning of the loan.

25· ·They're paying, but they're paying late.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·We did check on Reed's as well, and

·2· ·matter of fact, after this was put together, I think

·3· ·this was at the end of November, they paid December 4th,

·4· ·the day we actually called, they had just made their

·5· ·payment.· So they're caught up.· This is just --

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·I thought we approved a lawn care

·8· ·earlier.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

10· · · · · · · · · ·It was discussed at one of the other

11· ·meetings over the summer, so that could be where you're

12· ·recalling it from.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

14· · · · · · · · · ·One question before you go, are we

15· ·comfortable with our calculations or percentages?· You

16· ·know, we adjusted things, what, a year or two back, time

17· ·flies, but when you historically evaluate things based

18· ·on your historic numbers, which we have some of, but

19· ·some of the programs -- it is SSBCI is relatively new?

20· ·Are we comfortable with your calculation or percentage

21· ·calculations, et cetera, across the board?

22· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

23· · · · · · · · · ·Referring to the reduction in collateral

24· ·requirement percentage?

25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Well, the reserve.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Reserve.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

·5· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· I think we are still comfortable

·6· ·with those numbers.· We still are in a position where

·7· ·we've not had a default yet.· Those that are past due,

·8· ·we are working with the banks to make sure that they're

·9· ·working with the -- or having a workout plan, and I

10· ·think Acadian Cypress and Hardwood is one of the ones

11· ·that we are really looking at waiting for them to give

12· ·us a workout plan.· But I think with the dollar amount

13· ·that we've already set aside, at this time, we feel

14· ·they're sufficient.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

16· · · · · · · · · ·We constantly think about it, and I

17· ·would guess with the reserve, should we and whether or

18· ·not it's adequate.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

20· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · · · ·I'll entertain a motion to accept the

24· ·Accountant's Report.

25· · · · · · · · · ·Motion and second.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor, "aye."

·2· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·4· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."

·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·7· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

·9· · · · · · · · · ·I was just going to state, I think at

10· ·the next Board meeting, shouldn't we expect to hear from

11· ·the accountant and the valuation change?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Yeah.· I think we have to do our

14· ·closeout sometime between now and as soon as possible.

15· ·It looks like it will probably be ready for February.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

17· · · · · · · · · ·February.· Okay.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

19· · · · · · · · · ·I believe all of you got a copy.  I

20· ·think we e-mailed it several times with the 2019 date.

21· ·Just as FYI and reminder, we are moving the Board dates

22· ·up two weeks to the second Thursday of every month.· So

23· ·the first one in 2019 would be the 10th of January.· So

24· ·it is coinciding with this Board meeting fairly well.  I

25· ·think exactly five weeks, but given that there's some
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·1· ·major holidays in the middle of all of that, it's a

·2· ·little too early to tell if we'll have a Board meeting

·3· ·or not or have a project to bring before the Board.

·4· ·We're hoping to, but it will probably be another week or

·5· ·so before we know for sure if we have.· If not, it will

·6· ·be the February Board, and we will probably have our --

·7· ·we have to do our new election of officers at the first

·8· ·annual meeting every year, as well as if those reports

·9· ·are ready from the legislature and from Chaffe report.

10· ·We'll have a Finance Committee meeting before prior to

11· ·that first Board.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

13· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

15· · · · · · · · · ·Then we'll have yearend audited

16· ·financial statements presented to the Board as well.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:

20· · · · · · · · · ·For FY '19.· It takes a little while.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Ms. Mitchell, the President's

23· ·Report.

24· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

25· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· Good morning, everyone.· I will be
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·1· ·as brief as possible.· So I'll share with you a little

·2· ·bit about our recent project wins, and it's been a while

·3· ·since we've met, so I have a few from October that I'll

·4· ·share with you.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·In October, the Governor and Ternium

·6· ·U.S.A. announced a $14.7-million expansion at the Port

·7· ·of Caddo-Bossier.· That company is retaining 150 jobs,

·8· ·and as a result of that project, there will be 22 direct

·9· ·and indirect jobs added to the community.· That is a win

10· ·for our foreign direct investment team.· Ternium is a

11· ·Latin America steel company, and we're happy to have

12· ·them in Caddo-Bossier.

13· · · · · · · · · ·In November, we had quite a few project

14· ·wins that I want to share with you.· Fuji Vegetable Oil

15· ·broke ground in Jefferson Parish on their $70-million

16· ·project, which will bring to our state 87 new permanent

17· ·jobs and 200 construction jobs.

18· · · · · · · · · ·LM Wind Power established a Technology

19· ·Center for the Americas in New Orleans.· This is GE

20· ·Renewable Energy Company, and they will be retaining 45

21· ·jobs and creating 100 new direct jobs at the Michoud

22· ·Assembly Facility.

23· · · · · · · ·Catamaran Solutions will be creating 120 new

24· ·jobs in Minden, a huge win for us in North Louisiana.

25· ·We're constantly striving to bring new jobs to North
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·1· ·Louisiana areas as well as rural areas where the

·2· ·unemployment rate tends to trend higher than the state's

·3· ·average unemployment.· So that was a significant win for

·4· ·us in Minden, Louisiana.

·5· · · · · · · · · ·And Wanhua announced the selection of

·6· ·its site in St. James Parish for a $1.25-billion

·7· ·chemical project -- chemical complex.· Sorry.· That's

·8· ·going to create over 1,200 new direct and indirect jobs.

·9· · · · · · · · · ·And then lastly, we always laud the

10· ·small projects as well, so I was -- I had the pleasure

11· ·of being on hand for the Riceland Crawfish announcement.

12· ·They broke ground on a $3-million expansion of their

13· ·facility over in Eunice, Louisiana.· The project's going

14· ·to retain 50 jobs and create 10 new jobs in Acadiana.

15· ·So that was another exciting win for us.· We celebrate

16· ·the large, medium and small projects.

17· · · · · · · · · ·So also want to share with you from a

18· ·rankings perspective, Louisiana earned our ninth

19· ·consecutive Top 10 spot among the Best Business

20· ·Climates, and this ranking is conducted by Site

21· ·Selection Magazine, the leading industry publication for

22· ·site selectors and corporate executives, so we're happy

23· ·to remain in our Top 10 ranking from that matrix.

24· · · · · · · · · ·And then also I want to share with you

25· ·that LED earned its certification as an accredited
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·1· ·economic development organization, the only state in the

·2· ·country to have that designation.· Mostly you'll see

·3· ·your regional organization communities competing for

·4· ·that, but we felt at the state level that we should

·5· ·compete for it, and we did win that certification.· And

·6· ·since then, several other states are now looking at

·7· ·trying to replicate what we have done.

·8· · · · · · · · · ·And then I also want to share with you

·9· ·LED, BRAC, the Baton Rouge Area Chamber, and LSU will

10· ·sponsor an entrepreneurship academy which will help

11· ·train capital region high school students to be

12· ·interested in entrepreneurship and be confident business

13· ·owners.

14· · · · · · · · · ·Lastly, Secretary Pierson asked me to

15· ·relay to you his gratitude and seasons greetings.

16· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, Mandi.

19· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or comments?

20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.· Good news.

23· · · · · · · · · ·Any other business?

24· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:

25· · · · · · · · · ·No other business, but one announcement
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·1· ·or reminder, the ethics training that's due for all

·2· ·Board members, you will receive an e-mail from me

·3· ·probably later on today or tomorrow.· The deadline is

·4· ·December 31st, so that has to be completed.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

·6· · · · · · · · · ·And it's fun.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

·8· · · · · · · · · ·Looking forward to it.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:

10· · · · · · · · · ·It can be done between now and the 31st?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

12· · · · · · · · · ·You can do it online?

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· Yes.· Really cool, new videos.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

16· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Being that everyone will rush out

17· ·to go conduct that training, I'll entertain a motion to

18· ·adjourn.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:

20· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:

22· · · · · · · · · ·Second.

23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:

24· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to adjourn, second.

25· · · · · · · · · ·Happy holidays to everyone.· See you
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·1· ·soon.· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:

·3· · · · · · · · · ·Happy holidays, everyone.

·4· · · · · · · ·(Meeting concludes at 10:16 a.m.)
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·3· ·Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the
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·5· ·Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development

·6· ·Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was
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·9· ·direction and supervision, and is a true and correct
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11
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18· · · · · · · ·That I am not related to counsel or to the

19· ·parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the

20· ·outcome of this matter.

21
· · ·Dated this 9th day of January, 2019.
22
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Call to order the Board of Directors of

 3   the Louisiana Economic Development Corporation.

 4                   Rollcall, please.

 5               MS. SIMMONS:

 6                   Mr. A.J. Roy.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Here.

 9               MS. SIMMONS:

10                   Mr. Alden Andre.

11               (No response.)

12               MS. SIMMONS:

13                   Mr. Louis Reine.

14               (No response.)

15               MS. SIMMONS:

16                   Mr. Charles Jackson.

17               MR. JACKSON:

18                   Here.

19               MS. SIMMONS:

20                   Ms. Mandi Mitchell.

21               MS. MITCHELL:

22                   Here.

23               MS. SIMMONS:

24                   Mr. Cal Simpson.

25               MR. SIMPSON:
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 1                   Here.

 2               MS. SIMMONS:

 3                   Nittin Kamath.

 4               MR. KAMATH:

 5                   Here.

 6               MS. SIMMONS:

 7                   Sue Durand.

 8               MS. DURAND:

 9                   Here.

10               MS. SIMMONS:

11                   Kimberly Johnson.

12               (No response.)

13               MS. SIMMONS:

14                   Todd McDonald.

15               (No response.)

16               MS. SIMMONS:

17                   We have a quorum.

18               MR. ROY:

19                   Thank you.  We have a quorum.  We do

20   have a quorum.

21                   And welcome, everyone, to our December

22   meeting.  I'll ask everyone to please silence your cell

23   phone.

24                   The first order of business is the

25   presentation of the minutes of the LEDC Board meeting of
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 1   July 27th.

 2                   Motion to approve as presented; second.

 3                   Any discussion?

 4               (No response.)

 5               MR. ROY:

 6                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 7               (Several members respond "aye.")

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   All opposed, "nay."

10               (No response.)

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Without objection, so ordered.

13                   Next order of business is the Screening

14   Committee minutes, September the 28th.

15               MR. JACKSON:

16                   Move to accept.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Motion to accept as presented.

19               MR. SIMPSON:

20                   Second.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Second.

23                   Any discussion?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 2               (Several members respond "aye.")

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   All opposed, "nay."

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Without objection.

 8                   All right.  House can bring us up to

 9   speed on two in-house approvals.

10                   Good morning.

11               MS. DOIN:

12                   Good morning.  Marissa Doin.  I have one

13   loan update for y'all today:  Vinh Loi Corporation.

14   It's a holding company that was established this year,

15   2018, created to purchase a building for an auto repair

16   shop.  There are two equal owners, Kenneth Duong and

17   Dennis Dang.

18                   This one was brought to us by United

19   Community Bank.  They requested a 75 percent LED

20   guaranty for a total loan of $157,500 for 60 months.

21                   As a result of the loan, Vinh Loi

22   Corporation will be creating two full-time jobs and

23   retaining two jobs.  The funds will be used to purchase

24   a second location here in Baton Rouge.  The building

25   will be upgraded with personal funds of the owners.  It
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 1   will also be backed by real estate of the building

 2   valued at 210,000.

 3                   Sales have been continually consistent,

 4   and the business is profitable.  And this was approved

 5   by staff in October.

 6                   Any questions?

 7               (No response.)

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   No.  Thank you.

10               MS. PETE:

11                   Good morning.  I have another loan that

12   was approved, CMED Corporation.

13                   CMED Corporation's loan guaranty

14   application was presented to us by Farmer's State Bank.

15   It was from the acquisition of an existing oil field

16   supply company, Production Rental & Supply, which was

17   found in 2003.  The company was located in Lafayette,

18   Louisiana.  PRS was a well-known oil field company in

19   its earliest days and remained open for 15 years.  PRS

20   targeted drilling, production and completion market.

21   PRS's clientele included Baker Hughes, Cardinal Services

22   and Pioneer Wireline.  PRS offered a full range of

23   safety supplies, hardware, power tools and other

24   supplies for the oil field industry.  The owner had

25   decided to sell the company due to extenuating
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 1   circumstances.

 2                   CMED Corporation was started by Ms. Edna

 3   Sue Turner, David Billeaud, Herbert Turner and Coby

 4   Bernard.  The management team has an extensive

 5   background in the oil field tool supply industry.  Edna

 6   and Herbert Turner have been the owners and operators of

 7   Bulldog Services, LLC, an oil field services company in

 8   Lafayette, Louisiana since 2012.

 9                   Farmer's State Bank is structuring the

10   loan for a $200,000 term loan.  The loan guaranty

11   request was for 75 percent for three years.  The loan

12   was secured by the inventory and equipment and further

13   supported by the unlimited guarantees of the owners.

14                   The approval of this loan created three

15   new jobs and retained one job, and the standard

16   contingencies are in place.

17                   Any questions?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   The next order of business is the EDAP

21   program that's unsponsored, Champion Home Builders,

22   Incorporated.

23                   Morning, gentlemen.

24               MR. BIENEMY:

25                   Stanley Bienemy representing staff
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 1   today, I have with me Mr. Tom Stoneburner representing

 2   Champion Home Builders, LLC (sic).  This is an

 3   unsponsored EDAP award for payroll credit in the amount

 4   requested of $500,000.  The company will be located in

 5   Vernon Parish located at 350 Industrial Park Road in

 6   Leesville, Louisiana.

 7                   The company is the leading manufacturer

 8   of manufactured homes, modular homes as well as mobile

 9   homes.  The job performance goals of the company has

10   agreed to are to maintain 200 new jobs with an annual

11   payroll of $8.2-million.  All of these jobs and payroll

12   must be remain during the life of the contract.

13                   Vernon Parish's unemployment rate was

14   6.4 percent as of September 2018, compared to the state

15   rate of 5 percent for the same time period.  The per

16   capita income for Vernon Parish in 2016 was $38,929

17   compared to a state per capita income of $42,298.

18                   The projected economic benefit to the

19   state is a projected state revenue of $4,229,064, minus

20   the $500,000 EDAP, and $3,314,064 for Quality Jobs, an

21   estimation of over 10 years, which would give the state

22   a net revenue of $415,000.

23                   The project will represent a

24   $1.3-million investment in the area by Champion, and the

25   company will renovate two existing buildings totaling
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 1   246,000 square feet in the Leesville Northside

 2   Industrial park.

 3                   The EDAP funds will be used to purchase

 4   capital equipment, which can be used -- (inaudible) --,

 5   and the company also plans to bring 200 new direct jobs

 6   with an annual salary of 35,000 plus benefits.

 7                   Staff recommends approval of this

 8   project as an unsponsored EDAP payroll credit award with

 9   our basic contingencies put in place as well as a

10   first-position lien on equipment or equivalent

11   collateral sufficient to reasonably secure payments that

12   will become due.  The company has agreed to create and

13   maintain 200 jobs to maintain through the life of the

14   contract with the above-state payroll through 2028.  The

15   capital investment by Champion Home Builders will be

16   $1.3-million by December 31st, 2019.

17                   And we'll turn it over to Mr.

18   Stoneburner to speak a little bit about the project.

19               MR. STONEBURNER:

20                   All right.  My name is Tom Stoneburner.

21   I will be the General Manager of the operation in

22   Leesville, and I represent Skyline and Champion in this

23   matter here today.

24                   And just to give you a little quick

25   detail about the company, we do build manufactured
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 1   housing, and we can build anything from a small section,

 2   double section up to a hotel or an apartment complex.

 3   We did build two motels/hotels in Leesville out by the

 4   gate at Fort Polk, so we do have that ability as a

 5   company.

 6                   Our beginning product we will build in

 7   Leesville will be the single section, doublewide section

 8   because that's what we do to train our employees.

 9                   The company has 5,500 employees and 28

10   factories, so this will be number 29.  Upon the

11   approval, I'm ready to go.  There will be a construction

12   phase at the factory lasting about 90 days, and in that

13   90 days, I'll hire 20 to 25 employees to do the

14   construction work to retrofit buildings so that the

15   construction processes can begin about April.

16                   I'll bring in approximately 50 employees

17   at the beginning, and should start hiring and training

18   them in late February, first of March so that we can

19   train them how to do the jobs.  And quality is very

20   important in our factories because these are homes and

21   we do some extreme.  I will raise production.  I will

22   expect employment to be somewhere near 100 by the end of

23   the year as we continue these training processes and

24   ramp up production with the target of about 200

25   employees, seven to eight homes a day, somewhere in four
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 1   months.

 2                   That's kind of the synopsis.  What kind

 3   of restricts that from even going faster is that we have

 4   to develop our product, what type of houses we will

 5   build.  Predominantly we will sell in Louisiana.  Our

 6   employees will predominantly come from Louisiana, and so

 7   we have to do all of this training on our product and

 8   our distribution to retailers here in Louisiana.  So

 9   it's takes about 24 months to get that going.

10                   Any questions for me?

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Questions or comments?

13               MR. SIMPSON:

14                   Have y'all started any process of

15   looking -- that seems like a significant amount of

16   employees in a relatively small community to find that

17   many employees.  Do you foresee that being a problem?

18               MR. STONEBURNER:

19                   I don't.  I have been on the job for

20   about two weeks, and I did -- I'm moving here from

21   Nashville, Tennessee, so I've kind of met a lot of

22   people, talked with a lot of people.  We did have a job

23   fair in Leesville about a year ago to check the

24   employment numbers, and it looked very positive.  And

25   from around town, I am overwhelmed by people wanting to
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 1   come to work.

 2               MR. JACKSON:

 3                   What's the nature of the equipment that

 4   we're liening against?  Is it built-in for a special

 5   purpose or being acquired?

 6               MR. BIENEMY:

 7                   It will be special purpose, but it won't

 8   be industry specific, but it will be large capital

 9   equipment.  I looked on the equipment list, and there

10   was some large welding materials, large moving materials

11   for the modular pieces of it.  So while it will be

12   specialized, it won't be industry specific.  It can be

13   used for multiple industries.

14               MR. JACKSON:

15                   Can you design for the local market?

16   You don't use the same sorts of designs that are being

17   manufactured elsewhere?

18               MR. STONEBURNER:

19                   We will take a look at those designs

20   elsewhere and make sure that they do fit into this

21   market.  The housing market is regional, but we will

22   start with what we have on the board already and fit

23   that.

24               MR. JACKSON:

25                   And I guess if you're selling primarily
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 1   in Louisiana, you're comfortable that you've got a

 2   product that -- or you'll be able to design a product

 3   that will be fairly effective?

 4               MR. STONEBURNER:

 5                   Prior to coming to Leesville, I was

 6   running the factory in Dresden, Tennessee selling into

 7   Louisiana, so I'm pretty familiar with what product

 8   sells here.  I just have to come down and not copy what

 9   another factory has been doing and look at price points

10   and factory-owned in high volume in Louisiana.

11               MR. JACKSON:

12                   Okay.  Thank you.

13               MR. ROY:

14                   Other questions?

15               MS. MITCHELL:

16                   Actually, my question had been asked, so

17   at the appropriate time, I would like to move favorable.

18   This project will bring 200 jobs to a region in our

19   state that has, for a number of years, carried an

20   unemployment rate that has been higher than the state's

21   average unemployment rates, so these are sorely-needed

22   jobs in the western portion of our state.

23                   And I'd like to commend the work that

24   has been done on this project to present to the Board

25   not just the benefit to the company, but the benefit to
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 1   the state through the economic impact of the project

 2   along with the jobs for this community.

 3                   So at the appropriate time, I would like

 4   to move favorable.

 5               MR. ROY:

 6                   All right.  We'll take that as a motion

 7   now.

 8               MR. SIMPSON:

 9                   Move to accept.

10               MR. ROY:

11                   Second?

12               MR. SIMPSON:

13                   Second.

14               MR. ROY:

15                   Second.

16                   Any other discussion?

17               (No response.)

18               MR. ROY:

19                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

20               (Several members respond "aye.")

21               MR. ROY:

22                   All opposed, "nay."

23               (No response.)

24               MR. ROY:

25                   Without objection.
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 1                   Congratulations.  Please keep us posted,

 2   and we wish you the best.

 3               MR. STONEBURNER:

 4                   Thank you, sir.

 5               MR. ROY:

 6                   Any comments from the public along those

 7   lines?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   Thank you.

11                   We have a modification of an EDAP award,

12   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies, Inc.

13               MR. BIENEMY:

14                   Good morning again.  Stanley Bienemy

15   representing staff today.  We have an EDAP modification

16   request to increase the approved and unsponsored EDAP in

17   the amount of 250,000 that was previously approved

18   about.

19                   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies was

20   originally approved on June 22nd, 2018 by this Board,

21   and the company was to be located at the Michoud

22   Assembly Facility in Orleans Parish.  Unfortunately,

23   NASA and Advanced Sinter were unable to come to terms

24   which would meet both companies' requirements and

25   timelines.  Advanced Sinter was proactive and found an
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 1   alternate site located in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.

 2                   Nothing materially changed about the

 3   project except the location and the timeline for the job

 4   requirements due to the delay because of the site.

 5                   Job performance goals that the company

 6   has agreed to will stay the same.  They will maintain 15

 7   new jobs with a -- create and maintain 15 new jobs and

 8   an annual payroll of 800,000 with a two percent annual

 9   increase.  All of these jobs and payroll must be

10   maintained during the life of the contract.

11                   St. Tammany Parish's unemployment rate

12   as of September 2018 was 4.4 percent to the state's

13   average of 5 percent for the same time period.  The per

14   capita income for St. Tammany Parish for 2016 was

15   $52,109 as compared to the state per capita income for

16   the same time period of 42,298.

17                   The projected economic benefits to the

18   state with the new site would be a state revenue of

19   $1,324,000 minus the $250,000 for the EDAP and $515,000

20   for Quality Jobs, which would give us an approximate

21   state revenue of $588,000.

22                   Staff recommends approval of the project

23   modifications for the unsponsored EDAP for payroll

24   credit with our basic contingencies that we normally

25   have with a two percent annual increase of payroll, also
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 1   keeping the original approval date of June 22nd, 2018,

 2   while moving the start performance period to 2019.

 3                   The total capital investment by Advanced

 4   Sinter will be $5-million by December 31st, 2019.

 5                   And I'll turn it over to Rudolph Von

 6   Liechtenstein, and he will give you a little bit more

 7   detail about where the project is now.

 8               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

 9                   We'd like to start by thanking you once

10   again for this application.  So this is an exciting

11   moment for us, for Sinter Metal Technologies, which was

12   founded more than 50 years ago.  It's, as its name might

13   imply, a leading global player in the sinter technology.

14   Put simply, that's called technology.

15                   For the love of technologies and

16   solutions and applications that are proprietary, and

17   having Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies leads to

18   better serve the U.S. market out of Louisiana is, of

19   course, a good choice.  We see from the tests that we

20   studied, this project is effectively creating a secure,

21   dual-sourcing for high-tech applications soft and

22   critical to our products.

23                   This project is also very exciting

24   because of its nature.  The application (inaudible) of

25   the spectrum.  Additionally, Advanced Sinter Metal
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 1   Technologies' Slidell facility is to be highly

 2   automated, among other things, high-tech, automated

 3   quality control systems.

 4                   I'd like, once again, to emphasize that

 5   despite the location and the schedule being pushed back,

 6   the project essentially remains the same.  The plans,

 7   stakeholders and commitments remain unchanged.

 8                   We'd also like the share some of the

 9   recent and latest developments.  So at the beginning of

10   November, Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies secured the

11   location of production in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.

12   As of now, most of the pieces of equipment required to

13   start industry production of our metal parts have been

14   assembled in that facility.  Advanced Sinter Metal

15   Technology plans to start production in the end of

16   January 2019, at which time you are kindly and cordially

17   invited.

18                   And as a final point, we entered into an

19   extending with LSU through a support letter for a

20   project to further confirmation to begin manufacturing

21   in Louisiana.  The project, with your involvement, will

22   come to fruition.  So, again, this is an exciting

23   project for us, and despite some unforeseen change, we

24   are grateful for the hospitality and the warm welcome

25   Louisiana has given to this project.
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 1                   Thank you.  If you have any questions.

 2               MR. ROY:

 3                   Questions or comments?

 4               MS. MITCHELL:

 5                   No questions for me.  I just wanted to

 6   confirm my understanding that the only change is the

 7   start time of the project and the actual physical

 8   location.  Everything else that had been approved in

 9   June remains the same?

10               MR. BIENEMY:

11                   That is correct.

12               MS. MITCHELL:

13                   Okay.

14               MR. SIMPSON:

15                   And at this point, you're saying that

16   there's actually equipment that has already been

17   installed and the work has started?  I guess when we

18   approved it in June, that work had not yet started.

19                   I guess I kind of had the understanding

20   in June that you were already set to go in at the

21   Michoud Facility.  That seemed kind of surprising to see

22   that that changed.

23               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

24                   It was indeed.  At the end of it, we was

25   unable to get commitment in a timely manner, and while
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 1   for all projected, Michoud costs and energy costs, and

 2   so at the end, we're lucky enough to find a beautiful

 3   spot in Slidell to move forward in a timely manner.

 4               MR. SIMPSON:

 5                   Okay.  So you're -- how far is the

 6   schedule slipped then?

 7               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

 8                   So we had a new official announcement at

 9   the Michoud the first of November last year, and the

10   understanding at the time was we could move in first

11   quarter of 2018.  Well, right now, production we think

12   will start at the end of January 2019, so it slipped one

13   year.

14               MR. BIENEMY:

15                   Due to one year of their time

16   commitments sliding back, we've had to move back the job

17   marker.

18               MR. SIMPSON:

19                   Okay.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   Any other questions or comments?

22               (No response.)

23               MR. JACKSON:

24                   Move to approve.

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Motion for approval as presented.

 2               MS. MITCHELL:

 3                   Second.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Second.

 6                   Any other discussion?

 7               (No response.)

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   Any comments from the public?

10               (No response.)

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Hearing none all in favor, "aye."

13               (Several members respond "aye.")

14               MR. ROY:

15                   All opposed, "nay."

16               (No response.)

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Without objection.

19                   Congratulations.

20               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

21                   Thank you.

22               MR. ROY:

23                   Merci.  Bonne chance.  I think that's

24   correct.

25                   All right.  Next order of business is

0023

 1   the SSBCI program, Tactical Directional Drilling.

 2                   Good morning.

 3               MS. PETE:

 4                   Good morning.  Today we have Mr. Stacy

 5   Quebodeaux, Tony Howard and Gerard Labat today to

 6   present Tactical Drilling.

 7                   Farmer's State Bank has requested a loan

 8   guaranty for Tactical Directional Drilling.  Tactical

 9   Directional Drilling is a startup company that will be

10   owned by Mr. Anthony Howard, Stacy Quebodeaux and Chad

11   Walker.  It will provide horizontal directional drilling

12   services to gas, oil and chemical refineries and

13   manufacturing facilities, utility companies and pipeline

14   companies.  Tactical Directional Drilling will provide a

15   better alternative to open trenching for laying pipe

16   horizontally.

17                   The company will specialize in smaller

18   jobs that competitors typically turn down due to the

19   significant overhead involved.  This company will pursue

20   the smaller drilling jobs.  The management is

21   experienced with Mr. Howard having 11 years with

22   horizontal directional drilling and civil construction,

23   Mr. Quebodeaux having 30 years in civil construction and

24   Mr. Walker having 10 years in horizontal directional

25   drilling.
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 1                   Tactical will focus on the Gulf Coast

 2   area from Mississippi to Texas.  With the oil industry

 3   running multiple pipelines throughout the south,

 4   directional drilling is in high demand.  The drillers

 5   who will work with tactical have a great reputation in

 6   this industry and established industry contacts.

 7   Tactical will provide underground pipe installation for

 8   roadways, pipeline, wetlands, drainage and utility

 9   lines.

10                   The loan structure is an $826,000 loan

11   backed by equipment value at $1,032,025.  The owners

12   have made a significant investment.  It is a 10-year

13   loan with an involvement of LEDC guaranty for five

14   years.

15                   Our standard contingencies are in place.

16   Staff recommends approval for this application due to

17   the extensive experience of management and significant

18   investment by the owners, and the approval of this loan

19   will result in the creation of three jobs.

20                   Mr. Quebodeaux and Mr. Howard can

21   further elaborate on their company and if you have any

22   questions.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Questions or comments so far?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Gentlemen, do you have something you'd

 3   like to add?

 4               MR. HOWARD:

 5                   The one particular thing I'd really like

 6   to add is we have a letter with intent of work that is

 7   coming up, and actually he called us this morning on the

 8   way over here to wish us luck hoping that everything

 9   goes well here because he's actually looking at a job

10   right now in West Texas that we could probably start

11   sometime in the middle -- first to middle part of

12   February.  So the outlook is very, very promising right

13   now.  There's lots of work supposedly fixing to take

14   place in North Louisiana.  We just waiting to get a shot

15   at a piece of the pie, I guess I'd say.

16               MS. PORTER:

17                   Can the gentleman introduce himself,

18   please.

19               MR. HOWARD:

20                   Tony Howard.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Questions, comments?

23               MR. JACKSON:

24                   Do you send a local team or do you hire

25   at location, if you're in West Texas, for example?
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 1               MR. HOWARD:

 2                   No, sir.  It's going to be us.  Wherever

 3   our equipment goes, we go.

 4               MR. SIMPSON:

 5                   Does the price and recent reduction in

 6   the crude oil affect y'all's business models?

 7               MR. HOWARD:

 8                   No, sir.  The price of crude oil gas

 9   really has no affect on what it takes for us to do our

10   job.  It can fluctuate and go down, but it has no

11   overall bearing on what we have to do.

12               MR. QUEBODEAUX:

13                   A lot of jobs coming in is not just new

14   pipeline.  It's the replacing of the old existing

15   pipelines.  So, I mean, they have -- the oil has to flow

16   no what matter what the price is.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Do you anticipate that most of your

19   business will be out of state?

20               MR. HOWARD:

21                   No, sir.  It can be in Louisiana just as

22   much as it could be in Texas.

23               MS. MITCHELL:

24                   I was just going to add, it's always

25   good to bring in that new dollar, so we like when you go
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 1   to work out of state and bring that revenue back here.

 2   So that's not a bad thing.

 3               MR. QUEBODEAUX:

 4                   It's just that it will be the locals

 5   that -- it's going to be Louisiana people that work for.

 6               MS. MITCHELL:

 7                   That's the key.

 8               MR. QUEBODEAUX:

 9                   Exactly.

10               MR. ROY:

11                   Any other questions or comments?

12               (No response.)

13               MS. MITCHELL:

14                   I would just like to move favorable at

15   the appropriate time.

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Motion for approval as presented.

18               MR. SIMPSON:

19                   Second.

20               MS. DURAND:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ROY:

23                   Second.

24                   Any other discussion?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 3               (Several members respond "aye.")

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   All opposed, "nay."

 6               (No response.)

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Without objection.

 9                   Congratulations, gentlemen.  Please keep

10   us posted on the future and your successes.

11                   Next order of business, the Treasurer's

12   Report.  Ms. Villa.

13               MS. VILLA:

14                   Good morning.  Ann Villa, Undersecretary

15   for Louisiana Economic Development.  I'll present to you

16   the Secretary Treasurer's Report for December 10th,

17   2018, Fiscal Year 2019.

18                   So as of today, the summary you have in

19   front of you shows our FY '19 budget for all programs as

20   $9,313,938.  And we have approved for just expenditures

21   for projects of $2,463,224.  And then we had the Board

22   approval of the pending projects of 654,875, which left

23   us balance of $6,195,839.  And we currently have a

24   million dollars in projects that are under review, which

25   gives us a projected yearend balance of $5,195,839.
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 1                   And the detail behind that is our Small

 2   Business -- State Small Business Credit Initiative

 3   Program, which has $452,224 projects that have been

 4   approved this year, and we have the Tactical Drilling

 5   that was just approved of 154,875, so we currently have

 6   a balance expected in that program of $1,295,698.  And

 7   we do still have our $190,000 Loan Assistance Program,

 8   which we're not projecting any projects, so we have

 9   those two together, which would give us a balance of

10   $1,485,698 that's expected at the end of the year.

11                   And then for our Capital Outlay

12   Appropriation that we have for our Economic Development

13   Award Program, we have our budget for that is $7,221,141

14   for FY '19, and then we have projects that's been

15   approved for the EDAP Program of $1,561,000, and then in

16   our EDRED Program, we have projects of 450,000.

17                   We have pending the Board approval is

18   the Champion Home Builders, which you just approved of

19   500,000, which would leave us a balance for both EDAP

20   and EDRED of $4,710,141.  And then we have a million

21   dollar project that's under review, which would give us

22   a yearend balance of $3,710,141 for both the EDAP and

23   the EDRED.

24                   And then if you go to the next page, the

25   final page, our Projected Fund Balance for FY '19 that's

0030

 1   available for use is $14,500 -- the expected fund

 2   balance available is $14,947,976, and our expenditures

 3   are expected at $12,027,483, which would leave a balance

 4   projected of $2,920,493.

 5                   If you have any questions on any of the

 6   reports.

 7               MR. JACKSON:

 8                   Just one, Studio Network Project

 9   canceled?

10               MR. BAHAM:

11                   Yes.  That was a project that came

12   before the Board back in --

13               MR. JACKSON:

14                   That was the one in New Orleans?

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   July.

17                   Correct.  That was old Bally's Casino.

18   The project is not going forward with the bank.  They

19   decided to pull the loan due to some issue beyond the

20   bank's control and beyond our control.  It was separate

21   and aside from this particular project, so the bank

22   decided to pull it, and without a closing, we have no

23   guaranty at that point, so the money has now rolled back

24   into the availability for new loans for SSBCI.

25               MR. JACKSON:
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 1                   All right.  And do we usually get notice

 2   when they cancel like that or do they just show up in

 3   the report?

 4               MR. BAHAM:

 5                   Oh, yeah, we get notice pretty quickly.

 6   The bank, we spoke with the bank, and then I think in

 7   less than 24 hours after they made their decision, we

 8   got an official notice from them in writing that they

 9   were not going to pursue this loan any further.

10               MR. JACKSON:

11                   Okay.  Thank you.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   If you look back over the last year,

14   what do we think we might do in terms of the number of

15   projects and scope of projects going into the next year?

16               MR. BAHAM:

17                   For the Loan Guaranty Program?

18               MR. ROY:

19                   Well, in general.

20               MR. BAHAM:

21                   Well, in general, as far as the Loan

22   Guaranty Program, we hate losing the Network Lakefront

23   project because that would put our available SSBCI down

24   to under that million dollar mark, which we've been

25   trying to get there.  We do have some other potential
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 1   projects in the pipeline that we are hoping will come

 2   through.

 3                   So we've got just under 1.3 million now

 4   left in SSBCI, which we have used up all of the admin

 5   expenses associated with that, so that is the last bit

 6   of dollars we have from that federal program.

 7                   As far as EDAPs, I think we just got a

 8   whole batch of --

 9               MS. VILLA:

10                   We have a lot in the pipeline that's not

11   been announced yet, so, you know, we're encouraged by

12   the traction that we have on that front as well.  So I

13   think we've seen this past year the number of EDAPs

14   increase and more come in front of the Board than we had

15   in previous, and I just -- I expect that to kind of

16   continue because we've seen that in the pipeline

17   projects.

18               MR. BAHAM:

19                   EDAPs are a little more difficult to

20   predict because there's a lot of different variables

21   involved.

22                   With the loans, it's more directly tied

23   with our efforts getting out in the community and

24   keeping that awareness up within the community, also

25   with our partners across the state.  And we've been very
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 1   successful in the past year in continuing to increase

 2   those efforts going forward to branch out beyond the

 3   lending community and work more on the lines of the

 4   ground level with our Chambers of Commerce and more

 5   organizations in the local communities and a regional

 6   focus.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   How many SSBCI dollars have recycled?

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   Have recycled?  It's over -- it's

11   definitely over 4-million.  I was looking at that number

12   last week, and it's definitely over 4-million that have

13   actually retoured.  I want to say it's closer to 5.  We

14   put a little over 8-million into the Guaranty Program,

15   and over half of it has definitely retoured and have

16   come back.

17                   We've got it kind of just sitting there

18   in a holding pattern until we use up the rest of this

19   1.295, so it's there.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   But it's there for use once we exhaust

22   what we have?

23               MR. BAHAM:

24                   Correct.

25               MS. GUESS:
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 1                   We didn't have as much return back for

 2   2018 as we had for 2017, but the prospects for 2019 to

 3   come back with recycled dollars is very well.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Okay.  Any other questions, comments?

 6               (No response.)

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

 9   accept the Treasurer's report.

10               MS. MITCHELL:

11                   So moved.

12               MR. JACKSON:

13                   Second.

14               MR. ROY:

15                   Motion and second.

16                   All in favor, "aye."

17               (Several members respond "aye.")

18               MR. ROY:

19                   All opposed, "nay."

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Without objection.

23                   The Accountant's report.  Good morning.

24               MS. DALGO:

25                   Good morning.  Hello.  I'm Crystal
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 1   Dalgo.  The LEDC Accountant Status Report that I'm

 2   presenting is as of November 30th, 2018.

 3                   The Direct Loan Portfolio is at zero

 4   doctors as the Golf Balls loan was paid off in May of

 5   2018.

 6               For EDAP Loan Portfolio, there's one loan,

 7   which is Town of Colfax, and it totals $345,431.  They

 8   made their once-a-year payment in October.

 9                   The Guaranteed Loan Portfolio is at zero

10   dollars.  Deep Hole Drilling was paid off in December

11   2017.

12                   The allowance for Direct Loan Losses is

13   set at 15 percent, but it totals zero as the direct loan

14   was paid off in May.  The allowance for the EDAP Loan

15   Losses is set at 15 percent and totals $51,815.  And the

16   allowance for the Guaranteed Loan Losses is set at 18

17   percent and totals zero dollars, but the guaranty loan

18   was paid off in December.

19                   So the SSBCI Guaranty Loan Portfolio,

20   for it we have 21 loans and it's totaling $6,397,115 as

21   of November 30th.  And as of November 30th, we have two

22   of the loans, C. Booty Enterprises and Reed's Lawn Care

23   are 30 days late and Acadian Cypress is reporting at 60

24   days late.

25                   The allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed Loan
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 1   Losses is set at 18 percent for the current amounts, and

 2   then for past due amounts, they reflect between 25 and

 3   100 percent.  As of November 30th, the allowance totals

 4   $1,458,773, and reflects at 22.8 percent.

 5                   And that concludes my report.  Are there

 6   any questions?

 7               MR. JACKSON:

 8                   Reed's Lawn Care, is that one that we

 9   just approved in the last few months or was that an

10   older one?

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   That was one approved last fiscal year.

13   I believe it was last fiscal year we did it.

14               MR. JACKSON:

15                   That's fairly recent, a little over a

16   year.

17               MR. BAHAM:

18                   A little over a year.

19               MR. JACKSON:

20                   Okay.  That's a different lawn care, I'm

21   thinking.

22               MR. BAHAM:

23                   The C. Booty Enterprises, it's just a

24   notorious late payer since the beginning of the loan.

25   They're paying, but they're paying late.
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 1                   We did check on Reed's as well, and

 2   matter of fact, after this was put together, I think

 3   this was at the end of November, they paid December 4th,

 4   the day we actually called, they had just made their

 5   payment.  So they're caught up.  This is just --

 6               MR. JACKSON:

 7                   I thought we approved a lawn care

 8   earlier.

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   It was discussed at one of the other

11   meetings over the summer, so that could be where you're

12   recalling it from.

13               MR. ROY:

14                   One question before you go, are we

15   comfortable with our calculations or percentages?  You

16   know, we adjusted things, what, a year or two back, time

17   flies, but when you historically evaluate things based

18   on your historic numbers, which we have some of, but

19   some of the programs -- it is SSBCI is relatively new?

20   Are we comfortable with your calculation or percentage

21   calculations, et cetera, across the board?

22               MS. MITCHELL:

23                   Referring to the reduction in collateral

24   requirement percentage?

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Well, the reserve.

 2               MS. MITCHELL:

 3                   Reserve.

 4               MS. GUESS:

 5                   Yes.  I think we are still comfortable

 6   with those numbers.  We still are in a position where

 7   we've not had a default yet.  Those that are past due,

 8   we are working with the banks to make sure that they're

 9   working with the -- or having a workout plan, and I

10   think Acadian Cypress and Hardwood is one of the ones

11   that we are really looking at waiting for them to give

12   us a workout plan.  But I think with the dollar amount

13   that we've already set aside, at this time, we feel

14   they're sufficient.

15               MR. ROY:

16                   We constantly think about it, and I

17   would guess with the reserve, should we and whether or

18   not it's adequate.

19               MS. GUESS:

20                   Yes.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   All right.  Thank you.

23                   I'll entertain a motion to accept the

24   Accountant's Report.

25                   Motion and second.
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 1                   All in favor, "aye."

 2               (Several members respond "aye.")

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   All opposed, "nay."

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Without objection.

 8               MS. VILLA:

 9                   I was just going to state, I think at

10   the next Board meeting, shouldn't we expect to hear from

11   the accountant and the valuation change?

12               MR. BAHAM:

13                   Yeah.  I think we have to do our

14   closeout sometime between now and as soon as possible.

15   It looks like it will probably be ready for February.

16               MS. VILLA:

17                   February.  Okay.

18               MR. BAHAM:

19                   I believe all of you got a copy.  I

20   think we e-mailed it several times with the 2019 date.

21   Just as FYI and reminder, we are moving the Board dates

22   up two weeks to the second Thursday of every month.  So

23   the first one in 2019 would be the 10th of January.  So

24   it is coinciding with this Board meeting fairly well.  I

25   think exactly five weeks, but given that there's some
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 1   major holidays in the middle of all of that, it's a

 2   little too early to tell if we'll have a Board meeting

 3   or not or have a project to bring before the Board.

 4   We're hoping to, but it will probably be another week or

 5   so before we know for sure if we have.  If not, it will

 6   be the February Board, and we will probably have our --

 7   we have to do our new election of officers at the first

 8   annual meeting every year, as well as if those reports

 9   are ready from the legislature and from Chaffe report.

10   We'll have a Finance Committee meeting before prior to

11   that first Board.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Very good.

14               MS. VILLA:

15                   Then we'll have yearend audited

16   financial statements presented to the Board as well.

17               MR. BAHAM:

18                   Correct.

19               MS. VILLA:

20                   For FY '19.  It takes a little while.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Okay.  Ms. Mitchell, the President's

23   Report.

24               MS. MITCHELL:

25                   Yes.  Good morning, everyone.  I will be
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 1   as brief as possible.  So I'll share with you a little

 2   bit about our recent project wins, and it's been a while

 3   since we've met, so I have a few from October that I'll

 4   share with you.

 5                   In October, the Governor and Ternium

 6   U.S.A. announced a $14.7-million expansion at the Port

 7   of Caddo-Bossier.  That company is retaining 150 jobs,

 8   and as a result of that project, there will be 22 direct

 9   and indirect jobs added to the community.  That is a win

10   for our foreign direct investment team.  Ternium is a

11   Latin America steel company, and we're happy to have

12   them in Caddo-Bossier.

13                   In November, we had quite a few project

14   wins that I want to share with you.  Fuji Vegetable Oil

15   broke ground in Jefferson Parish on their $70-million

16   project, which will bring to our state 87 new permanent

17   jobs and 200 construction jobs.

18                   LM Wind Power established a Technology

19   Center for the Americas in New Orleans.  This is GE

20   Renewable Energy Company, and they will be retaining 45

21   jobs and creating 100 new direct jobs at the Michoud

22   Assembly Facility.

23               Catamaran Solutions will be creating 120 new

24   jobs in Minden, a huge win for us in North Louisiana.

25   We're constantly striving to bring new jobs to North
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 1   Louisiana areas as well as rural areas where the

 2   unemployment rate tends to trend higher than the state's

 3   average unemployment.  So that was a significant win for

 4   us in Minden, Louisiana.

 5                   And Wanhua announced the selection of

 6   its site in St. James Parish for a $1.25-billion

 7   chemical project -- chemical complex.  Sorry.  That's

 8   going to create over 1,200 new direct and indirect jobs.

 9                   And then lastly, we always laud the

10   small projects as well, so I was -- I had the pleasure

11   of being on hand for the Riceland Crawfish announcement.

12   They broke ground on a $3-million expansion of their

13   facility over in Eunice, Louisiana.  The project's going

14   to retain 50 jobs and create 10 new jobs in Acadiana.

15   So that was another exciting win for us.  We celebrate

16   the large, medium and small projects.

17                   So also want to share with you from a

18   rankings perspective, Louisiana earned our ninth

19   consecutive Top 10 spot among the Best Business

20   Climates, and this ranking is conducted by Site

21   Selection Magazine, the leading industry publication for

22   site selectors and corporate executives, so we're happy

23   to remain in our Top 10 ranking from that matrix.

24                   And then also I want to share with you

25   that LED earned its certification as an accredited
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 1   economic development organization, the only state in the

 2   country to have that designation.  Mostly you'll see

 3   your regional organization communities competing for

 4   that, but we felt at the state level that we should

 5   compete for it, and we did win that certification.  And

 6   since then, several other states are now looking at

 7   trying to replicate what we have done.

 8                   And then I also want to share with you

 9   LED, BRAC, the Baton Rouge Area Chamber, and LSU will

10   sponsor an entrepreneurship academy which will help

11   train capital region high school students to be

12   interested in entrepreneurship and be confident business

13   owners.

14                   Lastly, Secretary Pierson asked me to

15   relay to you his gratitude and seasons greetings.

16                   Thank you.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Thank you, Mandi.

19                   Any questions or comments?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Very good.  Good news.

23                   Any other business?

24               MS. GUESS:

25                   No other business, but one announcement
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 1   or reminder, the ethics training that's due for all

 2   Board members, you will receive an e-mail from me

 3   probably later on today or tomorrow.  The deadline is

 4   December 31st, so that has to be completed.

 5               MS. MITCHELL:

 6                   And it's fun.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Looking forward to it.

 9               MR. JACKSON:

10                   It can be done between now and the 31st?

11               MR. ROY:

12                   You can do it online?

13               MS. MITCHELL:

14                   Yes.  Yes.  Really cool, new videos.

15               MR. ROY:

16                   Okay.  Being that everyone will rush out

17   to go conduct that training, I'll entertain a motion to

18   adjourn.

19               MR. SIMPSON:

20                   So moved.

21               MS. MITCHELL:

22                   Second.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Motion to adjourn, second.

25                   Happy holidays to everyone.  See you
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 1   soon.  Thank you.

 2               MS. DURAND:

 3                   Happy holidays, everyone.

 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:16 a.m.)
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 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:

 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court

 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the

 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of

 5   Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development

 6   Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was

 7   reported by me in the stenotype reporting method, was

 8   prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal

 9   direction and supervision, and is a true and correct

10   transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;

11

12               That the transcript has been prepared in

13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or

14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance

15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as

16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article

17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;

18               That I am not related to counsel or to the

19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the

20   outcome of this matter.

21

     Dated this 9th day of January, 2019.

22

23                               ___________________________

24                                 ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR

25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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		239						LN		9		21		false		21   estimation of over 10 years, which would give the state				false

		240						LN		9		22		false		22   a net revenue of $415,000.				false

		241						LN		9		23		false		23                   The project will represent a				false

		242						LN		9		24		false		24   $1.3-million investment in the area by Champion, and the				false

		243						LN		9		25		false		25   company will renovate two existing buildings totaling				false

		244						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		245						LN		10		1		false		 1   246,000 square feet in the Leesville Northside				false

		246						LN		10		2		false		 2   Industrial park.				false

		247						LN		10		3		false		 3                   The EDAP funds will be used to purchase				false

		248						LN		10		4		false		 4   capital equipment, which can be used -- (inaudible) --,				false

		249						LN		10		5		false		 5   and the company also plans to bring 200 new direct jobs				false

		250						LN		10		6		false		 6   with an annual salary of 35,000 plus benefits.				false

		251						LN		10		7		false		 7                   Staff recommends approval of this				false

		252						LN		10		8		false		 8   project as an unsponsored EDAP payroll credit award with				false

		253						LN		10		9		false		 9   our basic contingencies put in place as well as a				false

		254						LN		10		10		false		10   first-position lien on equipment or equivalent				false

		255						LN		10		11		false		11   collateral sufficient to reasonably secure payments that				false

		256						LN		10		12		false		12   will become due.  The company has agreed to create and				false

		257						LN		10		13		false		13   maintain 200 jobs to maintain through the life of the				false

		258						LN		10		14		false		14   contract with the above-state payroll through 2028.  The				false

		259						LN		10		15		false		15   capital investment by Champion Home Builders will be				false

		260						LN		10		16		false		16   $1.3-million by December 31st, 2019.				false

		261						LN		10		17		false		17                   And we'll turn it over to Mr.				false

		262						LN		10		18		false		18   Stoneburner to speak a little bit about the project.				false

		263						LN		10		19		false		19               MR. STONEBURNER:				false

		264						LN		10		20		false		20                   All right.  My name is Tom Stoneburner.				false

		265						LN		10		21		false		21   I will be the General Manager of the operation in				false

		266						LN		10		22		false		22   Leesville, and I represent Skyline and Champion in this				false

		267						LN		10		23		false		23   matter here today.				false

		268						LN		10		24		false		24                   And just to give you a little quick				false

		269						LN		10		25		false		25   detail about the company, we do build manufactured				false

		270						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		271						LN		11		1		false		 1   housing, and we can build anything from a small section,				false

		272						LN		11		2		false		 2   double section up to a hotel or an apartment complex.				false

		273						LN		11		3		false		 3   We did build two motels/hotels in Leesville out by the				false

		274						LN		11		4		false		 4   gate at Fort Polk, so we do have that ability as a				false

		275						LN		11		5		false		 5   company.				false

		276						LN		11		6		false		 6                   Our beginning product we will build in				false

		277						LN		11		7		false		 7   Leesville will be the single section, doublewide section				false

		278						LN		11		8		false		 8   because that's what we do to train our employees.				false

		279						LN		11		9		false		 9                   The company has 5,500 employees and 28				false

		280						LN		11		10		false		10   factories, so this will be number 29.  Upon the				false

		281						LN		11		11		false		11   approval, I'm ready to go.  There will be a construction				false

		282						LN		11		12		false		12   phase at the factory lasting about 90 days, and in that				false

		283						LN		11		13		false		13   90 days, I'll hire 20 to 25 employees to do the				false

		284						LN		11		14		false		14   construction work to retrofit buildings so that the				false

		285						LN		11		15		false		15   construction processes can begin about April.				false

		286						LN		11		16		false		16                   I'll bring in approximately 50 employees				false

		287						LN		11		17		false		17   at the beginning, and should start hiring and training				false

		288						LN		11		18		false		18   them in late February, first of March so that we can				false

		289						LN		11		19		false		19   train them how to do the jobs.  And quality is very				false

		290						LN		11		20		false		20   important in our factories because these are homes and				false

		291						LN		11		21		false		21   we do some extreme.  I will raise production.  I will				false

		292						LN		11		22		false		22   expect employment to be somewhere near 100 by the end of				false

		293						LN		11		23		false		23   the year as we continue these training processes and				false

		294						LN		11		24		false		24   ramp up production with the target of about 200				false

		295						LN		11		25		false		25   employees, seven to eight homes a day, somewhere in four				false

		296						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		297						LN		12		1		false		 1   months.				false

		298						LN		12		2		false		 2                   That's kind of the synopsis.  What kind				false

		299						LN		12		3		false		 3   of restricts that from even going faster is that we have				false

		300						LN		12		4		false		 4   to develop our product, what type of houses we will				false

		301						LN		12		5		false		 5   build.  Predominantly we will sell in Louisiana.  Our				false

		302						LN		12		6		false		 6   employees will predominantly come from Louisiana, and so				false

		303						LN		12		7		false		 7   we have to do all of this training on our product and				false

		304						LN		12		8		false		 8   our distribution to retailers here in Louisiana.  So				false

		305						LN		12		9		false		 9   it's takes about 24 months to get that going.				false

		306						LN		12		10		false		10                   Any questions for me?				false

		307						LN		12		11		false		11               MR. ROY:				false

		308						LN		12		12		false		12                   Questions or comments?				false

		309						LN		12		13		false		13               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		310						LN		12		14		false		14                   Have y'all started any process of				false

		311						LN		12		15		false		15   looking -- that seems like a significant amount of				false

		312						LN		12		16		false		16   employees in a relatively small community to find that				false

		313						LN		12		17		false		17   many employees.  Do you foresee that being a problem?				false

		314						LN		12		18		false		18               MR. STONEBURNER:				false

		315						LN		12		19		false		19                   I don't.  I have been on the job for				false

		316						LN		12		20		false		20   about two weeks, and I did -- I'm moving here from				false

		317						LN		12		21		false		21   Nashville, Tennessee, so I've kind of met a lot of				false

		318						LN		12		22		false		22   people, talked with a lot of people.  We did have a job				false

		319						LN		12		23		false		23   fair in Leesville about a year ago to check the				false

		320						LN		12		24		false		24   employment numbers, and it looked very positive.  And				false

		321						LN		12		25		false		25   from around town, I am overwhelmed by people wanting to				false

		322						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		323						LN		13		1		false		 1   come to work.				false

		324						LN		13		2		false		 2               MR. JACKSON:				false

		325						LN		13		3		false		 3                   What's the nature of the equipment that				false

		326						LN		13		4		false		 4   we're liening against?  Is it built-in for a special				false

		327						LN		13		5		false		 5   purpose or being acquired?				false

		328						LN		13		6		false		 6               MR. BIENEMY:				false

		329						LN		13		7		false		 7                   It will be special purpose, but it won't				false

		330						LN		13		8		false		 8   be industry specific, but it will be large capital				false

		331						LN		13		9		false		 9   equipment.  I looked on the equipment list, and there				false

		332						LN		13		10		false		10   was some large welding materials, large moving materials				false

		333						LN		13		11		false		11   for the modular pieces of it.  So while it will be				false

		334						LN		13		12		false		12   specialized, it won't be industry specific.  It can be				false

		335						LN		13		13		false		13   used for multiple industries.				false

		336						LN		13		14		false		14               MR. JACKSON:				false

		337						LN		13		15		false		15                   Can you design for the local market?				false

		338						LN		13		16		false		16   You don't use the same sorts of designs that are being				false

		339						LN		13		17		false		17   manufactured elsewhere?				false

		340						LN		13		18		false		18               MR. STONEBURNER:				false

		341						LN		13		19		false		19                   We will take a look at those designs				false

		342						LN		13		20		false		20   elsewhere and make sure that they do fit into this				false

		343						LN		13		21		false		21   market.  The housing market is regional, but we will				false

		344						LN		13		22		false		22   start with what we have on the board already and fit				false

		345						LN		13		23		false		23   that.				false

		346						LN		13		24		false		24               MR. JACKSON:				false

		347						LN		13		25		false		25                   And I guess if you're selling primarily				false

		348						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		349						LN		14		1		false		 1   in Louisiana, you're comfortable that you've got a				false

		350						LN		14		2		false		 2   product that -- or you'll be able to design a product				false

		351						LN		14		3		false		 3   that will be fairly effective?				false

		352						LN		14		4		false		 4               MR. STONEBURNER:				false

		353						LN		14		5		false		 5                   Prior to coming to Leesville, I was				false

		354						LN		14		6		false		 6   running the factory in Dresden, Tennessee selling into				false

		355						LN		14		7		false		 7   Louisiana, so I'm pretty familiar with what product				false

		356						LN		14		8		false		 8   sells here.  I just have to come down and not copy what				false

		357						LN		14		9		false		 9   another factory has been doing and look at price points				false

		358						LN		14		10		false		10   and factory-owned in high volume in Louisiana.				false

		359						LN		14		11		false		11               MR. JACKSON:				false

		360						LN		14		12		false		12                   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		361						LN		14		13		false		13               MR. ROY:				false

		362						LN		14		14		false		14                   Other questions?				false

		363						LN		14		15		false		15               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		364						LN		14		16		false		16                   Actually, my question had been asked, so				false

		365						LN		14		17		false		17   at the appropriate time, I would like to move favorable.				false

		366						LN		14		18		false		18   This project will bring 200 jobs to a region in our				false

		367						LN		14		19		false		19   state that has, for a number of years, carried an				false

		368						LN		14		20		false		20   unemployment rate that has been higher than the state's				false

		369						LN		14		21		false		21   average unemployment rates, so these are sorely-needed				false

		370						LN		14		22		false		22   jobs in the western portion of our state.				false

		371						LN		14		23		false		23                   And I'd like to commend the work that				false

		372						LN		14		24		false		24   has been done on this project to present to the Board				false

		373						LN		14		25		false		25   not just the benefit to the company, but the benefit to				false

		374						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		375						LN		15		1		false		 1   the state through the economic impact of the project				false

		376						LN		15		2		false		 2   along with the jobs for this community.				false

		377						LN		15		3		false		 3                   So at the appropriate time, I would like				false

		378						LN		15		4		false		 4   to move favorable.				false

		379						LN		15		5		false		 5               MR. ROY:				false

		380						LN		15		6		false		 6                   All right.  We'll take that as a motion				false

		381						LN		15		7		false		 7   now.				false

		382						LN		15		8		false		 8               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		383						LN		15		9		false		 9                   Move to accept.				false

		384						LN		15		10		false		10               MR. ROY:				false

		385						LN		15		11		false		11                   Second?				false

		386						LN		15		12		false		12               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		387						LN		15		13		false		13                   Second.				false

		388						LN		15		14		false		14               MR. ROY:				false

		389						LN		15		15		false		15                   Second.				false

		390						LN		15		16		false		16                   Any other discussion?				false

		391						LN		15		17		false		17               (No response.)				false

		392						LN		15		18		false		18               MR. ROY:				false

		393						LN		15		19		false		19                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."				false

		394						LN		15		20		false		20               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		395						LN		15		21		false		21               MR. ROY:				false

		396						LN		15		22		false		22                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		397						LN		15		23		false		23               (No response.)				false

		398						LN		15		24		false		24               MR. ROY:				false

		399						LN		15		25		false		25                   Without objection.				false

		400						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		401						LN		16		1		false		 1                   Congratulations.  Please keep us posted,				false

		402						LN		16		2		false		 2   and we wish you the best.				false

		403						LN		16		3		false		 3               MR. STONEBURNER:				false

		404						LN		16		4		false		 4                   Thank you, sir.				false

		405						LN		16		5		false		 5               MR. ROY:				false

		406						LN		16		6		false		 6                   Any comments from the public along those				false

		407						LN		16		7		false		 7   lines?				false

		408						LN		16		8		false		 8               (No response.)				false

		409						LN		16		9		false		 9               MR. ROY:				false

		410						LN		16		10		false		10                   Thank you.				false

		411						LN		16		11		false		11                   We have a modification of an EDAP award,				false

		412						LN		16		12		false		12   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies, Inc.				false

		413						LN		16		13		false		13               MR. BIENEMY:				false

		414						LN		16		14		false		14                   Good morning again.  Stanley Bienemy				false

		415						LN		16		15		false		15   representing staff today.  We have an EDAP modification				false

		416						LN		16		16		false		16   request to increase the approved and unsponsored EDAP in				false

		417						LN		16		17		false		17   the amount of 250,000 that was previously approved				false

		418						LN		16		18		false		18   about.				false

		419						LN		16		19		false		19                   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies was				false

		420						LN		16		20		false		20   originally approved on June 22nd, 2018 by this Board,				false

		421						LN		16		21		false		21   and the company was to be located at the Michoud				false

		422						LN		16		22		false		22   Assembly Facility in Orleans Parish.  Unfortunately,				false

		423						LN		16		23		false		23   NASA and Advanced Sinter were unable to come to terms				false

		424						LN		16		24		false		24   which would meet both companies' requirements and				false

		425						LN		16		25		false		25   timelines.  Advanced Sinter was proactive and found an				false

		426						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		427						LN		17		1		false		 1   alternate site located in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.				false

		428						LN		17		2		false		 2                   Nothing materially changed about the				false

		429						LN		17		3		false		 3   project except the location and the timeline for the job				false

		430						LN		17		4		false		 4   requirements due to the delay because of the site.				false

		431						LN		17		5		false		 5                   Job performance goals that the company				false

		432						LN		17		6		false		 6   has agreed to will stay the same.  They will maintain 15				false

		433						LN		17		7		false		 7   new jobs with a -- create and maintain 15 new jobs and				false

		434						LN		17		8		false		 8   an annual payroll of 800,000 with a two percent annual				false

		435						LN		17		9		false		 9   increase.  All of these jobs and payroll must be				false

		436						LN		17		10		false		10   maintained during the life of the contract.				false

		437						LN		17		11		false		11                   St. Tammany Parish's unemployment rate				false

		438						LN		17		12		false		12   as of September 2018 was 4.4 percent to the state's				false

		439						LN		17		13		false		13   average of 5 percent for the same time period.  The per				false

		440						LN		17		14		false		14   capita income for St. Tammany Parish for 2016 was				false

		441						LN		17		15		false		15   $52,109 as compared to the state per capita income for				false

		442						LN		17		16		false		16   the same time period of 42,298.				false

		443						LN		17		17		false		17                   The projected economic benefits to the				false

		444						LN		17		18		false		18   state with the new site would be a state revenue of				false

		445						LN		17		19		false		19   $1,324,000 minus the $250,000 for the EDAP and $515,000				false

		446						LN		17		20		false		20   for Quality Jobs, which would give us an approximate				false

		447						LN		17		21		false		21   state revenue of $588,000.				false

		448						LN		17		22		false		22                   Staff recommends approval of the project				false

		449						LN		17		23		false		23   modifications for the unsponsored EDAP for payroll				false

		450						LN		17		24		false		24   credit with our basic contingencies that we normally				false

		451						LN		17		25		false		25   have with a two percent annual increase of payroll, also				false

		452						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		453						LN		18		1		false		 1   keeping the original approval date of June 22nd, 2018,				false

		454						LN		18		2		false		 2   while moving the start performance period to 2019.				false

		455						LN		18		3		false		 3                   The total capital investment by Advanced				false

		456						LN		18		4		false		 4   Sinter will be $5-million by December 31st, 2019.				false

		457						LN		18		5		false		 5                   And I'll turn it over to Rudolph Von				false

		458						LN		18		6		false		 6   Liechtenstein, and he will give you a little bit more				false

		459						LN		18		7		false		 7   detail about where the project is now.				false

		460						LN		18		8		false		 8               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:				false

		461						LN		18		9		false		 9                   We'd like to start by thanking you once				false

		462						LN		18		10		false		10   again for this application.  So this is an exciting				false

		463						LN		18		11		false		11   moment for us, for Sinter Metal Technologies, which was				false

		464						LN		18		12		false		12   founded more than 50 years ago.  It's, as its name might				false

		465						LN		18		13		false		13   imply, a leading global player in the sinter technology.				false

		466						LN		18		14		false		14   Put simply, that's called technology.				false

		467						LN		18		15		false		15                   For the love of technologies and				false

		468						LN		18		16		false		16   solutions and applications that are proprietary, and				false

		469						LN		18		17		false		17   having Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies leads to				false

		470						LN		18		18		false		18   better serve the U.S. market out of Louisiana is, of				false

		471						LN		18		19		false		19   course, a good choice.  We see from the tests that we				false

		472						LN		18		20		false		20   studied, this project is effectively creating a secure,				false

		473						LN		18		21		false		21   dual-sourcing for high-tech applications soft and				false

		474						LN		18		22		false		22   critical to our products.				false

		475						LN		18		23		false		23                   This project is also very exciting				false

		476						LN		18		24		false		24   because of its nature.  The application (inaudible) of				false

		477						LN		18		25		false		25   the spectrum.  Additionally, Advanced Sinter Metal				false

		478						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		479						LN		19		1		false		 1   Technologies' Slidell facility is to be highly				false

		480						LN		19		2		false		 2   automated, among other things, high-tech, automated				false

		481						LN		19		3		false		 3   quality control systems.				false

		482						LN		19		4		false		 4                   I'd like, once again, to emphasize that				false

		483						LN		19		5		false		 5   despite the location and the schedule being pushed back,				false

		484						LN		19		6		false		 6   the project essentially remains the same.  The plans,				false

		485						LN		19		7		false		 7   stakeholders and commitments remain unchanged.				false

		486						LN		19		8		false		 8                   We'd also like the share some of the				false

		487						LN		19		9		false		 9   recent and latest developments.  So at the beginning of				false

		488						LN		19		10		false		10   November, Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies secured the				false

		489						LN		19		11		false		11   location of production in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.				false

		490						LN		19		12		false		12   As of now, most of the pieces of equipment required to				false

		491						LN		19		13		false		13   start industry production of our metal parts have been				false

		492						LN		19		14		false		14   assembled in that facility.  Advanced Sinter Metal				false

		493						LN		19		15		false		15   Technology plans to start production in the end of				false

		494						LN		19		16		false		16   January 2019, at which time you are kindly and cordially				false

		495						LN		19		17		false		17   invited.				false

		496						LN		19		18		false		18                   And as a final point, we entered into an				false

		497						LN		19		19		false		19   extending with LSU through a support letter for a				false

		498						LN		19		20		false		20   project to further confirmation to begin manufacturing				false

		499						LN		19		21		false		21   in Louisiana.  The project, with your involvement, will				false

		500						LN		19		22		false		22   come to fruition.  So, again, this is an exciting				false

		501						LN		19		23		false		23   project for us, and despite some unforeseen change, we				false

		502						LN		19		24		false		24   are grateful for the hospitality and the warm welcome				false

		503						LN		19		25		false		25   Louisiana has given to this project.				false

		504						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		505						LN		20		1		false		 1                   Thank you.  If you have any questions.				false

		506						LN		20		2		false		 2               MR. ROY:				false

		507						LN		20		3		false		 3                   Questions or comments?				false

		508						LN		20		4		false		 4               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		509						LN		20		5		false		 5                   No questions for me.  I just wanted to				false

		510						LN		20		6		false		 6   confirm my understanding that the only change is the				false

		511						LN		20		7		false		 7   start time of the project and the actual physical				false

		512						LN		20		8		false		 8   location.  Everything else that had been approved in				false

		513						LN		20		9		false		 9   June remains the same?				false

		514						LN		20		10		false		10               MR. BIENEMY:				false

		515						LN		20		11		false		11                   That is correct.				false

		516						LN		20		12		false		12               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		517						LN		20		13		false		13                   Okay.				false

		518						LN		20		14		false		14               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		519						LN		20		15		false		15                   And at this point, you're saying that				false

		520						LN		20		16		false		16   there's actually equipment that has already been				false

		521						LN		20		17		false		17   installed and the work has started?  I guess when we				false

		522						LN		20		18		false		18   approved it in June, that work had not yet started.				false

		523						LN		20		19		false		19                   I guess I kind of had the understanding				false

		524						LN		20		20		false		20   in June that you were already set to go in at the				false

		525						LN		20		21		false		21   Michoud Facility.  That seemed kind of surprising to see				false

		526						LN		20		22		false		22   that that changed.				false

		527						LN		20		23		false		23               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:				false

		528						LN		20		24		false		24                   It was indeed.  At the end of it, we was				false

		529						LN		20		25		false		25   unable to get commitment in a timely manner, and while				false

		530						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		531						LN		21		1		false		 1   for all projected, Michoud costs and energy costs, and				false

		532						LN		21		2		false		 2   so at the end, we're lucky enough to find a beautiful				false

		533						LN		21		3		false		 3   spot in Slidell to move forward in a timely manner.				false

		534						LN		21		4		false		 4               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		535						LN		21		5		false		 5                   Okay.  So you're -- how far is the				false

		536						LN		21		6		false		 6   schedule slipped then?				false

		537						LN		21		7		false		 7               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:				false

		538						LN		21		8		false		 8                   So we had a new official announcement at				false

		539						LN		21		9		false		 9   the Michoud the first of November last year, and the				false

		540						LN		21		10		false		10   understanding at the time was we could move in first				false

		541						LN		21		11		false		11   quarter of 2018.  Well, right now, production we think				false

		542						LN		21		12		false		12   will start at the end of January 2019, so it slipped one				false

		543						LN		21		13		false		13   year.				false

		544						LN		21		14		false		14               MR. BIENEMY:				false

		545						LN		21		15		false		15                   Due to one year of their time				false

		546						LN		21		16		false		16   commitments sliding back, we've had to move back the job				false

		547						LN		21		17		false		17   marker.				false

		548						LN		21		18		false		18               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		549						LN		21		19		false		19                   Okay.				false

		550						LN		21		20		false		20               MR. ROY:				false

		551						LN		21		21		false		21                   Any other questions or comments?				false

		552						LN		21		22		false		22               (No response.)				false

		553						LN		21		23		false		23               MR. JACKSON:				false

		554						LN		21		24		false		24                   Move to approve.				false

		555						LN		21		25		false		25               MR. ROY:				false

		556						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		557						LN		22		1		false		 1                   Motion for approval as presented.				false

		558						LN		22		2		false		 2               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		559						LN		22		3		false		 3                   Second.				false

		560						LN		22		4		false		 4               MR. ROY:				false

		561						LN		22		5		false		 5                   Second.				false

		562						LN		22		6		false		 6                   Any other discussion?				false

		563						LN		22		7		false		 7               (No response.)				false

		564						LN		22		8		false		 8               MR. ROY:				false

		565						LN		22		9		false		 9                   Any comments from the public?				false

		566						LN		22		10		false		10               (No response.)				false

		567						LN		22		11		false		11               MR. ROY:				false

		568						LN		22		12		false		12                   Hearing none all in favor, "aye."				false

		569						LN		22		13		false		13               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		570						LN		22		14		false		14               MR. ROY:				false

		571						LN		22		15		false		15                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		572						LN		22		16		false		16               (No response.)				false

		573						LN		22		17		false		17               MR. ROY:				false

		574						LN		22		18		false		18                   Without objection.				false

		575						LN		22		19		false		19                   Congratulations.				false

		576						LN		22		20		false		20               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:				false

		577						LN		22		21		false		21                   Thank you.				false

		578						LN		22		22		false		22               MR. ROY:				false

		579						LN		22		23		false		23                   Merci.  Bonne chance.  I think that's				false

		580						LN		22		24		false		24   correct.				false

		581						LN		22		25		false		25                   All right.  Next order of business is				false

		582						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		583						LN		23		1		false		 1   the SSBCI program, Tactical Directional Drilling.				false

		584						LN		23		2		false		 2                   Good morning.				false

		585						LN		23		3		false		 3               MS. PETE:				false

		586						LN		23		4		false		 4                   Good morning.  Today we have Mr. Stacy				false

		587						LN		23		5		false		 5   Quebodeaux, Tony Howard and Gerard Labat today to				false

		588						LN		23		6		false		 6   present Tactical Drilling.				false

		589						LN		23		7		false		 7                   Farmer's State Bank has requested a loan				false

		590						LN		23		8		false		 8   guaranty for Tactical Directional Drilling.  Tactical				false

		591						LN		23		9		false		 9   Directional Drilling is a startup company that will be				false

		592						LN		23		10		false		10   owned by Mr. Anthony Howard, Stacy Quebodeaux and Chad				false

		593						LN		23		11		false		11   Walker.  It will provide horizontal directional drilling				false

		594						LN		23		12		false		12   services to gas, oil and chemical refineries and				false

		595						LN		23		13		false		13   manufacturing facilities, utility companies and pipeline				false

		596						LN		23		14		false		14   companies.  Tactical Directional Drilling will provide a				false

		597						LN		23		15		false		15   better alternative to open trenching for laying pipe				false

		598						LN		23		16		false		16   horizontally.				false

		599						LN		23		17		false		17                   The company will specialize in smaller				false

		600						LN		23		18		false		18   jobs that competitors typically turn down due to the				false

		601						LN		23		19		false		19   significant overhead involved.  This company will pursue				false

		602						LN		23		20		false		20   the smaller drilling jobs.  The management is				false

		603						LN		23		21		false		21   experienced with Mr. Howard having 11 years with				false

		604						LN		23		22		false		22   horizontal directional drilling and civil construction,				false

		605						LN		23		23		false		23   Mr. Quebodeaux having 30 years in civil construction and				false

		606						LN		23		24		false		24   Mr. Walker having 10 years in horizontal directional				false

		607						LN		23		25		false		25   drilling.				false

		608						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		609						LN		24		1		false		 1                   Tactical will focus on the Gulf Coast				false

		610						LN		24		2		false		 2   area from Mississippi to Texas.  With the oil industry				false

		611						LN		24		3		false		 3   running multiple pipelines throughout the south,				false

		612						LN		24		4		false		 4   directional drilling is in high demand.  The drillers				false

		613						LN		24		5		false		 5   who will work with tactical have a great reputation in				false

		614						LN		24		6		false		 6   this industry and established industry contacts.				false

		615						LN		24		7		false		 7   Tactical will provide underground pipe installation for				false

		616						LN		24		8		false		 8   roadways, pipeline, wetlands, drainage and utility				false

		617						LN		24		9		false		 9   lines.				false

		618						LN		24		10		false		10                   The loan structure is an $826,000 loan				false

		619						LN		24		11		false		11   backed by equipment value at $1,032,025.  The owners				false

		620						LN		24		12		false		12   have made a significant investment.  It is a 10-year				false

		621						LN		24		13		false		13   loan with an involvement of LEDC guaranty for five				false

		622						LN		24		14		false		14   years.				false

		623						LN		24		15		false		15                   Our standard contingencies are in place.				false

		624						LN		24		16		false		16   Staff recommends approval for this application due to				false

		625						LN		24		17		false		17   the extensive experience of management and significant				false

		626						LN		24		18		false		18   investment by the owners, and the approval of this loan				false

		627						LN		24		19		false		19   will result in the creation of three jobs.				false

		628						LN		24		20		false		20                   Mr. Quebodeaux and Mr. Howard can				false

		629						LN		24		21		false		21   further elaborate on their company and if you have any				false

		630						LN		24		22		false		22   questions.				false

		631						LN		24		23		false		23               MR. ROY:				false

		632						LN		24		24		false		24                   Questions or comments so far?				false

		633						LN		24		25		false		25               (No response.)				false

		634						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		635						LN		25		1		false		 1               MR. ROY:				false

		636						LN		25		2		false		 2                   Gentlemen, do you have something you'd				false

		637						LN		25		3		false		 3   like to add?				false

		638						LN		25		4		false		 4               MR. HOWARD:				false

		639						LN		25		5		false		 5                   The one particular thing I'd really like				false

		640						LN		25		6		false		 6   to add is we have a letter with intent of work that is				false

		641						LN		25		7		false		 7   coming up, and actually he called us this morning on the				false

		642						LN		25		8		false		 8   way over here to wish us luck hoping that everything				false

		643						LN		25		9		false		 9   goes well here because he's actually looking at a job				false

		644						LN		25		10		false		10   right now in West Texas that we could probably start				false

		645						LN		25		11		false		11   sometime in the middle -- first to middle part of				false

		646						LN		25		12		false		12   February.  So the outlook is very, very promising right				false

		647						LN		25		13		false		13   now.  There's lots of work supposedly fixing to take				false

		648						LN		25		14		false		14   place in North Louisiana.  We just waiting to get a shot				false

		649						LN		25		15		false		15   at a piece of the pie, I guess I'd say.				false

		650						LN		25		16		false		16               MS. PORTER:				false

		651						LN		25		17		false		17                   Can the gentleman introduce himself,				false

		652						LN		25		18		false		18   please.				false

		653						LN		25		19		false		19               MR. HOWARD:				false

		654						LN		25		20		false		20                   Tony Howard.				false

		655						LN		25		21		false		21               MR. ROY:				false

		656						LN		25		22		false		22                   Questions, comments?				false

		657						LN		25		23		false		23               MR. JACKSON:				false

		658						LN		25		24		false		24                   Do you send a local team or do you hire				false

		659						LN		25		25		false		25   at location, if you're in West Texas, for example?				false

		660						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		661						LN		26		1		false		 1               MR. HOWARD:				false

		662						LN		26		2		false		 2                   No, sir.  It's going to be us.  Wherever				false

		663						LN		26		3		false		 3   our equipment goes, we go.				false

		664						LN		26		4		false		 4               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		665						LN		26		5		false		 5                   Does the price and recent reduction in				false

		666						LN		26		6		false		 6   the crude oil affect y'all's business models?				false

		667						LN		26		7		false		 7               MR. HOWARD:				false

		668						LN		26		8		false		 8                   No, sir.  The price of crude oil gas				false

		669						LN		26		9		false		 9   really has no affect on what it takes for us to do our				false

		670						LN		26		10		false		10   job.  It can fluctuate and go down, but it has no				false

		671						LN		26		11		false		11   overall bearing on what we have to do.				false

		672						LN		26		12		false		12               MR. QUEBODEAUX:				false

		673						LN		26		13		false		13                   A lot of jobs coming in is not just new				false

		674						LN		26		14		false		14   pipeline.  It's the replacing of the old existing				false

		675						LN		26		15		false		15   pipelines.  So, I mean, they have -- the oil has to flow				false

		676						LN		26		16		false		16   no what matter what the price is.				false

		677						LN		26		17		false		17               MR. ROY:				false

		678						LN		26		18		false		18                   Do you anticipate that most of your				false

		679						LN		26		19		false		19   business will be out of state?				false

		680						LN		26		20		false		20               MR. HOWARD:				false

		681						LN		26		21		false		21                   No, sir.  It can be in Louisiana just as				false

		682						LN		26		22		false		22   much as it could be in Texas.				false

		683						LN		26		23		false		23               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		684						LN		26		24		false		24                   I was just going to add, it's always				false

		685						LN		26		25		false		25   good to bring in that new dollar, so we like when you go				false

		686						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		687						LN		27		1		false		 1   to work out of state and bring that revenue back here.				false

		688						LN		27		2		false		 2   So that's not a bad thing.				false

		689						LN		27		3		false		 3               MR. QUEBODEAUX:				false

		690						LN		27		4		false		 4                   It's just that it will be the locals				false

		691						LN		27		5		false		 5   that -- it's going to be Louisiana people that work for.				false

		692						LN		27		6		false		 6               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		693						LN		27		7		false		 7                   That's the key.				false

		694						LN		27		8		false		 8               MR. QUEBODEAUX:				false

		695						LN		27		9		false		 9                   Exactly.				false

		696						LN		27		10		false		10               MR. ROY:				false

		697						LN		27		11		false		11                   Any other questions or comments?				false

		698						LN		27		12		false		12               (No response.)				false

		699						LN		27		13		false		13               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		700						LN		27		14		false		14                   I would just like to move favorable at				false

		701						LN		27		15		false		15   the appropriate time.				false

		702						LN		27		16		false		16               MR. ROY:				false

		703						LN		27		17		false		17                   Motion for approval as presented.				false

		704						LN		27		18		false		18               MR. SIMPSON:				false

		705						LN		27		19		false		19                   Second.				false

		706						LN		27		20		false		20               MS. DURAND:				false

		707						LN		27		21		false		21                   Second.				false

		708						LN		27		22		false		22               MR. ROY:				false

		709						LN		27		23		false		23                   Second.				false

		710						LN		27		24		false		24                   Any other discussion?				false

		711						LN		27		25		false		25               (No response.)				false

		712						PG		28		0		false		page 28				false

		713						LN		28		1		false		 1               MR. ROY:				false

		714						LN		28		2		false		 2                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."				false

		715						LN		28		3		false		 3               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		716						LN		28		4		false		 4               MR. ROY:				false

		717						LN		28		5		false		 5                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		718						LN		28		6		false		 6               (No response.)				false

		719						LN		28		7		false		 7               MR. ROY:				false

		720						LN		28		8		false		 8                   Without objection.				false

		721						LN		28		9		false		 9                   Congratulations, gentlemen.  Please keep				false

		722						LN		28		10		false		10   us posted on the future and your successes.				false

		723						LN		28		11		false		11                   Next order of business, the Treasurer's				false

		724						LN		28		12		false		12   Report.  Ms. Villa.				false

		725						LN		28		13		false		13               MS. VILLA:				false

		726						LN		28		14		false		14                   Good morning.  Ann Villa, Undersecretary				false

		727						LN		28		15		false		15   for Louisiana Economic Development.  I'll present to you				false

		728						LN		28		16		false		16   the Secretary Treasurer's Report for December 10th,				false

		729						LN		28		17		false		17   2018, Fiscal Year 2019.				false

		730						LN		28		18		false		18                   So as of today, the summary you have in				false

		731						LN		28		19		false		19   front of you shows our FY '19 budget for all programs as				false

		732						LN		28		20		false		20   $9,313,938.  And we have approved for just expenditures				false

		733						LN		28		21		false		21   for projects of $2,463,224.  And then we had the Board				false

		734						LN		28		22		false		22   approval of the pending projects of 654,875, which left				false

		735						LN		28		23		false		23   us balance of $6,195,839.  And we currently have a				false

		736						LN		28		24		false		24   million dollars in projects that are under review, which				false

		737						LN		28		25		false		25   gives us a projected yearend balance of $5,195,839.				false

		738						PG		29		0		false		page 29				false

		739						LN		29		1		false		 1                   And the detail behind that is our Small				false

		740						LN		29		2		false		 2   Business -- State Small Business Credit Initiative				false

		741						LN		29		3		false		 3   Program, which has $452,224 projects that have been				false

		742						LN		29		4		false		 4   approved this year, and we have the Tactical Drilling				false

		743						LN		29		5		false		 5   that was just approved of 154,875, so we currently have				false

		744						LN		29		6		false		 6   a balance expected in that program of $1,295,698.  And				false

		745						LN		29		7		false		 7   we do still have our $190,000 Loan Assistance Program,				false

		746						LN		29		8		false		 8   which we're not projecting any projects, so we have				false

		747						LN		29		9		false		 9   those two together, which would give us a balance of				false

		748						LN		29		10		false		10   $1,485,698 that's expected at the end of the year.				false

		749						LN		29		11		false		11                   And then for our Capital Outlay				false

		750						LN		29		12		false		12   Appropriation that we have for our Economic Development				false

		751						LN		29		13		false		13   Award Program, we have our budget for that is $7,221,141				false

		752						LN		29		14		false		14   for FY '19, and then we have projects that's been				false

		753						LN		29		15		false		15   approved for the EDAP Program of $1,561,000, and then in				false

		754						LN		29		16		false		16   our EDRED Program, we have projects of 450,000.				false

		755						LN		29		17		false		17                   We have pending the Board approval is				false

		756						LN		29		18		false		18   the Champion Home Builders, which you just approved of				false

		757						LN		29		19		false		19   500,000, which would leave us a balance for both EDAP				false

		758						LN		29		20		false		20   and EDRED of $4,710,141.  And then we have a million				false

		759						LN		29		21		false		21   dollar project that's under review, which would give us				false

		760						LN		29		22		false		22   a yearend balance of $3,710,141 for both the EDAP and				false

		761						LN		29		23		false		23   the EDRED.				false

		762						LN		29		24		false		24                   And then if you go to the next page, the				false

		763						LN		29		25		false		25   final page, our Projected Fund Balance for FY '19 that's				false

		764						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		765						LN		30		1		false		 1   available for use is $14,500 -- the expected fund				false

		766						LN		30		2		false		 2   balance available is $14,947,976, and our expenditures				false

		767						LN		30		3		false		 3   are expected at $12,027,483, which would leave a balance				false

		768						LN		30		4		false		 4   projected of $2,920,493.				false

		769						LN		30		5		false		 5                   If you have any questions on any of the				false

		770						LN		30		6		false		 6   reports.				false

		771						LN		30		7		false		 7               MR. JACKSON:				false

		772						LN		30		8		false		 8                   Just one, Studio Network Project				false

		773						LN		30		9		false		 9   canceled?				false

		774						LN		30		10		false		10               MR. BAHAM:				false

		775						LN		30		11		false		11                   Yes.  That was a project that came				false

		776						LN		30		12		false		12   before the Board back in --				false

		777						LN		30		13		false		13               MR. JACKSON:				false

		778						LN		30		14		false		14                   That was the one in New Orleans?				false

		779						LN		30		15		false		15               MR. BAHAM:				false

		780						LN		30		16		false		16                   July.				false

		781						LN		30		17		false		17                   Correct.  That was old Bally's Casino.				false

		782						LN		30		18		false		18   The project is not going forward with the bank.  They				false

		783						LN		30		19		false		19   decided to pull the loan due to some issue beyond the				false

		784						LN		30		20		false		20   bank's control and beyond our control.  It was separate				false

		785						LN		30		21		false		21   and aside from this particular project, so the bank				false

		786						LN		30		22		false		22   decided to pull it, and without a closing, we have no				false

		787						LN		30		23		false		23   guaranty at that point, so the money has now rolled back				false

		788						LN		30		24		false		24   into the availability for new loans for SSBCI.				false

		789						LN		30		25		false		25               MR. JACKSON:				false

		790						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		791						LN		31		1		false		 1                   All right.  And do we usually get notice				false

		792						LN		31		2		false		 2   when they cancel like that or do they just show up in				false

		793						LN		31		3		false		 3   the report?				false

		794						LN		31		4		false		 4               MR. BAHAM:				false

		795						LN		31		5		false		 5                   Oh, yeah, we get notice pretty quickly.				false

		796						LN		31		6		false		 6   The bank, we spoke with the bank, and then I think in				false

		797						LN		31		7		false		 7   less than 24 hours after they made their decision, we				false

		798						LN		31		8		false		 8   got an official notice from them in writing that they				false

		799						LN		31		9		false		 9   were not going to pursue this loan any further.				false

		800						LN		31		10		false		10               MR. JACKSON:				false

		801						LN		31		11		false		11                   Okay.  Thank you.				false

		802						LN		31		12		false		12               MR. ROY:				false

		803						LN		31		13		false		13                   If you look back over the last year,				false

		804						LN		31		14		false		14   what do we think we might do in terms of the number of				false

		805						LN		31		15		false		15   projects and scope of projects going into the next year?				false

		806						LN		31		16		false		16               MR. BAHAM:				false

		807						LN		31		17		false		17                   For the Loan Guaranty Program?				false

		808						LN		31		18		false		18               MR. ROY:				false

		809						LN		31		19		false		19                   Well, in general.				false

		810						LN		31		20		false		20               MR. BAHAM:				false

		811						LN		31		21		false		21                   Well, in general, as far as the Loan				false

		812						LN		31		22		false		22   Guaranty Program, we hate losing the Network Lakefront				false

		813						LN		31		23		false		23   project because that would put our available SSBCI down				false

		814						LN		31		24		false		24   to under that million dollar mark, which we've been				false

		815						LN		31		25		false		25   trying to get there.  We do have some other potential				false

		816						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		817						LN		32		1		false		 1   projects in the pipeline that we are hoping will come				false

		818						LN		32		2		false		 2   through.				false

		819						LN		32		3		false		 3                   So we've got just under 1.3 million now				false

		820						LN		32		4		false		 4   left in SSBCI, which we have used up all of the admin				false

		821						LN		32		5		false		 5   expenses associated with that, so that is the last bit				false

		822						LN		32		6		false		 6   of dollars we have from that federal program.				false

		823						LN		32		7		false		 7                   As far as EDAPs, I think we just got a				false

		824						LN		32		8		false		 8   whole batch of --				false

		825						LN		32		9		false		 9               MS. VILLA:				false

		826						LN		32		10		false		10                   We have a lot in the pipeline that's not				false

		827						LN		32		11		false		11   been announced yet, so, you know, we're encouraged by				false

		828						LN		32		12		false		12   the traction that we have on that front as well.  So I				false

		829						LN		32		13		false		13   think we've seen this past year the number of EDAPs				false

		830						LN		32		14		false		14   increase and more come in front of the Board than we had				false

		831						LN		32		15		false		15   in previous, and I just -- I expect that to kind of				false

		832						LN		32		16		false		16   continue because we've seen that in the pipeline				false

		833						LN		32		17		false		17   projects.				false

		834						LN		32		18		false		18               MR. BAHAM:				false

		835						LN		32		19		false		19                   EDAPs are a little more difficult to				false

		836						LN		32		20		false		20   predict because there's a lot of different variables				false

		837						LN		32		21		false		21   involved.				false

		838						LN		32		22		false		22                   With the loans, it's more directly tied				false

		839						LN		32		23		false		23   with our efforts getting out in the community and				false

		840						LN		32		24		false		24   keeping that awareness up within the community, also				false

		841						LN		32		25		false		25   with our partners across the state.  And we've been very				false

		842						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		843						LN		33		1		false		 1   successful in the past year in continuing to increase				false

		844						LN		33		2		false		 2   those efforts going forward to branch out beyond the				false

		845						LN		33		3		false		 3   lending community and work more on the lines of the				false

		846						LN		33		4		false		 4   ground level with our Chambers of Commerce and more				false

		847						LN		33		5		false		 5   organizations in the local communities and a regional				false

		848						LN		33		6		false		 6   focus.				false

		849						LN		33		7		false		 7               MR. ROY:				false

		850						LN		33		8		false		 8                   How many SSBCI dollars have recycled?				false

		851						LN		33		9		false		 9               MR. BAHAM:				false

		852						LN		33		10		false		10                   Have recycled?  It's over -- it's				false

		853						LN		33		11		false		11   definitely over 4-million.  I was looking at that number				false

		854						LN		33		12		false		12   last week, and it's definitely over 4-million that have				false

		855						LN		33		13		false		13   actually retoured.  I want to say it's closer to 5.  We				false

		856						LN		33		14		false		14   put a little over 8-million into the Guaranty Program,				false

		857						LN		33		15		false		15   and over half of it has definitely retoured and have				false

		858						LN		33		16		false		16   come back.				false

		859						LN		33		17		false		17                   We've got it kind of just sitting there				false

		860						LN		33		18		false		18   in a holding pattern until we use up the rest of this				false

		861						LN		33		19		false		19   1.295, so it's there.				false

		862						LN		33		20		false		20               MR. ROY:				false

		863						LN		33		21		false		21                   But it's there for use once we exhaust				false

		864						LN		33		22		false		22   what we have?				false

		865						LN		33		23		false		23               MR. BAHAM:				false

		866						LN		33		24		false		24                   Correct.				false

		867						LN		33		25		false		25               MS. GUESS:				false

		868						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		869						LN		34		1		false		 1                   We didn't have as much return back for				false

		870						LN		34		2		false		 2   2018 as we had for 2017, but the prospects for 2019 to				false

		871						LN		34		3		false		 3   come back with recycled dollars is very well.				false

		872						LN		34		4		false		 4               MR. ROY:				false

		873						LN		34		5		false		 5                   Okay.  Any other questions, comments?				false

		874						LN		34		6		false		 6               (No response.)				false

		875						LN		34		7		false		 7               MR. ROY:				false

		876						LN		34		8		false		 8                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to				false

		877						LN		34		9		false		 9   accept the Treasurer's report.				false

		878						LN		34		10		false		10               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		879						LN		34		11		false		11                   So moved.				false

		880						LN		34		12		false		12               MR. JACKSON:				false

		881						LN		34		13		false		13                   Second.				false

		882						LN		34		14		false		14               MR. ROY:				false

		883						LN		34		15		false		15                   Motion and second.				false

		884						LN		34		16		false		16                   All in favor, "aye."				false

		885						LN		34		17		false		17               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		886						LN		34		18		false		18               MR. ROY:				false

		887						LN		34		19		false		19                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		888						LN		34		20		false		20               (No response.)				false

		889						LN		34		21		false		21               MR. ROY:				false

		890						LN		34		22		false		22                   Without objection.				false

		891						LN		34		23		false		23                   The Accountant's report.  Good morning.				false

		892						LN		34		24		false		24               MS. DALGO:				false

		893						LN		34		25		false		25                   Good morning.  Hello.  I'm Crystal				false

		894						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		895						LN		35		1		false		 1   Dalgo.  The LEDC Accountant Status Report that I'm				false

		896						LN		35		2		false		 2   presenting is as of November 30th, 2018.				false

		897						LN		35		3		false		 3                   The Direct Loan Portfolio is at zero				false

		898						LN		35		4		false		 4   doctors as the Golf Balls loan was paid off in May of				false

		899						LN		35		5		false		 5   2018.				false

		900						LN		35		6		false		 6               For EDAP Loan Portfolio, there's one loan,				false

		901						LN		35		7		false		 7   which is Town of Colfax, and it totals $345,431.  They				false

		902						LN		35		8		false		 8   made their once-a-year payment in October.				false

		903						LN		35		9		false		 9                   The Guaranteed Loan Portfolio is at zero				false

		904						LN		35		10		false		10   dollars.  Deep Hole Drilling was paid off in December				false

		905						LN		35		11		false		11   2017.				false

		906						LN		35		12		false		12                   The allowance for Direct Loan Losses is				false

		907						LN		35		13		false		13   set at 15 percent, but it totals zero as the direct loan				false

		908						LN		35		14		false		14   was paid off in May.  The allowance for the EDAP Loan				false

		909						LN		35		15		false		15   Losses is set at 15 percent and totals $51,815.  And the				false

		910						LN		35		16		false		16   allowance for the Guaranteed Loan Losses is set at 18				false

		911						LN		35		17		false		17   percent and totals zero dollars, but the guaranty loan				false

		912						LN		35		18		false		18   was paid off in December.				false

		913						LN		35		19		false		19                   So the SSBCI Guaranty Loan Portfolio,				false

		914						LN		35		20		false		20   for it we have 21 loans and it's totaling $6,397,115 as				false

		915						LN		35		21		false		21   of November 30th.  And as of November 30th, we have two				false

		916						LN		35		22		false		22   of the loans, C. Booty Enterprises and Reed's Lawn Care				false

		917						LN		35		23		false		23   are 30 days late and Acadian Cypress is reporting at 60				false

		918						LN		35		24		false		24   days late.				false

		919						LN		35		25		false		25                   The allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed Loan				false

		920						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		921						LN		36		1		false		 1   Losses is set at 18 percent for the current amounts, and				false

		922						LN		36		2		false		 2   then for past due amounts, they reflect between 25 and				false

		923						LN		36		3		false		 3   100 percent.  As of November 30th, the allowance totals				false

		924						LN		36		4		false		 4   $1,458,773, and reflects at 22.8 percent.				false

		925						LN		36		5		false		 5                   And that concludes my report.  Are there				false

		926						LN		36		6		false		 6   any questions?				false

		927						LN		36		7		false		 7               MR. JACKSON:				false

		928						LN		36		8		false		 8                   Reed's Lawn Care, is that one that we				false

		929						LN		36		9		false		 9   just approved in the last few months or was that an				false

		930						LN		36		10		false		10   older one?				false

		931						LN		36		11		false		11               MR. BAHAM:				false

		932						LN		36		12		false		12                   That was one approved last fiscal year.				false

		933						LN		36		13		false		13   I believe it was last fiscal year we did it.				false

		934						LN		36		14		false		14               MR. JACKSON:				false

		935						LN		36		15		false		15                   That's fairly recent, a little over a				false

		936						LN		36		16		false		16   year.				false

		937						LN		36		17		false		17               MR. BAHAM:				false

		938						LN		36		18		false		18                   A little over a year.				false

		939						LN		36		19		false		19               MR. JACKSON:				false

		940						LN		36		20		false		20                   Okay.  That's a different lawn care, I'm				false

		941						LN		36		21		false		21   thinking.				false

		942						LN		36		22		false		22               MR. BAHAM:				false

		943						LN		36		23		false		23                   The C. Booty Enterprises, it's just a				false

		944						LN		36		24		false		24   notorious late payer since the beginning of the loan.				false

		945						LN		36		25		false		25   They're paying, but they're paying late.				false

		946						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		947						LN		37		1		false		 1                   We did check on Reed's as well, and				false

		948						LN		37		2		false		 2   matter of fact, after this was put together, I think				false

		949						LN		37		3		false		 3   this was at the end of November, they paid December 4th,				false

		950						LN		37		4		false		 4   the day we actually called, they had just made their				false

		951						LN		37		5		false		 5   payment.  So they're caught up.  This is just --				false

		952						LN		37		6		false		 6               MR. JACKSON:				false

		953						LN		37		7		false		 7                   I thought we approved a lawn care				false

		954						LN		37		8		false		 8   earlier.				false

		955						LN		37		9		false		 9               MR. BAHAM:				false

		956						LN		37		10		false		10                   It was discussed at one of the other				false

		957						LN		37		11		false		11   meetings over the summer, so that could be where you're				false

		958						LN		37		12		false		12   recalling it from.				false

		959						LN		37		13		false		13               MR. ROY:				false

		960						LN		37		14		false		14                   One question before you go, are we				false

		961						LN		37		15		false		15   comfortable with our calculations or percentages?  You				false

		962						LN		37		16		false		16   know, we adjusted things, what, a year or two back, time				false

		963						LN		37		17		false		17   flies, but when you historically evaluate things based				false

		964						LN		37		18		false		18   on your historic numbers, which we have some of, but				false

		965						LN		37		19		false		19   some of the programs -- it is SSBCI is relatively new?				false

		966						LN		37		20		false		20   Are we comfortable with your calculation or percentage				false

		967						LN		37		21		false		21   calculations, et cetera, across the board?				false

		968						LN		37		22		false		22               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		969						LN		37		23		false		23                   Referring to the reduction in collateral				false

		970						LN		37		24		false		24   requirement percentage?				false

		971						LN		37		25		false		25               MR. ROY:				false

		972						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		973						LN		38		1		false		 1                   Well, the reserve.				false

		974						LN		38		2		false		 2               MS. MITCHELL:				false

		975						LN		38		3		false		 3                   Reserve.				false

		976						LN		38		4		false		 4               MS. GUESS:				false

		977						LN		38		5		false		 5                   Yes.  I think we are still comfortable				false

		978						LN		38		6		false		 6   with those numbers.  We still are in a position where				false

		979						LN		38		7		false		 7   we've not had a default yet.  Those that are past due,				false

		980						LN		38		8		false		 8   we are working with the banks to make sure that they're				false

		981						LN		38		9		false		 9   working with the -- or having a workout plan, and I				false

		982						LN		38		10		false		10   think Acadian Cypress and Hardwood is one of the ones				false

		983						LN		38		11		false		11   that we are really looking at waiting for them to give				false

		984						LN		38		12		false		12   us a workout plan.  But I think with the dollar amount				false

		985						LN		38		13		false		13   that we've already set aside, at this time, we feel				false

		986						LN		38		14		false		14   they're sufficient.				false

		987						LN		38		15		false		15               MR. ROY:				false

		988						LN		38		16		false		16                   We constantly think about it, and I				false

		989						LN		38		17		false		17   would guess with the reserve, should we and whether or				false

		990						LN		38		18		false		18   not it's adequate.				false

		991						LN		38		19		false		19               MS. GUESS:				false

		992						LN		38		20		false		20                   Yes.				false

		993						LN		38		21		false		21               MR. ROY:				false

		994						LN		38		22		false		22                   All right.  Thank you.				false

		995						LN		38		23		false		23                   I'll entertain a motion to accept the				false

		996						LN		38		24		false		24   Accountant's Report.				false

		997						LN		38		25		false		25                   Motion and second.				false

		998						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		999						LN		39		1		false		 1                   All in favor, "aye."				false

		1000						LN		39		2		false		 2               (Several members respond "aye.")				false

		1001						LN		39		3		false		 3               MR. ROY:				false

		1002						LN		39		4		false		 4                   All opposed, "nay."				false

		1003						LN		39		5		false		 5               (No response.)				false

		1004						LN		39		6		false		 6               MR. ROY:				false

		1005						LN		39		7		false		 7                   Without objection.				false

		1006						LN		39		8		false		 8               MS. VILLA:				false

		1007						LN		39		9		false		 9                   I was just going to state, I think at				false

		1008						LN		39		10		false		10   the next Board meeting, shouldn't we expect to hear from				false

		1009						LN		39		11		false		11   the accountant and the valuation change?				false

		1010						LN		39		12		false		12               MR. BAHAM:				false

		1011						LN		39		13		false		13                   Yeah.  I think we have to do our				false

		1012						LN		39		14		false		14   closeout sometime between now and as soon as possible.				false

		1013						LN		39		15		false		15   It looks like it will probably be ready for February.				false

		1014						LN		39		16		false		16               MS. VILLA:				false

		1015						LN		39		17		false		17                   February.  Okay.				false

		1016						LN		39		18		false		18               MR. BAHAM:				false

		1017						LN		39		19		false		19                   I believe all of you got a copy.  I				false

		1018						LN		39		20		false		20   think we e-mailed it several times with the 2019 date.				false

		1019						LN		39		21		false		21   Just as FYI and reminder, we are moving the Board dates				false

		1020						LN		39		22		false		22   up two weeks to the second Thursday of every month.  So				false

		1021						LN		39		23		false		23   the first one in 2019 would be the 10th of January.  So				false

		1022						LN		39		24		false		24   it is coinciding with this Board meeting fairly well.  I				false
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Call to order the Board of Directors of


·3· ·the Louisiana Economic Development Corporation.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Rollcall, please.


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. A.J. Roy.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


·9· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Alden Andre.


11· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


12· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Louis Reine.


14· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


15· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Charles Jackson.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


19· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Ms. Mandi Mitchell.


21· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


23· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Cal Simpson.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


·2· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Nittin Kamath.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. KAMATH:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Sue Durand.


·8· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Here.


10· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Kimberly Johnson.


12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


13· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Todd McDonald.


15· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


16· · · · · · · ·MS. SIMMONS:


17· · · · · · · · · ·We have a quorum.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· We have a quorum.· We do


20· ·have a quorum.


21· · · · · · · · · ·And welcome, everyone, to our December


22· ·meeting.· I'll ask everyone to please silence your cell


23· ·phone.


24· · · · · · · · · ·The first order of business is the


25· ·presentation of the minutes of the LEDC Board meeting of
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·1· ·July 27th.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to approve as presented; second.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?


·4· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."


·7· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


10· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection, so ordered.


13· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business is the Screening


14· ·Committee minutes, September the 28th.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Move to accept.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to accept as presented.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


23· · · · · · · · · ·Any discussion?


24· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."


·2· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· House can bring us up to


·9· ·speed on two in-house approvals.


10· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.


11· · · · · · · ·MS. DOIN:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Marissa Doin.· I have one


13· ·loan update for y'all today:· Vinh Loi Corporation.


14· ·It's a holding company that was established this year,


15· ·2018, created to purchase a building for an auto repair


16· ·shop.· There are two equal owners, Kenneth Duong and


17· ·Dennis Dang.


18· · · · · · · · · ·This one was brought to us by United


19· ·Community Bank.· They requested a 75 percent LED


20· ·guaranty for a total loan of $157,500 for 60 months.


21· · · · · · · · · ·As a result of the loan, Vinh Loi


22· ·Corporation will be creating two full-time jobs and


23· ·retaining two jobs.· The funds will be used to purchase


24· ·a second location here in Baton Rouge.· The building


25· ·will be upgraded with personal funds of the owners.· It
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·1· ·will also be backed by real estate of the building


·2· ·valued at 210,000.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Sales have been continually consistent,


·4· ·and the business is profitable.· And this was approved


·5· ·by staff in October.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?


·7· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·No.· Thank you.


10· · · · · · · ·MS. PETE:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· I have another loan that


12· ·was approved, CMED Corporation.


13· · · · · · · · · ·CMED Corporation's loan guaranty


14· ·application was presented to us by Farmer's State Bank.


15· ·It was from the acquisition of an existing oil field


16· ·supply company, Production Rental & Supply, which was


17· ·found in 2003.· The company was located in Lafayette,


18· ·Louisiana.· PRS was a well-known oil field company in


19· ·its earliest days and remained open for 15 years.· PRS


20· ·targeted drilling, production and completion market.


21· ·PRS's clientele included Baker Hughes, Cardinal Services


22· ·and Pioneer Wireline.· PRS offered a full range of


23· ·safety supplies, hardware, power tools and other


24· ·supplies for the oil field industry.· The owner had


25· ·decided to sell the company due to extenuating
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·1· ·circumstances.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·CMED Corporation was started by Ms. Edna


·3· ·Sue Turner, David Billeaud, Herbert Turner and Coby


·4· ·Bernard.· The management team has an extensive


·5· ·background in the oil field tool supply industry.· Edna


·6· ·and Herbert Turner have been the owners and operators of


·7· ·Bulldog Services, LLC, an oil field services company in


·8· ·Lafayette, Louisiana since 2012.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Farmer's State Bank is structuring the


10· ·loan for a $200,000 term loan.· The loan guaranty


11· ·request was for 75 percent for three years.· The loan


12· ·was secured by the inventory and equipment and further


13· ·supported by the unlimited guarantees of the owners.


14· · · · · · · · · ·The approval of this loan created three


15· ·new jobs and retained one job, and the standard


16· ·contingencies are in place.


17· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions?


18· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


19· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


20· · · · · · · · · ·The next order of business is the EDAP


21· ·program that's unsponsored, Champion Home Builders,


22· ·Incorporated.


23· · · · · · · · · ·Morning, gentlemen.


24· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Stanley Bienemy representing staff
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·1· ·today, I have with me Mr. Tom Stoneburner representing


·2· ·Champion Home Builders, LLC (sic).· This is an


·3· ·unsponsored EDAP award for payroll credit in the amount


·4· ·requested of $500,000.· The company will be located in


·5· ·Vernon Parish located at 350 Industrial Park Road in


·6· ·Leesville, Louisiana.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·The company is the leading manufacturer


·8· ·of manufactured homes, modular homes as well as mobile


·9· ·homes.· The job performance goals of the company has


10· ·agreed to are to maintain 200 new jobs with an annual


11· ·payroll of $8.2-million.· All of these jobs and payroll


12· ·must be remain during the life of the contract.


13· · · · · · · · · ·Vernon Parish's unemployment rate was


14· ·6.4 percent as of September 2018, compared to the state


15· ·rate of 5 percent for the same time period.· The per


16· ·capita income for Vernon Parish in 2016 was $38,929


17· ·compared to a state per capita income of $42,298.


18· · · · · · · · · ·The projected economic benefit to the


19· ·state is a projected state revenue of $4,229,064, minus


20· ·the $500,000 EDAP, and $3,314,064 for Quality Jobs, an


21· ·estimation of over 10 years, which would give the state


22· ·a net revenue of $415,000.


23· · · · · · · · · ·The project will represent a


24· ·$1.3-million investment in the area by Champion, and the


25· ·company will renovate two existing buildings totaling
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·1· ·246,000 square feet in the Leesville Northside


·2· ·Industrial park.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·The EDAP funds will be used to purchase


·4· ·capital equipment, which can be used -- (inaudible) --,


·5· ·and the company also plans to bring 200 new direct jobs


·6· ·with an annual salary of 35,000 plus benefits.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Staff recommends approval of this


·8· ·project as an unsponsored EDAP payroll credit award with


·9· ·our basic contingencies put in place as well as a


10· ·first-position lien on equipment or equivalent


11· ·collateral sufficient to reasonably secure payments that


12· ·will become due.· The company has agreed to create and


13· ·maintain 200 jobs to maintain through the life of the


14· ·contract with the above-state payroll through 2028.· The


15· ·capital investment by Champion Home Builders will be


16· ·$1.3-million by December 31st, 2019.


17· · · · · · · · · ·And we'll turn it over to Mr.


18· ·Stoneburner to speak a little bit about the project.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:


20· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· My name is Tom Stoneburner.


21· ·I will be the General Manager of the operation in


22· ·Leesville, and I represent Skyline and Champion in this


23· ·matter here today.


24· · · · · · · · · ·And just to give you a little quick


25· ·detail about the company, we do build manufactured
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·1· ·housing, and we can build anything from a small section,


·2· ·double section up to a hotel or an apartment complex.


·3· ·We did build two motels/hotels in Leesville out by the


·4· ·gate at Fort Polk, so we do have that ability as a


·5· ·company.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Our beginning product we will build in


·7· ·Leesville will be the single section, doublewide section


·8· ·because that's what we do to train our employees.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·The company has 5,500 employees and 28


10· ·factories, so this will be number 29.· Upon the


11· ·approval, I'm ready to go.· There will be a construction


12· ·phase at the factory lasting about 90 days, and in that


13· ·90 days, I'll hire 20 to 25 employees to do the


14· ·construction work to retrofit buildings so that the


15· ·construction processes can begin about April.


16· · · · · · · · · ·I'll bring in approximately 50 employees


17· ·at the beginning, and should start hiring and training


18· ·them in late February, first of March so that we can


19· ·train them how to do the jobs.· And quality is very


20· ·important in our factories because these are homes and


21· ·we do some extreme.· I will raise production.· I will


22· ·expect employment to be somewhere near 100 by the end of


23· ·the year as we continue these training processes and


24· ·ramp up production with the target of about 200


25· ·employees, seven to eight homes a day, somewhere in four
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·1· ·months.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·That's kind of the synopsis.· What kind


·3· ·of restricts that from even going faster is that we have


·4· ·to develop our product, what type of houses we will


·5· ·build.· Predominantly we will sell in Louisiana.· Our


·6· ·employees will predominantly come from Louisiana, and so


·7· ·we have to do all of this training on our product and


·8· ·our distribution to retailers here in Louisiana.· So


·9· ·it's takes about 24 months to get that going.


10· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions for me?


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Questions or comments?


13· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Have y'all started any process of


15· ·looking -- that seems like a significant amount of


16· ·employees in a relatively small community to find that


17· ·many employees.· Do you foresee that being a problem?


18· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:


19· · · · · · · · · ·I don't.· I have been on the job for


20· ·about two weeks, and I did -- I'm moving here from


21· ·Nashville, Tennessee, so I've kind of met a lot of


22· ·people, talked with a lot of people.· We did have a job


23· ·fair in Leesville about a year ago to check the


24· ·employment numbers, and it looked very positive.· And


25· ·from around town, I am overwhelmed by people wanting to
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·1· ·come to work.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·What's the nature of the equipment that


·4· ·we're liening against?· Is it built-in for a special


·5· ·purpose or being acquired?


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·It will be special purpose, but it won't


·8· ·be industry specific, but it will be large capital


·9· ·equipment.· I looked on the equipment list, and there


10· ·was some large welding materials, large moving materials


11· ·for the modular pieces of it.· So while it will be


12· ·specialized, it won't be industry specific.· It can be


13· ·used for multiple industries.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Can you design for the local market?


16· ·You don't use the same sorts of designs that are being


17· ·manufactured elsewhere?


18· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:


19· · · · · · · · · ·We will take a look at those designs


20· ·elsewhere and make sure that they do fit into this


21· ·market.· The housing market is regional, but we will


22· ·start with what we have on the board already and fit


23· ·that.


24· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


25· · · · · · · · · ·And I guess if you're selling primarily
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·1· ·in Louisiana, you're comfortable that you've got a


·2· ·product that -- or you'll be able to design a product


·3· ·that will be fairly effective?


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Prior to coming to Leesville, I was


·6· ·running the factory in Dresden, Tennessee selling into


·7· ·Louisiana, so I'm pretty familiar with what product


·8· ·sells here.· I just have to come down and not copy what


·9· ·another factory has been doing and look at price points


10· ·and factory-owned in high volume in Louisiana.


11· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Other questions?


15· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Actually, my question had been asked, so


17· ·at the appropriate time, I would like to move favorable.


18· ·This project will bring 200 jobs to a region in our


19· ·state that has, for a number of years, carried an


20· ·unemployment rate that has been higher than the state's


21· ·average unemployment rates, so these are sorely-needed


22· ·jobs in the western portion of our state.


23· · · · · · · · · ·And I'd like to commend the work that


24· ·has been done on this project to present to the Board


25· ·not just the benefit to the company, but the benefit to
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·1· ·the state through the economic impact of the project


·2· ·along with the jobs for this community.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·So at the appropriate time, I would like


·4· ·to move favorable.


·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· We'll take that as a motion


·7· ·now.


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Move to accept.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Second?


12· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


16· · · · · · · · · ·Any other discussion?


17· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."


20· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


23· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


24· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations.· Please keep us posted,


·2· ·and we wish you the best.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. STONEBURNER:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, sir.


·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public along those


·7· ·lines?


·8· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


11· · · · · · · · · ·We have a modification of an EDAP award,


12· ·Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies, Inc.


13· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning again.· Stanley Bienemy


15· ·representing staff today.· We have an EDAP modification


16· ·request to increase the approved and unsponsored EDAP in


17· ·the amount of 250,000 that was previously approved


18· ·about.


19· · · · · · · · · ·Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies was


20· ·originally approved on June 22nd, 2018 by this Board,


21· ·and the company was to be located at the Michoud


22· ·Assembly Facility in Orleans Parish.· Unfortunately,


23· ·NASA and Advanced Sinter were unable to come to terms


24· ·which would meet both companies' requirements and


25· ·timelines.· Advanced Sinter was proactive and found an
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·1· ·alternate site located in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Nothing materially changed about the


·3· ·project except the location and the timeline for the job


·4· ·requirements due to the delay because of the site.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Job performance goals that the company


·6· ·has agreed to will stay the same.· They will maintain 15


·7· ·new jobs with a -- create and maintain 15 new jobs and


·8· ·an annual payroll of 800,000 with a two percent annual


·9· ·increase.· All of these jobs and payroll must be


10· ·maintained during the life of the contract.


11· · · · · · · · · ·St. Tammany Parish's unemployment rate


12· ·as of September 2018 was 4.4 percent to the state's


13· ·average of 5 percent for the same time period.· The per


14· ·capita income for St. Tammany Parish for 2016 was


15· ·$52,109 as compared to the state per capita income for


16· ·the same time period of 42,298.


17· · · · · · · · · ·The projected economic benefits to the


18· ·state with the new site would be a state revenue of


19· ·$1,324,000 minus the $250,000 for the EDAP and $515,000


20· ·for Quality Jobs, which would give us an approximate


21· ·state revenue of $588,000.


22· · · · · · · · · ·Staff recommends approval of the project


23· ·modifications for the unsponsored EDAP for payroll


24· ·credit with our basic contingencies that we normally


25· ·have with a two percent annual increase of payroll, also
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·1· ·keeping the original approval date of June 22nd, 2018,


·2· ·while moving the start performance period to 2019.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·The total capital investment by Advanced


·4· ·Sinter will be $5-million by December 31st, 2019.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·And I'll turn it over to Rudolph Von


·6· ·Liechtenstein, and he will give you a little bit more


·7· ·detail about where the project is now.


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·We'd like to start by thanking you once


10· ·again for this application.· So this is an exciting


11· ·moment for us, for Sinter Metal Technologies, which was


12· ·founded more than 50 years ago.· It's, as its name might


13· ·imply, a leading global player in the sinter technology.


14· ·Put simply, that's called technology.


15· · · · · · · · · ·For the love of technologies and


16· ·solutions and applications that are proprietary, and


17· ·having Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies leads to


18· ·better serve the U.S. market out of Louisiana is, of


19· ·course, a good choice.· We see from the tests that we


20· ·studied, this project is effectively creating a secure,


21· ·dual-sourcing for high-tech applications soft and


22· ·critical to our products.


23· · · · · · · · · ·This project is also very exciting


24· ·because of its nature.· The application (inaudible) of


25· ·the spectrum.· Additionally, Advanced Sinter Metal
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·1· ·Technologies' Slidell facility is to be highly


·2· ·automated, among other things, high-tech, automated


·3· ·quality control systems.


·4· · · · · · · · · ·I'd like, once again, to emphasize that


·5· ·despite the location and the schedule being pushed back,


·6· ·the project essentially remains the same.· The plans,


·7· ·stakeholders and commitments remain unchanged.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·We'd also like the share some of the


·9· ·recent and latest developments.· So at the beginning of


10· ·November, Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies secured the


11· ·location of production in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.


12· ·As of now, most of the pieces of equipment required to


13· ·start industry production of our metal parts have been


14· ·assembled in that facility.· Advanced Sinter Metal


15· ·Technology plans to start production in the end of


16· ·January 2019, at which time you are kindly and cordially


17· ·invited.


18· · · · · · · · · ·And as a final point, we entered into an


19· ·extending with LSU through a support letter for a


20· ·project to further confirmation to begin manufacturing


21· ·in Louisiana.· The project, with your involvement, will


22· ·come to fruition.· So, again, this is an exciting


23· ·project for us, and despite some unforeseen change, we


24· ·are grateful for the hospitality and the warm welcome


25· ·Louisiana has given to this project.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.· If you have any questions.


·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Questions or comments?


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·No questions for me.· I just wanted to


·6· ·confirm my understanding that the only change is the


·7· ·start time of the project and the actual physical


·8· ·location.· Everything else that had been approved in


·9· ·June remains the same?


10· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:


11· · · · · · · · · ·That is correct.


12· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


15· · · · · · · · · ·And at this point, you're saying that


16· ·there's actually equipment that has already been


17· ·installed and the work has started?· I guess when we


18· ·approved it in June, that work had not yet started.


19· · · · · · · · · ·I guess I kind of had the understanding


20· ·in June that you were already set to go in at the


21· ·Michoud Facility.· That seemed kind of surprising to see


22· ·that that changed.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:


24· · · · · · · · · ·It was indeed.· At the end of it, we was


25· ·unable to get commitment in a timely manner, and while
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·1· ·for all projected, Michoud costs and energy costs, and


·2· ·so at the end, we're lucky enough to find a beautiful


·3· ·spot in Slidell to move forward in a timely manner.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· So you're -- how far is the


·6· ·schedule slipped then?


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·So we had a new official announcement at


·9· ·the Michoud the first of November last year, and the


10· ·understanding at the time was we could move in first


11· ·quarter of 2018.· Well, right now, production we think


12· ·will start at the end of January 2019, so it slipped one


13· ·year.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. BIENEMY:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Due to one year of their time


16· ·commitments sliding back, we've had to move back the job


17· ·marker.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions or comments?


22· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


23· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Move to approve.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Motion for approval as presented.


·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


·6· · · · · · · · · ·Any other discussion?


·7· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Any comments from the public?


10· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none all in favor, "aye."


13· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


15· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


16· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


19· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Merci.· Bonne chance.· I think that's


24· ·correct.


25· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Next order of business is
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·1· ·the SSBCI program, Tactical Directional Drilling.


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.


·3· · · · · · · ·MS. PETE:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Today we have Mr. Stacy


·5· ·Quebodeaux, Tony Howard and Gerard Labat today to


·6· ·present Tactical Drilling.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Farmer's State Bank has requested a loan


·8· ·guaranty for Tactical Directional Drilling.· Tactical


·9· ·Directional Drilling is a startup company that will be


10· ·owned by Mr. Anthony Howard, Stacy Quebodeaux and Chad


11· ·Walker.· It will provide horizontal directional drilling


12· ·services to gas, oil and chemical refineries and


13· ·manufacturing facilities, utility companies and pipeline


14· ·companies.· Tactical Directional Drilling will provide a


15· ·better alternative to open trenching for laying pipe


16· ·horizontally.


17· · · · · · · · · ·The company will specialize in smaller


18· ·jobs that competitors typically turn down due to the


19· ·significant overhead involved.· This company will pursue


20· ·the smaller drilling jobs.· The management is


21· ·experienced with Mr. Howard having 11 years with


22· ·horizontal directional drilling and civil construction,


23· ·Mr. Quebodeaux having 30 years in civil construction and


24· ·Mr. Walker having 10 years in horizontal directional


25· ·drilling.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Tactical will focus on the Gulf Coast


·2· ·area from Mississippi to Texas.· With the oil industry


·3· ·running multiple pipelines throughout the south,


·4· ·directional drilling is in high demand.· The drillers


·5· ·who will work with tactical have a great reputation in


·6· ·this industry and established industry contacts.


·7· ·Tactical will provide underground pipe installation for


·8· ·roadways, pipeline, wetlands, drainage and utility


·9· ·lines.


10· · · · · · · · · ·The loan structure is an $826,000 loan


11· ·backed by equipment value at $1,032,025.· The owners


12· ·have made a significant investment.· It is a 10-year


13· ·loan with an involvement of LEDC guaranty for five


14· ·years.


15· · · · · · · · · ·Our standard contingencies are in place.


16· ·Staff recommends approval for this application due to


17· ·the extensive experience of management and significant


18· ·investment by the owners, and the approval of this loan


19· ·will result in the creation of three jobs.


20· · · · · · · · · ·Mr. Quebodeaux and Mr. Howard can


21· ·further elaborate on their company and if you have any


22· ·questions.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Questions or comments so far?


25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Gentlemen, do you have something you'd


·3· ·like to add?


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·The one particular thing I'd really like


·6· ·to add is we have a letter with intent of work that is


·7· ·coming up, and actually he called us this morning on the


·8· ·way over here to wish us luck hoping that everything


·9· ·goes well here because he's actually looking at a job


10· ·right now in West Texas that we could probably start


11· ·sometime in the middle -- first to middle part of


12· ·February.· So the outlook is very, very promising right


13· ·now.· There's lots of work supposedly fixing to take


14· ·place in North Louisiana.· We just waiting to get a shot


15· ·at a piece of the pie, I guess I'd say.


16· · · · · · · ·MS. PORTER:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Can the gentleman introduce himself,


18· ·please.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Tony Howard.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Questions, comments?


23· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Do you send a local team or do you hire


25· ·at location, if you're in West Texas, for example?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·No, sir.· It's going to be us.· Wherever


·3· ·our equipment goes, we go.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Does the price and recent reduction in


·6· ·the crude oil affect y'all's business models?


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·No, sir.· The price of crude oil gas


·9· ·really has no affect on what it takes for us to do our


10· ·job.· It can fluctuate and go down, but it has no


11· ·overall bearing on what we have to do.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. QUEBODEAUX:


13· · · · · · · · · ·A lot of jobs coming in is not just new


14· ·pipeline.· It's the replacing of the old existing


15· ·pipelines.· So, I mean, they have -- the oil has to flow


16· ·no what matter what the price is.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Do you anticipate that most of your


19· ·business will be out of state?


20· · · · · · · ·MR. HOWARD:


21· · · · · · · · · ·No, sir.· It can be in Louisiana just as


22· ·much as it could be in Texas.


23· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


24· · · · · · · · · ·I was just going to add, it's always


25· ·good to bring in that new dollar, so we like when you go


Page 27
·1· ·to work out of state and bring that revenue back here.


·2· ·So that's not a bad thing.


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. QUEBODEAUX:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·It's just that it will be the locals


·5· ·that -- it's going to be Louisiana people that work for.


·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·That's the key.


·8· · · · · · · ·MR. QUEBODEAUX:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Exactly.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Any other questions or comments?


12· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


13· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


14· · · · · · · · · ·I would just like to move favorable at


15· ·the appropriate time.


16· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


17· · · · · · · · · ·Motion for approval as presented.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


20· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


24· · · · · · · · · ·Any other discussion?


25· · · · · · · ·(No response.)
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·2· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."


·3· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·Congratulations, gentlemen.· Please keep


10· ·us posted on the future and your successes.


11· · · · · · · · · ·Next order of business, the Treasurer's


12· ·Report.· Ms. Villa.


13· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Ann Villa, Undersecretary


15· ·for Louisiana Economic Development.· I'll present to you


16· ·the Secretary Treasurer's Report for December 10th,


17· ·2018, Fiscal Year 2019.


18· · · · · · · · · ·So as of today, the summary you have in


19· ·front of you shows our FY '19 budget for all programs as


20· ·$9,313,938.· And we have approved for just expenditures


21· ·for projects of $2,463,224.· And then we had the Board


22· ·approval of the pending projects of 654,875, which left


23· ·us balance of $6,195,839.· And we currently have a


24· ·million dollars in projects that are under review, which


25· ·gives us a projected yearend balance of $5,195,839.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·And the detail behind that is our Small


·2· ·Business -- State Small Business Credit Initiative


·3· ·Program, which has $452,224 projects that have been


·4· ·approved this year, and we have the Tactical Drilling


·5· ·that was just approved of 154,875, so we currently have


·6· ·a balance expected in that program of $1,295,698.· And


·7· ·we do still have our $190,000 Loan Assistance Program,


·8· ·which we're not projecting any projects, so we have


·9· ·those two together, which would give us a balance of


10· ·$1,485,698 that's expected at the end of the year.


11· · · · · · · · · ·And then for our Capital Outlay


12· ·Appropriation that we have for our Economic Development


13· ·Award Program, we have our budget for that is $7,221,141


14· ·for FY '19, and then we have projects that's been


15· ·approved for the EDAP Program of $1,561,000, and then in


16· ·our EDRED Program, we have projects of 450,000.


17· · · · · · · · · ·We have pending the Board approval is


18· ·the Champion Home Builders, which you just approved of


19· ·500,000, which would leave us a balance for both EDAP


20· ·and EDRED of $4,710,141.· And then we have a million


21· ·dollar project that's under review, which would give us


22· ·a yearend balance of $3,710,141 for both the EDAP and


23· ·the EDRED.


24· · · · · · · · · ·And then if you go to the next page, the


25· ·final page, our Projected Fund Balance for FY '19 that's


Page 30
·1· ·available for use is $14,500 -- the expected fund


·2· ·balance available is $14,947,976, and our expenditures


·3· ·are expected at $12,027,483, which would leave a balance


·4· ·projected of $2,920,493.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·If you have any questions on any of the


·6· ·reports.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Just one, Studio Network Project


·9· ·canceled?


10· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· That was a project that came


12· ·before the Board back in --


13· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


14· · · · · · · · · ·That was the one in New Orleans?


15· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


16· · · · · · · · · ·July.


17· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.· That was old Bally's Casino.


18· ·The project is not going forward with the bank.· They


19· ·decided to pull the loan due to some issue beyond the


20· ·bank's control and beyond our control.· It was separate


21· ·and aside from this particular project, so the bank


22· ·decided to pull it, and without a closing, we have no


23· ·guaranty at that point, so the money has now rolled back


24· ·into the availability for new loans for SSBCI.


25· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


Page 31
·1· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· And do we usually get notice


·2· ·when they cancel like that or do they just show up in


·3· ·the report?


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Oh, yeah, we get notice pretty quickly.


·6· ·The bank, we spoke with the bank, and then I think in


·7· ·less than 24 hours after they made their decision, we


·8· ·got an official notice from them in writing that they


·9· ·were not going to pursue this loan any further.


10· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


11· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Thank you.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


13· · · · · · · · · ·If you look back over the last year,


14· ·what do we think we might do in terms of the number of


15· ·projects and scope of projects going into the next year?


16· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


17· · · · · · · · · ·For the Loan Guaranty Program?


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


19· · · · · · · · · ·Well, in general.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


21· · · · · · · · · ·Well, in general, as far as the Loan


22· ·Guaranty Program, we hate losing the Network Lakefront


23· ·project because that would put our available SSBCI down


24· ·to under that million dollar mark, which we've been


25· ·trying to get there.· We do have some other potential
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·1· ·projects in the pipeline that we are hoping will come


·2· ·through.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·So we've got just under 1.3 million now


·4· ·left in SSBCI, which we have used up all of the admin


·5· ·expenses associated with that, so that is the last bit


·6· ·of dollars we have from that federal program.


·7· · · · · · · · · ·As far as EDAPs, I think we just got a


·8· ·whole batch of --


·9· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


10· · · · · · · · · ·We have a lot in the pipeline that's not


11· ·been announced yet, so, you know, we're encouraged by


12· ·the traction that we have on that front as well.· So I


13· ·think we've seen this past year the number of EDAPs


14· ·increase and more come in front of the Board than we had


15· ·in previous, and I just -- I expect that to kind of


16· ·continue because we've seen that in the pipeline


17· ·projects.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


19· · · · · · · · · ·EDAPs are a little more difficult to


20· ·predict because there's a lot of different variables


21· ·involved.


22· · · · · · · · · ·With the loans, it's more directly tied


23· ·with our efforts getting out in the community and


24· ·keeping that awareness up within the community, also


25· ·with our partners across the state.· And we've been very
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·1· ·successful in the past year in continuing to increase


·2· ·those efforts going forward to branch out beyond the


·3· ·lending community and work more on the lines of the


·4· ·ground level with our Chambers of Commerce and more


·5· ·organizations in the local communities and a regional


·6· ·focus.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·How many SSBCI dollars have recycled?


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


10· · · · · · · · · ·Have recycled?· It's over -- it's


11· ·definitely over 4-million.· I was looking at that number


12· ·last week, and it's definitely over 4-million that have


13· ·actually retoured.· I want to say it's closer to 5.· We


14· ·put a little over 8-million into the Guaranty Program,


15· ·and over half of it has definitely retoured and have


16· ·come back.


17· · · · · · · · · ·We've got it kind of just sitting there


18· ·in a holding pattern until we use up the rest of this


19· ·1.295, so it's there.


20· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


21· · · · · · · · · ·But it's there for use once we exhaust


22· ·what we have?


23· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.


25· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·We didn't have as much return back for


·2· ·2018 as we had for 2017, but the prospects for 2019 to


·3· ·come back with recycled dollars is very well.


·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Any other questions, comments?


·6· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to


·9· ·accept the Treasurer's report.


10· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


11· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Motion and second.


16· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor, "aye."


17· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


18· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


19· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


23· · · · · · · · · ·The Accountant's report.· Good morning.


24· · · · · · · ·MS. DALGO:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Good morning.· Hello.· I'm Crystal
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·1· ·Dalgo.· The LEDC Accountant Status Report that I'm


·2· ·presenting is as of November 30th, 2018.


·3· · · · · · · · · ·The Direct Loan Portfolio is at zero


·4· ·doctors as the Golf Balls loan was paid off in May of


·5· ·2018.


·6· · · · · · · ·For EDAP Loan Portfolio, there's one loan,


·7· ·which is Town of Colfax, and it totals $345,431.· They


·8· ·made their once-a-year payment in October.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·The Guaranteed Loan Portfolio is at zero


10· ·dollars.· Deep Hole Drilling was paid off in December


11· ·2017.


12· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for Direct Loan Losses is


13· ·set at 15 percent, but it totals zero as the direct loan


14· ·was paid off in May.· The allowance for the EDAP Loan


15· ·Losses is set at 15 percent and totals $51,815.· And the


16· ·allowance for the Guaranteed Loan Losses is set at 18


17· ·percent and totals zero dollars, but the guaranty loan


18· ·was paid off in December.


19· · · · · · · · · ·So the SSBCI Guaranty Loan Portfolio,


20· ·for it we have 21 loans and it's totaling $6,397,115 as


21· ·of November 30th.· And as of November 30th, we have two


22· ·of the loans, C. Booty Enterprises and Reed's Lawn Care


23· ·are 30 days late and Acadian Cypress is reporting at 60


24· ·days late.


25· · · · · · · · · ·The allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed Loan


Page 36
·1· ·Losses is set at 18 percent for the current amounts, and


·2· ·then for past due amounts, they reflect between 25 and


·3· ·100 percent.· As of November 30th, the allowance totals


·4· ·$1,458,773, and reflects at 22.8 percent.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·And that concludes my report.· Are there


·6· ·any questions?


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Reed's Lawn Care, is that one that we


·9· ·just approved in the last few months or was that an


10· ·older one?


11· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


12· · · · · · · · · ·That was one approved last fiscal year.


13· ·I believe it was last fiscal year we did it.


14· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


15· · · · · · · · · ·That's fairly recent, a little over a


16· ·year.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


18· · · · · · · · · ·A little over a year.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· That's a different lawn care, I'm


21· ·thinking.


22· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


23· · · · · · · · · ·The C. Booty Enterprises, it's just a


24· ·notorious late payer since the beginning of the loan.


25· ·They're paying, but they're paying late.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·We did check on Reed's as well, and


·2· ·matter of fact, after this was put together, I think


·3· ·this was at the end of November, they paid December 4th,


·4· ·the day we actually called, they had just made their


·5· ·payment.· So they're caught up.· This is just --


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·I thought we approved a lawn care


·8· ·earlier.


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


10· · · · · · · · · ·It was discussed at one of the other


11· ·meetings over the summer, so that could be where you're


12· ·recalling it from.


13· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


14· · · · · · · · · ·One question before you go, are we


15· ·comfortable with our calculations or percentages?· You


16· ·know, we adjusted things, what, a year or two back, time


17· ·flies, but when you historically evaluate things based


18· ·on your historic numbers, which we have some of, but


19· ·some of the programs -- it is SSBCI is relatively new?


20· ·Are we comfortable with your calculation or percentage


21· ·calculations, et cetera, across the board?


22· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


23· · · · · · · · · ·Referring to the reduction in collateral


24· ·requirement percentage?


25· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·Well, the reserve.


·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Reserve.


·4· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


·5· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· I think we are still comfortable


·6· ·with those numbers.· We still are in a position where


·7· ·we've not had a default yet.· Those that are past due,


·8· ·we are working with the banks to make sure that they're


·9· ·working with the -- or having a workout plan, and I


10· ·think Acadian Cypress and Hardwood is one of the ones


11· ·that we are really looking at waiting for them to give


12· ·us a workout plan.· But I think with the dollar amount


13· ·that we've already set aside, at this time, we feel


14· ·they're sufficient.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


16· · · · · · · · · ·We constantly think about it, and I


17· ·would guess with the reserve, should we and whether or


18· ·not it's adequate.


19· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


20· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·All right.· Thank you.


23· · · · · · · · · ·I'll entertain a motion to accept the


24· ·Accountant's Report.


25· · · · · · · · · ·Motion and second.
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·All in favor, "aye."


·2· · · · · · · ·(Several members respond "aye.")


·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·4· · · · · · · · · ·All opposed, "nay."


·5· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·7· · · · · · · · · ·Without objection.


·8· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


·9· · · · · · · · · ·I was just going to state, I think at


10· ·the next Board meeting, shouldn't we expect to hear from


11· ·the accountant and the valuation change?


12· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Yeah.· I think we have to do our


14· ·closeout sometime between now and as soon as possible.


15· ·It looks like it will probably be ready for February.


16· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


17· · · · · · · · · ·February.· Okay.


18· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


19· · · · · · · · · ·I believe all of you got a copy.  I


20· ·think we e-mailed it several times with the 2019 date.


21· ·Just as FYI and reminder, we are moving the Board dates


22· ·up two weeks to the second Thursday of every month.· So


23· ·the first one in 2019 would be the 10th of January.· So


24· ·it is coinciding with this Board meeting fairly well.  I


25· ·think exactly five weeks, but given that there's some
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·1· ·major holidays in the middle of all of that, it's a


·2· ·little too early to tell if we'll have a Board meeting


·3· ·or not or have a project to bring before the Board.


·4· ·We're hoping to, but it will probably be another week or


·5· ·so before we know for sure if we have.· If not, it will


·6· ·be the February Board, and we will probably have our --


·7· ·we have to do our new election of officers at the first


·8· ·annual meeting every year, as well as if those reports


·9· ·are ready from the legislature and from Chaffe report.


10· ·We'll have a Finance Committee meeting before prior to


11· ·that first Board.


12· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


13· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.


14· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


15· · · · · · · · · ·Then we'll have yearend audited


16· ·financial statements presented to the Board as well.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. BAHAM:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Correct.


19· · · · · · · ·MS. VILLA:


20· · · · · · · · · ·For FY '19.· It takes a little while.


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Ms. Mitchell, the President's


23· ·Report.


24· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


25· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· Good morning, everyone.· I will be
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·1· ·as brief as possible.· So I'll share with you a little


·2· ·bit about our recent project wins, and it's been a while


·3· ·since we've met, so I have a few from October that I'll


·4· ·share with you.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·In October, the Governor and Ternium


·6· ·U.S.A. announced a $14.7-million expansion at the Port


·7· ·of Caddo-Bossier.· That company is retaining 150 jobs,


·8· ·and as a result of that project, there will be 22 direct


·9· ·and indirect jobs added to the community.· That is a win


10· ·for our foreign direct investment team.· Ternium is a


11· ·Latin America steel company, and we're happy to have


12· ·them in Caddo-Bossier.


13· · · · · · · · · ·In November, we had quite a few project


14· ·wins that I want to share with you.· Fuji Vegetable Oil


15· ·broke ground in Jefferson Parish on their $70-million


16· ·project, which will bring to our state 87 new permanent


17· ·jobs and 200 construction jobs.


18· · · · · · · · · ·LM Wind Power established a Technology


19· ·Center for the Americas in New Orleans.· This is GE


20· ·Renewable Energy Company, and they will be retaining 45


21· ·jobs and creating 100 new direct jobs at the Michoud


22· ·Assembly Facility.


23· · · · · · · ·Catamaran Solutions will be creating 120 new


24· ·jobs in Minden, a huge win for us in North Louisiana.


25· ·We're constantly striving to bring new jobs to North
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·1· ·Louisiana areas as well as rural areas where the


·2· ·unemployment rate tends to trend higher than the state's


·3· ·average unemployment.· So that was a significant win for


·4· ·us in Minden, Louisiana.


·5· · · · · · · · · ·And Wanhua announced the selection of


·6· ·its site in St. James Parish for a $1.25-billion


·7· ·chemical project -- chemical complex.· Sorry.· That's


·8· ·going to create over 1,200 new direct and indirect jobs.


·9· · · · · · · · · ·And then lastly, we always laud the


10· ·small projects as well, so I was -- I had the pleasure


11· ·of being on hand for the Riceland Crawfish announcement.


12· ·They broke ground on a $3-million expansion of their


13· ·facility over in Eunice, Louisiana.· The project's going


14· ·to retain 50 jobs and create 10 new jobs in Acadiana.


15· ·So that was another exciting win for us.· We celebrate


16· ·the large, medium and small projects.


17· · · · · · · · · ·So also want to share with you from a


18· ·rankings perspective, Louisiana earned our ninth


19· ·consecutive Top 10 spot among the Best Business


20· ·Climates, and this ranking is conducted by Site


21· ·Selection Magazine, the leading industry publication for


22· ·site selectors and corporate executives, so we're happy


23· ·to remain in our Top 10 ranking from that matrix.


24· · · · · · · · · ·And then also I want to share with you


25· ·that LED earned its certification as an accredited
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·1· ·economic development organization, the only state in the


·2· ·country to have that designation.· Mostly you'll see


·3· ·your regional organization communities competing for


·4· ·that, but we felt at the state level that we should


·5· ·compete for it, and we did win that certification.· And


·6· ·since then, several other states are now looking at


·7· ·trying to replicate what we have done.


·8· · · · · · · · · ·And then I also want to share with you


·9· ·LED, BRAC, the Baton Rouge Area Chamber, and LSU will


10· ·sponsor an entrepreneurship academy which will help


11· ·train capital region high school students to be


12· ·interested in entrepreneurship and be confident business


13· ·owners.


14· · · · · · · · · ·Lastly, Secretary Pierson asked me to


15· ·relay to you his gratitude and seasons greetings.


16· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you.


17· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


18· · · · · · · · · ·Thank you, Mandi.


19· · · · · · · · · ·Any questions or comments?


20· · · · · · · ·(No response.)


21· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Very good.· Good news.


23· · · · · · · · · ·Any other business?


24· · · · · · · ·MS. GUESS:


25· · · · · · · · · ·No other business, but one announcement
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·1· ·or reminder, the ethics training that's due for all


·2· ·Board members, you will receive an e-mail from me


·3· ·probably later on today or tomorrow.· The deadline is


·4· ·December 31st, so that has to be completed.


·5· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


·6· · · · · · · · · ·And it's fun.


·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


·8· · · · · · · · · ·Looking forward to it.


·9· · · · · · · ·MR. JACKSON:


10· · · · · · · · · ·It can be done between now and the 31st?


11· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


12· · · · · · · · · ·You can do it online?


13· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


14· · · · · · · · · ·Yes.· Yes.· Really cool, new videos.


15· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


16· · · · · · · · · ·Okay.· Being that everyone will rush out


17· ·to go conduct that training, I'll entertain a motion to


18· ·adjourn.


19· · · · · · · ·MR. SIMPSON:


20· · · · · · · · · ·So moved.


21· · · · · · · ·MS. MITCHELL:


22· · · · · · · · · ·Second.


23· · · · · · · ·MR. ROY:


24· · · · · · · · · ·Motion to adjourn, second.


25· · · · · · · · · ·Happy holidays to everyone.· See you
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·1· ·soon.· Thank you.


·2· · · · · · · ·MS. DURAND:


·3· · · · · · · · · ·Happy holidays, everyone.


·4· · · · · · · ·(Meeting concludes at 10:16 a.m.)
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·1· ·REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:


·2· · · · · · · ·I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court


·3· ·Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the


·4· ·officer before whom this meeting for the Board of


·5· ·Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development


·6· ·Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was


·7· ·reported by me in the stenotype reporting method, was


·8· ·prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal


·9· ·direction and supervision, and is a true and correct


10· ·transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;


11


12· · · · · · · ·That the transcript has been prepared in


13· ·compliance with transcript format required by statute or


14· ·by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance


15· ·with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as


16· ·defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article


17· ·1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;


18· · · · · · · ·That I am not related to counsel or to the


19· ·parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the


20· ·outcome of this matter.


21


· · ·Dated this 9th day of January, 2019.


22


23· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·___________________________


24· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, CCR


25· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Call to order the Board of Directors of

 3   the Louisiana Economic Development Corporation.

 4                   Rollcall, please.

 5               MS. SIMMONS:

 6                   Mr. A.J. Roy.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Here.

 9               MS. SIMMONS:

10                   Mr. Alden Andre.

11               (No response.)

12               MS. SIMMONS:

13                   Mr. Louis Reine.

14               (No response.)

15               MS. SIMMONS:

16                   Mr. Charles Jackson.

17               MR. JACKSON:

18                   Here.

19               MS. SIMMONS:

20                   Ms. Mandi Mitchell.

21               MS. MITCHELL:

22                   Here.

23               MS. SIMMONS:

24                   Mr. Cal Simpson.

25               MR. SIMPSON:
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 1                   Here.

 2               MS. SIMMONS:

 3                   Nittin Kamath.

 4               MR. KAMATH:

 5                   Here.

 6               MS. SIMMONS:

 7                   Sue Durand.

 8               MS. DURAND:

 9                   Here.

10               MS. SIMMONS:

11                   Kimberly Johnson.

12               (No response.)

13               MS. SIMMONS:

14                   Todd McDonald.

15               (No response.)

16               MS. SIMMONS:

17                   We have a quorum.

18               MR. ROY:

19                   Thank you.  We have a quorum.  We do

20   have a quorum.

21                   And welcome, everyone, to our December

22   meeting.  I'll ask everyone to please silence your cell

23   phone.

24                   The first order of business is the

25   presentation of the minutes of the LEDC Board meeting of
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 1   July 27th.

 2                   Motion to approve as presented; second.

 3                   Any discussion?

 4               (No response.)

 5               MR. ROY:

 6                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 7               (Several members respond "aye.")

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   All opposed, "nay."

10               (No response.)

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Without objection, so ordered.

13                   Next order of business is the Screening

14   Committee minutes, September the 28th.

15               MR. JACKSON:

16                   Move to accept.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Motion to accept as presented.

19               MR. SIMPSON:

20                   Second.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Second.

23                   Any discussion?

24               (No response.)

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 2               (Several members respond "aye.")

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   All opposed, "nay."

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Without objection.

 8                   All right.  House can bring us up to

 9   speed on two in-house approvals.

10                   Good morning.

11               MS. DOIN:

12                   Good morning.  Marissa Doin.  I have one

13   loan update for y'all today:  Vinh Loi Corporation.

14   It's a holding company that was established this year,

15   2018, created to purchase a building for an auto repair

16   shop.  There are two equal owners, Kenneth Duong and

17   Dennis Dang.

18                   This one was brought to us by United

19   Community Bank.  They requested a 75 percent LED

20   guaranty for a total loan of $157,500 for 60 months.

21                   As a result of the loan, Vinh Loi

22   Corporation will be creating two full-time jobs and

23   retaining two jobs.  The funds will be used to purchase

24   a second location here in Baton Rouge.  The building

25   will be upgraded with personal funds of the owners.  It
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 1   will also be backed by real estate of the building

 2   valued at 210,000.

 3                   Sales have been continually consistent,

 4   and the business is profitable.  And this was approved

 5   by staff in October.

 6                   Any questions?

 7               (No response.)

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   No.  Thank you.

10               MS. PETE:

11                   Good morning.  I have another loan that

12   was approved, CMED Corporation.

13                   CMED Corporation's loan guaranty

14   application was presented to us by Farmer's State Bank.

15   It was from the acquisition of an existing oil field

16   supply company, Production Rental & Supply, which was

17   found in 2003.  The company was located in Lafayette,

18   Louisiana.  PRS was a well-known oil field company in

19   its earliest days and remained open for 15 years.  PRS

20   targeted drilling, production and completion market.

21   PRS's clientele included Baker Hughes, Cardinal Services

22   and Pioneer Wireline.  PRS offered a full range of

23   safety supplies, hardware, power tools and other

24   supplies for the oil field industry.  The owner had

25   decided to sell the company due to extenuating
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 1   circumstances.

 2                   CMED Corporation was started by Ms. Edna

 3   Sue Turner, David Billeaud, Herbert Turner and Coby

 4   Bernard.  The management team has an extensive

 5   background in the oil field tool supply industry.  Edna

 6   and Herbert Turner have been the owners and operators of

 7   Bulldog Services, LLC, an oil field services company in

 8   Lafayette, Louisiana since 2012.

 9                   Farmer's State Bank is structuring the

10   loan for a $200,000 term loan.  The loan guaranty

11   request was for 75 percent for three years.  The loan

12   was secured by the inventory and equipment and further

13   supported by the unlimited guarantees of the owners.

14                   The approval of this loan created three

15   new jobs and retained one job, and the standard

16   contingencies are in place.

17                   Any questions?

18               (No response.)

19               MR. ROY:

20                   The next order of business is the EDAP

21   program that's unsponsored, Champion Home Builders,

22   Incorporated.

23                   Morning, gentlemen.

24               MR. BIENEMY:

25                   Stanley Bienemy representing staff
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 1   today, I have with me Mr. Tom Stoneburner representing

 2   Champion Home Builders, LLC (sic).  This is an

 3   unsponsored EDAP award for payroll credit in the amount

 4   requested of $500,000.  The company will be located in

 5   Vernon Parish located at 350 Industrial Park Road in

 6   Leesville, Louisiana.

 7                   The company is the leading manufacturer

 8   of manufactured homes, modular homes as well as mobile

 9   homes.  The job performance goals of the company has

10   agreed to are to maintain 200 new jobs with an annual

11   payroll of $8.2-million.  All of these jobs and payroll

12   must be remain during the life of the contract.

13                   Vernon Parish's unemployment rate was

14   6.4 percent as of September 2018, compared to the state

15   rate of 5 percent for the same time period.  The per

16   capita income for Vernon Parish in 2016 was $38,929

17   compared to a state per capita income of $42,298.

18                   The projected economic benefit to the

19   state is a projected state revenue of $4,229,064, minus

20   the $500,000 EDAP, and $3,314,064 for Quality Jobs, an

21   estimation of over 10 years, which would give the state

22   a net revenue of $415,000.

23                   The project will represent a

24   $1.3-million investment in the area by Champion, and the

25   company will renovate two existing buildings totaling
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 1   246,000 square feet in the Leesville Northside

 2   Industrial park.

 3                   The EDAP funds will be used to purchase

 4   capital equipment, which can be used -- (inaudible) --,

 5   and the company also plans to bring 200 new direct jobs

 6   with an annual salary of 35,000 plus benefits.

 7                   Staff recommends approval of this

 8   project as an unsponsored EDAP payroll credit award with

 9   our basic contingencies put in place as well as a

10   first-position lien on equipment or equivalent

11   collateral sufficient to reasonably secure payments that

12   will become due.  The company has agreed to create and

13   maintain 200 jobs to maintain through the life of the

14   contract with the above-state payroll through 2028.  The

15   capital investment by Champion Home Builders will be

16   $1.3-million by December 31st, 2019.

17                   And we'll turn it over to Mr.

18   Stoneburner to speak a little bit about the project.

19               MR. STONEBURNER:

20                   All right.  My name is Tom Stoneburner.

21   I will be the General Manager of the operation in

22   Leesville, and I represent Skyline and Champion in this

23   matter here today.

24                   And just to give you a little quick

25   detail about the company, we do build manufactured
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 1   housing, and we can build anything from a small section,

 2   double section up to a hotel or an apartment complex.

 3   We did build two motels/hotels in Leesville out by the

 4   gate at Fort Polk, so we do have that ability as a

 5   company.

 6                   Our beginning product we will build in

 7   Leesville will be the single section, doublewide section

 8   because that's what we do to train our employees.

 9                   The company has 5,500 employees and 28

10   factories, so this will be number 29.  Upon the

11   approval, I'm ready to go.  There will be a construction

12   phase at the factory lasting about 90 days, and in that

13   90 days, I'll hire 20 to 25 employees to do the

14   construction work to retrofit buildings so that the

15   construction processes can begin about April.

16                   I'll bring in approximately 50 employees

17   at the beginning, and should start hiring and training

18   them in late February, first of March so that we can

19   train them how to do the jobs.  And quality is very

20   important in our factories because these are homes and

21   we do some extreme.  I will raise production.  I will

22   expect employment to be somewhere near 100 by the end of

23   the year as we continue these training processes and

24   ramp up production with the target of about 200

25   employees, seven to eight homes a day, somewhere in four
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 1   months.

 2                   That's kind of the synopsis.  What kind

 3   of restricts that from even going faster is that we have

 4   to develop our product, what type of houses we will

 5   build.  Predominantly we will sell in Louisiana.  Our

 6   employees will predominantly come from Louisiana, and so

 7   we have to do all of this training on our product and

 8   our distribution to retailers here in Louisiana.  So

 9   it's takes about 24 months to get that going.

10                   Any questions for me?

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Questions or comments?

13               MR. SIMPSON:

14                   Have y'all started any process of

15   looking -- that seems like a significant amount of

16   employees in a relatively small community to find that

17   many employees.  Do you foresee that being a problem?

18               MR. STONEBURNER:

19                   I don't.  I have been on the job for

20   about two weeks, and I did -- I'm moving here from

21   Nashville, Tennessee, so I've kind of met a lot of

22   people, talked with a lot of people.  We did have a job

23   fair in Leesville about a year ago to check the

24   employment numbers, and it looked very positive.  And

25   from around town, I am overwhelmed by people wanting to
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 1   come to work.

 2               MR. JACKSON:

 3                   What's the nature of the equipment that

 4   we're liening against?  Is it built-in for a special

 5   purpose or being acquired?

 6               MR. BIENEMY:

 7                   It will be special purpose, but it won't

 8   be industry specific, but it will be large capital

 9   equipment.  I looked on the equipment list, and there

10   was some large welding materials, large moving materials

11   for the modular pieces of it.  So while it will be

12   specialized, it won't be industry specific.  It can be

13   used for multiple industries.

14               MR. JACKSON:

15                   Can you design for the local market?

16   You don't use the same sorts of designs that are being

17   manufactured elsewhere?

18               MR. STONEBURNER:

19                   We will take a look at those designs

20   elsewhere and make sure that they do fit into this

21   market.  The housing market is regional, but we will

22   start with what we have on the board already and fit

23   that.

24               MR. JACKSON:

25                   And I guess if you're selling primarily
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 1   in Louisiana, you're comfortable that you've got a

 2   product that -- or you'll be able to design a product

 3   that will be fairly effective?

 4               MR. STONEBURNER:

 5                   Prior to coming to Leesville, I was

 6   running the factory in Dresden, Tennessee selling into

 7   Louisiana, so I'm pretty familiar with what product

 8   sells here.  I just have to come down and not copy what

 9   another factory has been doing and look at price points

10   and factory-owned in high volume in Louisiana.

11               MR. JACKSON:

12                   Okay.  Thank you.

13               MR. ROY:

14                   Other questions?

15               MS. MITCHELL:

16                   Actually, my question had been asked, so

17   at the appropriate time, I would like to move favorable.

18   This project will bring 200 jobs to a region in our

19   state that has, for a number of years, carried an

20   unemployment rate that has been higher than the state's

21   average unemployment rates, so these are sorely-needed

22   jobs in the western portion of our state.

23                   And I'd like to commend the work that

24   has been done on this project to present to the Board

25   not just the benefit to the company, but the benefit to
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 1   the state through the economic impact of the project

 2   along with the jobs for this community.

 3                   So at the appropriate time, I would like

 4   to move favorable.

 5               MR. ROY:

 6                   All right.  We'll take that as a motion

 7   now.

 8               MR. SIMPSON:

 9                   Move to accept.

10               MR. ROY:

11                   Second?

12               MR. SIMPSON:

13                   Second.

14               MR. ROY:

15                   Second.

16                   Any other discussion?

17               (No response.)

18               MR. ROY:

19                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

20               (Several members respond "aye.")

21               MR. ROY:

22                   All opposed, "nay."

23               (No response.)

24               MR. ROY:

25                   Without objection.
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 1                   Congratulations.  Please keep us posted,

 2   and we wish you the best.

 3               MR. STONEBURNER:

 4                   Thank you, sir.

 5               MR. ROY:

 6                   Any comments from the public along those

 7   lines?

 8               (No response.)

 9               MR. ROY:

10                   Thank you.

11                   We have a modification of an EDAP award,

12   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies, Inc.

13               MR. BIENEMY:

14                   Good morning again.  Stanley Bienemy

15   representing staff today.  We have an EDAP modification

16   request to increase the approved and unsponsored EDAP in

17   the amount of 250,000 that was previously approved

18   about.

19                   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies was

20   originally approved on June 22nd, 2018 by this Board,

21   and the company was to be located at the Michoud

22   Assembly Facility in Orleans Parish.  Unfortunately,

23   NASA and Advanced Sinter were unable to come to terms

24   which would meet both companies' requirements and

25   timelines.  Advanced Sinter was proactive and found an
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 1   alternate site located in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.

 2                   Nothing materially changed about the

 3   project except the location and the timeline for the job

 4   requirements due to the delay because of the site.

 5                   Job performance goals that the company

 6   has agreed to will stay the same.  They will maintain 15

 7   new jobs with a -- create and maintain 15 new jobs and

 8   an annual payroll of 800,000 with a two percent annual

 9   increase.  All of these jobs and payroll must be

10   maintained during the life of the contract.

11                   St. Tammany Parish's unemployment rate

12   as of September 2018 was 4.4 percent to the state's

13   average of 5 percent for the same time period.  The per

14   capita income for St. Tammany Parish for 2016 was

15   $52,109 as compared to the state per capita income for

16   the same time period of 42,298.

17                   The projected economic benefits to the

18   state with the new site would be a state revenue of

19   $1,324,000 minus the $250,000 for the EDAP and $515,000

20   for Quality Jobs, which would give us an approximate

21   state revenue of $588,000.

22                   Staff recommends approval of the project

23   modifications for the unsponsored EDAP for payroll

24   credit with our basic contingencies that we normally

25   have with a two percent annual increase of payroll, also
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 1   keeping the original approval date of June 22nd, 2018,

 2   while moving the start performance period to 2019.

 3                   The total capital investment by Advanced

 4   Sinter will be $5-million by December 31st, 2019.

 5                   And I'll turn it over to Rudolph Von

 6   Liechtenstein, and he will give you a little bit more

 7   detail about where the project is now.

 8               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

 9                   We'd like to start by thanking you once

10   again for this application.  So this is an exciting

11   moment for us, for Sinter Metal Technologies, which was

12   founded more than 50 years ago.  It's, as its name might

13   imply, a leading global player in the sinter technology.

14   Put simply, that's called technology.

15                   For the love of technologies and

16   solutions and applications that are proprietary, and

17   having Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies leads to

18   better serve the U.S. market out of Louisiana is, of

19   course, a good choice.  We see from the tests that we

20   studied, this project is effectively creating a secure,

21   dual-sourcing for high-tech applications soft and

22   critical to our products.

23                   This project is also very exciting

24   because of its nature.  The application (inaudible) of

25   the spectrum.  Additionally, Advanced Sinter Metal
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 1   Technologies' Slidell facility is to be highly

 2   automated, among other things, high-tech, automated

 3   quality control systems.

 4                   I'd like, once again, to emphasize that

 5   despite the location and the schedule being pushed back,

 6   the project essentially remains the same.  The plans,

 7   stakeholders and commitments remain unchanged.

 8                   We'd also like the share some of the

 9   recent and latest developments.  So at the beginning of

10   November, Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies secured the

11   location of production in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.

12   As of now, most of the pieces of equipment required to

13   start industry production of our metal parts have been

14   assembled in that facility.  Advanced Sinter Metal

15   Technology plans to start production in the end of

16   January 2019, at which time you are kindly and cordially

17   invited.

18                   And as a final point, we entered into an

19   extending with LSU through a support letter for a

20   project to further confirmation to begin manufacturing

21   in Louisiana.  The project, with your involvement, will

22   come to fruition.  So, again, this is an exciting

23   project for us, and despite some unforeseen change, we

24   are grateful for the hospitality and the warm welcome

25   Louisiana has given to this project.
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 1                   Thank you.  If you have any questions.

 2               MR. ROY:

 3                   Questions or comments?

 4               MS. MITCHELL:

 5                   No questions for me.  I just wanted to

 6   confirm my understanding that the only change is the

 7   start time of the project and the actual physical

 8   location.  Everything else that had been approved in

 9   June remains the same?

10               MR. BIENEMY:

11                   That is correct.

12               MS. MITCHELL:

13                   Okay.

14               MR. SIMPSON:

15                   And at this point, you're saying that

16   there's actually equipment that has already been

17   installed and the work has started?  I guess when we

18   approved it in June, that work had not yet started.

19                   I guess I kind of had the understanding

20   in June that you were already set to go in at the

21   Michoud Facility.  That seemed kind of surprising to see

22   that that changed.

23               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

24                   It was indeed.  At the end of it, we was

25   unable to get commitment in a timely manner, and while
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 1   for all projected, Michoud costs and energy costs, and

 2   so at the end, we're lucky enough to find a beautiful

 3   spot in Slidell to move forward in a timely manner.

 4               MR. SIMPSON:

 5                   Okay.  So you're -- how far is the

 6   schedule slipped then?

 7               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

 8                   So we had a new official announcement at

 9   the Michoud the first of November last year, and the

10   understanding at the time was we could move in first

11   quarter of 2018.  Well, right now, production we think

12   will start at the end of January 2019, so it slipped one

13   year.

14               MR. BIENEMY:

15                   Due to one year of their time

16   commitments sliding back, we've had to move back the job

17   marker.

18               MR. SIMPSON:

19                   Okay.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   Any other questions or comments?

22               (No response.)

23               MR. JACKSON:

24                   Move to approve.

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Motion for approval as presented.

 2               MS. MITCHELL:

 3                   Second.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Second.

 6                   Any other discussion?

 7               (No response.)

 8               MR. ROY:

 9                   Any comments from the public?

10               (No response.)

11               MR. ROY:

12                   Hearing none all in favor, "aye."

13               (Several members respond "aye.")

14               MR. ROY:

15                   All opposed, "nay."

16               (No response.)

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Without objection.

19                   Congratulations.

20               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:

21                   Thank you.

22               MR. ROY:

23                   Merci.  Bonne chance.  I think that's

24   correct.

25                   All right.  Next order of business is
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 1   the SSBCI program, Tactical Directional Drilling.

 2                   Good morning.

 3               MS. PETE:

 4                   Good morning.  Today we have Mr. Stacy

 5   Quebodeaux, Tony Howard and Gerard Labat today to

 6   present Tactical Drilling.

 7                   Farmer's State Bank has requested a loan

 8   guaranty for Tactical Directional Drilling.  Tactical

 9   Directional Drilling is a startup company that will be

10   owned by Mr. Anthony Howard, Stacy Quebodeaux and Chad

11   Walker.  It will provide horizontal directional drilling

12   services to gas, oil and chemical refineries and

13   manufacturing facilities, utility companies and pipeline

14   companies.  Tactical Directional Drilling will provide a

15   better alternative to open trenching for laying pipe

16   horizontally.

17                   The company will specialize in smaller

18   jobs that competitors typically turn down due to the

19   significant overhead involved.  This company will pursue

20   the smaller drilling jobs.  The management is

21   experienced with Mr. Howard having 11 years with

22   horizontal directional drilling and civil construction,

23   Mr. Quebodeaux having 30 years in civil construction and

24   Mr. Walker having 10 years in horizontal directional

25   drilling.
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 1                   Tactical will focus on the Gulf Coast

 2   area from Mississippi to Texas.  With the oil industry

 3   running multiple pipelines throughout the south,

 4   directional drilling is in high demand.  The drillers

 5   who will work with tactical have a great reputation in

 6   this industry and established industry contacts.

 7   Tactical will provide underground pipe installation for

 8   roadways, pipeline, wetlands, drainage and utility

 9   lines.

10                   The loan structure is an $826,000 loan

11   backed by equipment value at $1,032,025.  The owners

12   have made a significant investment.  It is a 10-year

13   loan with an involvement of LEDC guaranty for five

14   years.

15                   Our standard contingencies are in place.

16   Staff recommends approval for this application due to

17   the extensive experience of management and significant

18   investment by the owners, and the approval of this loan

19   will result in the creation of three jobs.

20                   Mr. Quebodeaux and Mr. Howard can

21   further elaborate on their company and if you have any

22   questions.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Questions or comments so far?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Gentlemen, do you have something you'd

 3   like to add?

 4               MR. HOWARD:

 5                   The one particular thing I'd really like

 6   to add is we have a letter with intent of work that is

 7   coming up, and actually he called us this morning on the

 8   way over here to wish us luck hoping that everything

 9   goes well here because he's actually looking at a job

10   right now in West Texas that we could probably start

11   sometime in the middle -- first to middle part of

12   February.  So the outlook is very, very promising right

13   now.  There's lots of work supposedly fixing to take

14   place in North Louisiana.  We just waiting to get a shot

15   at a piece of the pie, I guess I'd say.

16               MS. PORTER:

17                   Can the gentleman introduce himself,

18   please.

19               MR. HOWARD:

20                   Tony Howard.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Questions, comments?

23               MR. JACKSON:

24                   Do you send a local team or do you hire

25   at location, if you're in West Texas, for example?
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 1               MR. HOWARD:

 2                   No, sir.  It's going to be us.  Wherever

 3   our equipment goes, we go.

 4               MR. SIMPSON:

 5                   Does the price and recent reduction in

 6   the crude oil affect y'all's business models?

 7               MR. HOWARD:

 8                   No, sir.  The price of crude oil gas

 9   really has no affect on what it takes for us to do our

10   job.  It can fluctuate and go down, but it has no

11   overall bearing on what we have to do.

12               MR. QUEBODEAUX:

13                   A lot of jobs coming in is not just new

14   pipeline.  It's the replacing of the old existing

15   pipelines.  So, I mean, they have -- the oil has to flow

16   no what matter what the price is.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Do you anticipate that most of your

19   business will be out of state?

20               MR. HOWARD:

21                   No, sir.  It can be in Louisiana just as

22   much as it could be in Texas.

23               MS. MITCHELL:

24                   I was just going to add, it's always

25   good to bring in that new dollar, so we like when you go
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 1   to work out of state and bring that revenue back here.

 2   So that's not a bad thing.

 3               MR. QUEBODEAUX:

 4                   It's just that it will be the locals

 5   that -- it's going to be Louisiana people that work for.

 6               MS. MITCHELL:

 7                   That's the key.

 8               MR. QUEBODEAUX:

 9                   Exactly.

10               MR. ROY:

11                   Any other questions or comments?

12               (No response.)

13               MS. MITCHELL:

14                   I would just like to move favorable at

15   the appropriate time.

16               MR. ROY:

17                   Motion for approval as presented.

18               MR. SIMPSON:

19                   Second.

20               MS. DURAND:

21                   Second.

22               MR. ROY:

23                   Second.

24                   Any other discussion?

25               (No response.)
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 1               MR. ROY:

 2                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."

 3               (Several members respond "aye.")

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   All opposed, "nay."

 6               (No response.)

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Without objection.

 9                   Congratulations, gentlemen.  Please keep

10   us posted on the future and your successes.

11                   Next order of business, the Treasurer's

12   Report.  Ms. Villa.

13               MS. VILLA:

14                   Good morning.  Ann Villa, Undersecretary

15   for Louisiana Economic Development.  I'll present to you

16   the Secretary Treasurer's Report for December 10th,

17   2018, Fiscal Year 2019.

18                   So as of today, the summary you have in

19   front of you shows our FY '19 budget for all programs as

20   $9,313,938.  And we have approved for just expenditures

21   for projects of $2,463,224.  And then we had the Board

22   approval of the pending projects of 654,875, which left

23   us balance of $6,195,839.  And we currently have a

24   million dollars in projects that are under review, which

25   gives us a projected yearend balance of $5,195,839.

0029

 1                   And the detail behind that is our Small

 2   Business -- State Small Business Credit Initiative

 3   Program, which has $452,224 projects that have been

 4   approved this year, and we have the Tactical Drilling

 5   that was just approved of 154,875, so we currently have

 6   a balance expected in that program of $1,295,698.  And

 7   we do still have our $190,000 Loan Assistance Program,

 8   which we're not projecting any projects, so we have

 9   those two together, which would give us a balance of

10   $1,485,698 that's expected at the end of the year.

11                   And then for our Capital Outlay

12   Appropriation that we have for our Economic Development

13   Award Program, we have our budget for that is $7,221,141

14   for FY '19, and then we have projects that's been

15   approved for the EDAP Program of $1,561,000, and then in

16   our EDRED Program, we have projects of 450,000.

17                   We have pending the Board approval is

18   the Champion Home Builders, which you just approved of

19   500,000, which would leave us a balance for both EDAP

20   and EDRED of $4,710,141.  And then we have a million

21   dollar project that's under review, which would give us

22   a yearend balance of $3,710,141 for both the EDAP and

23   the EDRED.

24                   And then if you go to the next page, the

25   final page, our Projected Fund Balance for FY '19 that's
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 1   available for use is $14,500 -- the expected fund

 2   balance available is $14,947,976, and our expenditures

 3   are expected at $12,027,483, which would leave a balance

 4   projected of $2,920,493.

 5                   If you have any questions on any of the

 6   reports.

 7               MR. JACKSON:

 8                   Just one, Studio Network Project

 9   canceled?

10               MR. BAHAM:

11                   Yes.  That was a project that came

12   before the Board back in --

13               MR. JACKSON:

14                   That was the one in New Orleans?

15               MR. BAHAM:

16                   July.

17                   Correct.  That was old Bally's Casino.

18   The project is not going forward with the bank.  They

19   decided to pull the loan due to some issue beyond the

20   bank's control and beyond our control.  It was separate

21   and aside from this particular project, so the bank

22   decided to pull it, and without a closing, we have no

23   guaranty at that point, so the money has now rolled back

24   into the availability for new loans for SSBCI.

25               MR. JACKSON:
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 1                   All right.  And do we usually get notice

 2   when they cancel like that or do they just show up in

 3   the report?

 4               MR. BAHAM:

 5                   Oh, yeah, we get notice pretty quickly.

 6   The bank, we spoke with the bank, and then I think in

 7   less than 24 hours after they made their decision, we

 8   got an official notice from them in writing that they

 9   were not going to pursue this loan any further.

10               MR. JACKSON:

11                   Okay.  Thank you.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   If you look back over the last year,

14   what do we think we might do in terms of the number of

15   projects and scope of projects going into the next year?

16               MR. BAHAM:

17                   For the Loan Guaranty Program?

18               MR. ROY:

19                   Well, in general.

20               MR. BAHAM:

21                   Well, in general, as far as the Loan

22   Guaranty Program, we hate losing the Network Lakefront

23   project because that would put our available SSBCI down

24   to under that million dollar mark, which we've been

25   trying to get there.  We do have some other potential
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 1   projects in the pipeline that we are hoping will come

 2   through.

 3                   So we've got just under 1.3 million now

 4   left in SSBCI, which we have used up all of the admin

 5   expenses associated with that, so that is the last bit

 6   of dollars we have from that federal program.

 7                   As far as EDAPs, I think we just got a

 8   whole batch of --

 9               MS. VILLA:

10                   We have a lot in the pipeline that's not

11   been announced yet, so, you know, we're encouraged by

12   the traction that we have on that front as well.  So I

13   think we've seen this past year the number of EDAPs

14   increase and more come in front of the Board than we had

15   in previous, and I just -- I expect that to kind of

16   continue because we've seen that in the pipeline

17   projects.

18               MR. BAHAM:

19                   EDAPs are a little more difficult to

20   predict because there's a lot of different variables

21   involved.

22                   With the loans, it's more directly tied

23   with our efforts getting out in the community and

24   keeping that awareness up within the community, also

25   with our partners across the state.  And we've been very
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 1   successful in the past year in continuing to increase

 2   those efforts going forward to branch out beyond the

 3   lending community and work more on the lines of the

 4   ground level with our Chambers of Commerce and more

 5   organizations in the local communities and a regional

 6   focus.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   How many SSBCI dollars have recycled?

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   Have recycled?  It's over -- it's

11   definitely over 4-million.  I was looking at that number

12   last week, and it's definitely over 4-million that have

13   actually retoured.  I want to say it's closer to 5.  We

14   put a little over 8-million into the Guaranty Program,

15   and over half of it has definitely retoured and have

16   come back.

17                   We've got it kind of just sitting there

18   in a holding pattern until we use up the rest of this

19   1.295, so it's there.

20               MR. ROY:

21                   But it's there for use once we exhaust

22   what we have?

23               MR. BAHAM:

24                   Correct.

25               MS. GUESS:
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 1                   We didn't have as much return back for

 2   2018 as we had for 2017, but the prospects for 2019 to

 3   come back with recycled dollars is very well.

 4               MR. ROY:

 5                   Okay.  Any other questions, comments?

 6               (No response.)

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion to

 9   accept the Treasurer's report.

10               MS. MITCHELL:

11                   So moved.

12               MR. JACKSON:

13                   Second.

14               MR. ROY:

15                   Motion and second.

16                   All in favor, "aye."

17               (Several members respond "aye.")

18               MR. ROY:

19                   All opposed, "nay."

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Without objection.

23                   The Accountant's report.  Good morning.

24               MS. DALGO:

25                   Good morning.  Hello.  I'm Crystal

0035

 1   Dalgo.  The LEDC Accountant Status Report that I'm

 2   presenting is as of November 30th, 2018.

 3                   The Direct Loan Portfolio is at zero

 4   doctors as the Golf Balls loan was paid off in May of

 5   2018.

 6               For EDAP Loan Portfolio, there's one loan,

 7   which is Town of Colfax, and it totals $345,431.  They

 8   made their once-a-year payment in October.

 9                   The Guaranteed Loan Portfolio is at zero

10   dollars.  Deep Hole Drilling was paid off in December

11   2017.

12                   The allowance for Direct Loan Losses is

13   set at 15 percent, but it totals zero as the direct loan

14   was paid off in May.  The allowance for the EDAP Loan

15   Losses is set at 15 percent and totals $51,815.  And the

16   allowance for the Guaranteed Loan Losses is set at 18

17   percent and totals zero dollars, but the guaranty loan

18   was paid off in December.

19                   So the SSBCI Guaranty Loan Portfolio,

20   for it we have 21 loans and it's totaling $6,397,115 as

21   of November 30th.  And as of November 30th, we have two

22   of the loans, C. Booty Enterprises and Reed's Lawn Care

23   are 30 days late and Acadian Cypress is reporting at 60

24   days late.

25                   The allowance for SSBCI Guaranteed Loan
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 1   Losses is set at 18 percent for the current amounts, and

 2   then for past due amounts, they reflect between 25 and

 3   100 percent.  As of November 30th, the allowance totals

 4   $1,458,773, and reflects at 22.8 percent.

 5                   And that concludes my report.  Are there

 6   any questions?

 7               MR. JACKSON:

 8                   Reed's Lawn Care, is that one that we

 9   just approved in the last few months or was that an

10   older one?

11               MR. BAHAM:

12                   That was one approved last fiscal year.

13   I believe it was last fiscal year we did it.

14               MR. JACKSON:

15                   That's fairly recent, a little over a

16   year.

17               MR. BAHAM:

18                   A little over a year.

19               MR. JACKSON:

20                   Okay.  That's a different lawn care, I'm

21   thinking.

22               MR. BAHAM:

23                   The C. Booty Enterprises, it's just a

24   notorious late payer since the beginning of the loan.

25   They're paying, but they're paying late.
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 1                   We did check on Reed's as well, and

 2   matter of fact, after this was put together, I think

 3   this was at the end of November, they paid December 4th,

 4   the day we actually called, they had just made their

 5   payment.  So they're caught up.  This is just --

 6               MR. JACKSON:

 7                   I thought we approved a lawn care

 8   earlier.

 9               MR. BAHAM:

10                   It was discussed at one of the other

11   meetings over the summer, so that could be where you're

12   recalling it from.

13               MR. ROY:

14                   One question before you go, are we

15   comfortable with our calculations or percentages?  You

16   know, we adjusted things, what, a year or two back, time

17   flies, but when you historically evaluate things based

18   on your historic numbers, which we have some of, but

19   some of the programs -- it is SSBCI is relatively new?

20   Are we comfortable with your calculation or percentage

21   calculations, et cetera, across the board?

22               MS. MITCHELL:

23                   Referring to the reduction in collateral

24   requirement percentage?

25               MR. ROY:
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 1                   Well, the reserve.

 2               MS. MITCHELL:

 3                   Reserve.

 4               MS. GUESS:

 5                   Yes.  I think we are still comfortable

 6   with those numbers.  We still are in a position where

 7   we've not had a default yet.  Those that are past due,

 8   we are working with the banks to make sure that they're

 9   working with the -- or having a workout plan, and I

10   think Acadian Cypress and Hardwood is one of the ones

11   that we are really looking at waiting for them to give

12   us a workout plan.  But I think with the dollar amount

13   that we've already set aside, at this time, we feel

14   they're sufficient.

15               MR. ROY:

16                   We constantly think about it, and I

17   would guess with the reserve, should we and whether or

18   not it's adequate.

19               MS. GUESS:

20                   Yes.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   All right.  Thank you.

23                   I'll entertain a motion to accept the

24   Accountant's Report.

25                   Motion and second.
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 1                   All in favor, "aye."

 2               (Several members respond "aye.")

 3               MR. ROY:

 4                   All opposed, "nay."

 5               (No response.)

 6               MR. ROY:

 7                   Without objection.

 8               MS. VILLA:

 9                   I was just going to state, I think at

10   the next Board meeting, shouldn't we expect to hear from

11   the accountant and the valuation change?

12               MR. BAHAM:

13                   Yeah.  I think we have to do our

14   closeout sometime between now and as soon as possible.

15   It looks like it will probably be ready for February.

16               MS. VILLA:

17                   February.  Okay.

18               MR. BAHAM:

19                   I believe all of you got a copy.  I

20   think we e-mailed it several times with the 2019 date.

21   Just as FYI and reminder, we are moving the Board dates

22   up two weeks to the second Thursday of every month.  So

23   the first one in 2019 would be the 10th of January.  So

24   it is coinciding with this Board meeting fairly well.  I

25   think exactly five weeks, but given that there's some

0040

 1   major holidays in the middle of all of that, it's a

 2   little too early to tell if we'll have a Board meeting

 3   or not or have a project to bring before the Board.

 4   We're hoping to, but it will probably be another week or

 5   so before we know for sure if we have.  If not, it will

 6   be the February Board, and we will probably have our --

 7   we have to do our new election of officers at the first

 8   annual meeting every year, as well as if those reports

 9   are ready from the legislature and from Chaffe report.

10   We'll have a Finance Committee meeting before prior to

11   that first Board.

12               MR. ROY:

13                   Very good.

14               MS. VILLA:

15                   Then we'll have yearend audited

16   financial statements presented to the Board as well.

17               MR. BAHAM:

18                   Correct.

19               MS. VILLA:

20                   For FY '19.  It takes a little while.

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Okay.  Ms. Mitchell, the President's

23   Report.

24               MS. MITCHELL:

25                   Yes.  Good morning, everyone.  I will be
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 1   as brief as possible.  So I'll share with you a little

 2   bit about our recent project wins, and it's been a while

 3   since we've met, so I have a few from October that I'll

 4   share with you.

 5                   In October, the Governor and Ternium

 6   U.S.A. announced a $14.7-million expansion at the Port

 7   of Caddo-Bossier.  That company is retaining 150 jobs,

 8   and as a result of that project, there will be 22 direct

 9   and indirect jobs added to the community.  That is a win

10   for our foreign direct investment team.  Ternium is a

11   Latin America steel company, and we're happy to have

12   them in Caddo-Bossier.

13                   In November, we had quite a few project

14   wins that I want to share with you.  Fuji Vegetable Oil

15   broke ground in Jefferson Parish on their $70-million

16   project, which will bring to our state 87 new permanent

17   jobs and 200 construction jobs.

18                   LM Wind Power established a Technology

19   Center for the Americas in New Orleans.  This is GE

20   Renewable Energy Company, and they will be retaining 45

21   jobs and creating 100 new direct jobs at the Michoud

22   Assembly Facility.

23               Catamaran Solutions will be creating 120 new

24   jobs in Minden, a huge win for us in North Louisiana.

25   We're constantly striving to bring new jobs to North
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 1   Louisiana areas as well as rural areas where the

 2   unemployment rate tends to trend higher than the state's

 3   average unemployment.  So that was a significant win for

 4   us in Minden, Louisiana.

 5                   And Wanhua announced the selection of

 6   its site in St. James Parish for a $1.25-billion

 7   chemical project -- chemical complex.  Sorry.  That's

 8   going to create over 1,200 new direct and indirect jobs.

 9                   And then lastly, we always laud the

10   small projects as well, so I was -- I had the pleasure

11   of being on hand for the Riceland Crawfish announcement.

12   They broke ground on a $3-million expansion of their

13   facility over in Eunice, Louisiana.  The project's going

14   to retain 50 jobs and create 10 new jobs in Acadiana.

15   So that was another exciting win for us.  We celebrate

16   the large, medium and small projects.

17                   So also want to share with you from a

18   rankings perspective, Louisiana earned our ninth

19   consecutive Top 10 spot among the Best Business

20   Climates, and this ranking is conducted by Site

21   Selection Magazine, the leading industry publication for

22   site selectors and corporate executives, so we're happy

23   to remain in our Top 10 ranking from that matrix.

24                   And then also I want to share with you

25   that LED earned its certification as an accredited

0043

 1   economic development organization, the only state in the

 2   country to have that designation.  Mostly you'll see

 3   your regional organization communities competing for

 4   that, but we felt at the state level that we should

 5   compete for it, and we did win that certification.  And

 6   since then, several other states are now looking at

 7   trying to replicate what we have done.

 8                   And then I also want to share with you

 9   LED, BRAC, the Baton Rouge Area Chamber, and LSU will

10   sponsor an entrepreneurship academy which will help

11   train capital region high school students to be

12   interested in entrepreneurship and be confident business

13   owners.

14                   Lastly, Secretary Pierson asked me to

15   relay to you his gratitude and seasons greetings.

16                   Thank you.

17               MR. ROY:

18                   Thank you, Mandi.

19                   Any questions or comments?

20               (No response.)

21               MR. ROY:

22                   Very good.  Good news.

23                   Any other business?

24               MS. GUESS:

25                   No other business, but one announcement
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 1   or reminder, the ethics training that's due for all

 2   Board members, you will receive an e-mail from me

 3   probably later on today or tomorrow.  The deadline is

 4   December 31st, so that has to be completed.

 5               MS. MITCHELL:

 6                   And it's fun.

 7               MR. ROY:

 8                   Looking forward to it.

 9               MR. JACKSON:

10                   It can be done between now and the 31st?

11               MR. ROY:

12                   You can do it online?

13               MS. MITCHELL:

14                   Yes.  Yes.  Really cool, new videos.

15               MR. ROY:

16                   Okay.  Being that everyone will rush out

17   to go conduct that training, I'll entertain a motion to

18   adjourn.

19               MR. SIMPSON:

20                   So moved.

21               MS. MITCHELL:

22                   Second.

23               MR. ROY:

24                   Motion to adjourn, second.

25                   Happy holidays to everyone.  See you
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 1   soon.  Thank you.

 2               MS. DURAND:

 3                   Happy holidays, everyone.

 4               (Meeting concludes at 10:16 a.m.)
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 1   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE:

 2               I, ELICIA H. WOODWORTH, Certified Court

 3   Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, as the

 4   officer before whom this meeting for the Board of

 5   Directors of the Louisiana Economic Development

 6   Corporation, do hereby certify that this meeting was

 7   reported by me in the stenotype reporting method, was

 8   prepared and transcribed by me or under my personal

 9   direction and supervision, and is a true and correct

10   transcript to the best of my ability and understanding;

11

12               That the transcript has been prepared in

13   compliance with transcript format required by statute or

14   by rules of the board, that I have acted in compliance

15   with the prohibition on contractual relationships, as

16   defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure Article

17   1434 and in rules and advisory opinions of the board;

18               That I am not related to counsel or to the

19   parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in the

20   outcome of this matter.

21

     Dated this 9th day of January, 2019.

22
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25                                 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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			51									LN			2			15			false			15						false


			52									LN			2			16			false			16						false


			53									LN			2			17			false			17						false


			54									LN			2			18			false			18						false


			55									LN			2			19			false			19						false


			56									LN			2			20			false			20						false


			57									LN			2			21			false			21						false


			58									LN			2			22			false			22						false


			59									LN			2			23			false			23						false


			60									LN			2			24			false			24						false


			61									LN			2			25			false			25						false


			62									PG			3			0			false			page 3						false


			63									LN			3			1			false			 1               MR. ROY:						false


			64									LN			3			2			false			 2                   Call to order the Board of Directors of						false


			65									LN			3			3			false			 3   the Louisiana Economic Development Corporation.						false


			66									LN			3			4			false			 4                   Rollcall, please.						false


			67									LN			3			5			false			 5               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			68									LN			3			6			false			 6                   Mr. A.J. Roy.						false


			69									LN			3			7			false			 7               MR. ROY:						false


			70									LN			3			8			false			 8                   Here.						false


			71									LN			3			9			false			 9               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			72									LN			3			10			false			10                   Mr. Alden Andre.						false


			73									LN			3			11			false			11               (No response.)						false


			74									LN			3			12			false			12               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			75									LN			3			13			false			13                   Mr. Louis Reine.						false


			76									LN			3			14			false			14               (No response.)						false


			77									LN			3			15			false			15               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			78									LN			3			16			false			16                   Mr. Charles Jackson.						false


			79									LN			3			17			false			17               MR. JACKSON:						false


			80									LN			3			18			false			18                   Here.						false


			81									LN			3			19			false			19               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			82									LN			3			20			false			20                   Ms. Mandi Mitchell.						false


			83									LN			3			21			false			21               MS. MITCHELL:						false


			84									LN			3			22			false			22                   Here.						false


			85									LN			3			23			false			23               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			86									LN			3			24			false			24                   Mr. Cal Simpson.						false


			87									LN			3			25			false			25               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			88									PG			4			0			false			page 4						false


			89									LN			4			1			false			 1                   Here.						false


			90									LN			4			2			false			 2               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			91									LN			4			3			false			 3                   Nittin Kamath.						false


			92									LN			4			4			false			 4               MR. KAMATH:						false


			93									LN			4			5			false			 5                   Here.						false


			94									LN			4			6			false			 6               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			95									LN			4			7			false			 7                   Sue Durand.						false


			96									LN			4			8			false			 8               MS. DURAND:						false


			97									LN			4			9			false			 9                   Here.						false


			98									LN			4			10			false			10               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			99									LN			4			11			false			11                   Kimberly Johnson.						false


			100									LN			4			12			false			12               (No response.)						false


			101									LN			4			13			false			13               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			102									LN			4			14			false			14                   Todd McDonald.						false


			103									LN			4			15			false			15               (No response.)						false


			104									LN			4			16			false			16               MS. SIMMONS:						false


			105									LN			4			17			false			17                   We have a quorum.						false


			106									LN			4			18			false			18               MR. ROY:						false


			107									LN			4			19			false			19                   Thank you.  We have a quorum.  We do						false


			108									LN			4			20			false			20   have a quorum.						false


			109									LN			4			21			false			21                   And welcome, everyone, to our December						false


			110									LN			4			22			false			22   meeting.  I'll ask everyone to please silence your cell						false


			111									LN			4			23			false			23   phone.						false


			112									LN			4			24			false			24                   The first order of business is the						false


			113									LN			4			25			false			25   presentation of the minutes of the LEDC Board meeting of						false


			114									PG			5			0			false			page 5						false


			115									LN			5			1			false			 1   July 27th.						false


			116									LN			5			2			false			 2                   Motion to approve as presented; second.						false


			117									LN			5			3			false			 3                   Any discussion?						false


			118									LN			5			4			false			 4               (No response.)						false


			119									LN			5			5			false			 5               MR. ROY:						false


			120									LN			5			6			false			 6                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."						false


			121									LN			5			7			false			 7               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			122									LN			5			8			false			 8               MR. ROY:						false


			123									LN			5			9			false			 9                   All opposed, "nay."						false


			124									LN			5			10			false			10               (No response.)						false


			125									LN			5			11			false			11               MR. ROY:						false


			126									LN			5			12			false			12                   Without objection, so ordered.						false


			127									LN			5			13			false			13                   Next order of business is the Screening						false


			128									LN			5			14			false			14   Committee minutes, September the 28th.						false


			129									LN			5			15			false			15               MR. JACKSON:						false


			130									LN			5			16			false			16                   Move to accept.						false


			131									LN			5			17			false			17               MR. ROY:						false


			132									LN			5			18			false			18                   Motion to accept as presented.						false


			133									LN			5			19			false			19               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			134									LN			5			20			false			20                   Second.						false


			135									LN			5			21			false			21               MR. ROY:						false


			136									LN			5			22			false			22                   Second.						false


			137									LN			5			23			false			23                   Any discussion?						false


			138									LN			5			24			false			24               (No response.)						false


			139									LN			5			25			false			25               MR. ROY:						false


			140									PG			6			0			false			page 6						false


			141									LN			6			1			false			 1                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."						false


			142									LN			6			2			false			 2               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			143									LN			6			3			false			 3               MR. ROY:						false


			144									LN			6			4			false			 4                   All opposed, "nay."						false


			145									LN			6			5			false			 5               (No response.)						false


			146									LN			6			6			false			 6               MR. ROY:						false


			147									LN			6			7			false			 7                   Without objection.						false


			148									LN			6			8			false			 8                   All right.  House can bring us up to						false


			149									LN			6			9			false			 9   speed on two in-house approvals.						false


			150									LN			6			10			false			10                   Good morning.						false


			151									LN			6			11			false			11               MS. DOIN:						false


			152									LN			6			12			false			12                   Good morning.  Marissa Doin.  I have one						false


			153									LN			6			13			false			13   loan update for y'all today:  Vinh Loi Corporation.						false


			154									LN			6			14			false			14   It's a holding company that was established this year,						false


			155									LN			6			15			false			15   2018, created to purchase a building for an auto repair						false


			156									LN			6			16			false			16   shop.  There are two equal owners, Kenneth Duong and						false


			157									LN			6			17			false			17   Dennis Dang.						false


			158									LN			6			18			false			18                   This one was brought to us by United						false


			159									LN			6			19			false			19   Community Bank.  They requested a 75 percent LED						false


			160									LN			6			20			false			20   guaranty for a total loan of $157,500 for 60 months.						false


			161									LN			6			21			false			21                   As a result of the loan, Vinh Loi						false


			162									LN			6			22			false			22   Corporation will be creating two full-time jobs and						false


			163									LN			6			23			false			23   retaining two jobs.  The funds will be used to purchase						false


			164									LN			6			24			false			24   a second location here in Baton Rouge.  The building						false


			165									LN			6			25			false			25   will be upgraded with personal funds of the owners.  It						false


			166									PG			7			0			false			page 7						false


			167									LN			7			1			false			 1   will also be backed by real estate of the building						false


			168									LN			7			2			false			 2   valued at 210,000.						false


			169									LN			7			3			false			 3                   Sales have been continually consistent,						false


			170									LN			7			4			false			 4   and the business is profitable.  And this was approved						false


			171									LN			7			5			false			 5   by staff in October.						false


			172									LN			7			6			false			 6                   Any questions?						false


			173									LN			7			7			false			 7               (No response.)						false


			174									LN			7			8			false			 8               MR. ROY:						false


			175									LN			7			9			false			 9                   No.  Thank you.						false


			176									LN			7			10			false			10               MS. PETE:						false


			177									LN			7			11			false			11                   Good morning.  I have another loan that						false


			178									LN			7			12			false			12   was approved, CMED Corporation.						false


			179									LN			7			13			false			13                   CMED Corporation's loan guaranty						false


			180									LN			7			14			false			14   application was presented to us by Farmer's State Bank.						false


			181									LN			7			15			false			15   It was from the acquisition of an existing oil field						false


			182									LN			7			16			false			16   supply company, Production Rental & Supply, which was						false


			183									LN			7			17			false			17   found in 2003.  The company was located in Lafayette,						false


			184									LN			7			18			false			18   Louisiana.  PRS was a well-known oil field company in						false


			185									LN			7			19			false			19   its earliest days and remained open for 15 years.  PRS						false


			186									LN			7			20			false			20   targeted drilling, production and completion market.						false


			187									LN			7			21			false			21   PRS's clientele included Baker Hughes, Cardinal Services						false


			188									LN			7			22			false			22   and Pioneer Wireline.  PRS offered a full range of						false


			189									LN			7			23			false			23   safety supplies, hardware, power tools and other						false


			190									LN			7			24			false			24   supplies for the oil field industry.  The owner had						false


			191									LN			7			25			false			25   decided to sell the company due to extenuating						false


			192									PG			8			0			false			page 8						false


			193									LN			8			1			false			 1   circumstances.						false


			194									LN			8			2			false			 2                   CMED Corporation was started by Ms. Edna						false


			195									LN			8			3			false			 3   Sue Turner, David Billeaud, Herbert Turner and Coby						false


			196									LN			8			4			false			 4   Bernard.  The management team has an extensive						false


			197									LN			8			5			false			 5   background in the oil field tool supply industry.  Edna						false


			198									LN			8			6			false			 6   and Herbert Turner have been the owners and operators of						false


			199									LN			8			7			false			 7   Bulldog Services, LLC, an oil field services company in						false


			200									LN			8			8			false			 8   Lafayette, Louisiana since 2012.						false


			201									LN			8			9			false			 9                   Farmer's State Bank is structuring the						false


			202									LN			8			10			false			10   loan for a $200,000 term loan.  The loan guaranty						false


			203									LN			8			11			false			11   request was for 75 percent for three years.  The loan						false


			204									LN			8			12			false			12   was secured by the inventory and equipment and further						false


			205									LN			8			13			false			13   supported by the unlimited guarantees of the owners.						false


			206									LN			8			14			false			14                   The approval of this loan created three						false


			207									LN			8			15			false			15   new jobs and retained one job, and the standard						false


			208									LN			8			16			false			16   contingencies are in place.						false


			209									LN			8			17			false			17                   Any questions?						false


			210									LN			8			18			false			18               (No response.)						false


			211									LN			8			19			false			19               MR. ROY:						false


			212									LN			8			20			false			20                   The next order of business is the EDAP						false


			213									LN			8			21			false			21   program that's unsponsored, Champion Home Builders,						false


			214									LN			8			22			false			22   Incorporated.						false


			215									LN			8			23			false			23                   Morning, gentlemen.						false


			216									LN			8			24			false			24               MR. BIENEMY:						false


			217									LN			8			25			false			25                   Stanley Bienemy representing staff						false


			218									PG			9			0			false			page 9						false


			219									LN			9			1			false			 1   today, I have with me Mr. Tom Stoneburner representing						false


			220									LN			9			2			false			 2   Champion Home Builders, LLC (sic).  This is an						false


			221									LN			9			3			false			 3   unsponsored EDAP award for payroll credit in the amount						false


			222									LN			9			4			false			 4   requested of $500,000.  The company will be located in						false


			223									LN			9			5			false			 5   Vernon Parish located at 350 Industrial Park Road in						false


			224									LN			9			6			false			 6   Leesville, Louisiana.						false


			225									LN			9			7			false			 7                   The company is the leading manufacturer						false


			226									LN			9			8			false			 8   of manufactured homes, modular homes as well as mobile						false


			227									LN			9			9			false			 9   homes.  The job performance goals of the company has						false


			228									LN			9			10			false			10   agreed to are to maintain 200 new jobs with an annual						false


			229									LN			9			11			false			11   payroll of $8.2-million.  All of these jobs and payroll						false


			230									LN			9			12			false			12   must be remain during the life of the contract.						false


			231									LN			9			13			false			13                   Vernon Parish's unemployment rate was						false


			232									LN			9			14			false			14   6.4 percent as of September 2018, compared to the state						false


			233									LN			9			15			false			15   rate of 5 percent for the same time period.  The per						false


			234									LN			9			16			false			16   capita income for Vernon Parish in 2016 was $38,929						false


			235									LN			9			17			false			17   compared to a state per capita income of $42,298.						false


			236									LN			9			18			false			18                   The projected economic benefit to the						false


			237									LN			9			19			false			19   state is a projected state revenue of $4,229,064, minus						false


			238									LN			9			20			false			20   the $500,000 EDAP, and $3,314,064 for Quality Jobs, an						false


			239									LN			9			21			false			21   estimation of over 10 years, which would give the state						false


			240									LN			9			22			false			22   a net revenue of $415,000.						false


			241									LN			9			23			false			23                   The project will represent a						false


			242									LN			9			24			false			24   $1.3-million investment in the area by Champion, and the						false


			243									LN			9			25			false			25   company will renovate two existing buildings totaling						false


			244									PG			10			0			false			page 10						false


			245									LN			10			1			false			 1   246,000 square feet in the Leesville Northside						false


			246									LN			10			2			false			 2   Industrial park.						false


			247									LN			10			3			false			 3                   The EDAP funds will be used to purchase						false


			248									LN			10			4			false			 4   capital equipment, which can be used -- (inaudible) --,						false


			249									LN			10			5			false			 5   and the company also plans to bring 200 new direct jobs						false


			250									LN			10			6			false			 6   with an annual salary of 35,000 plus benefits.						false


			251									LN			10			7			false			 7                   Staff recommends approval of this						false


			252									LN			10			8			false			 8   project as an unsponsored EDAP payroll credit award with						false


			253									LN			10			9			false			 9   our basic contingencies put in place as well as a						false


			254									LN			10			10			false			10   first-position lien on equipment or equivalent						false


			255									LN			10			11			false			11   collateral sufficient to reasonably secure payments that						false


			256									LN			10			12			false			12   will become due.  The company has agreed to create and						false


			257									LN			10			13			false			13   maintain 200 jobs to maintain through the life of the						false


			258									LN			10			14			false			14   contract with the above-state payroll through 2028.  The						false


			259									LN			10			15			false			15   capital investment by Champion Home Builders will be						false


			260									LN			10			16			false			16   $1.3-million by December 31st, 2019.						false


			261									LN			10			17			false			17                   And we'll turn it over to Mr.						false


			262									LN			10			18			false			18   Stoneburner to speak a little bit about the project.						false


			263									LN			10			19			false			19               MR. STONEBURNER:						false


			264									LN			10			20			false			20                   All right.  My name is Tom Stoneburner.						false


			265									LN			10			21			false			21   I will be the General Manager of the operation in						false


			266									LN			10			22			false			22   Leesville, and I represent Skyline and Champion in this						false


			267									LN			10			23			false			23   matter here today.						false


			268									LN			10			24			false			24                   And just to give you a little quick						false


			269									LN			10			25			false			25   detail about the company, we do build manufactured						false


			270									PG			11			0			false			page 11						false


			271									LN			11			1			false			 1   housing, and we can build anything from a small section,						false


			272									LN			11			2			false			 2   double section up to a hotel or an apartment complex.						false


			273									LN			11			3			false			 3   We did build two motels/hotels in Leesville out by the						false


			274									LN			11			4			false			 4   gate at Fort Polk, so we do have that ability as a						false


			275									LN			11			5			false			 5   company.						false


			276									LN			11			6			false			 6                   Our beginning product we will build in						false


			277									LN			11			7			false			 7   Leesville will be the single section, doublewide section						false


			278									LN			11			8			false			 8   because that's what we do to train our employees.						false


			279									LN			11			9			false			 9                   The company has 5,500 employees and 28						false


			280									LN			11			10			false			10   factories, so this will be number 29.  Upon the						false


			281									LN			11			11			false			11   approval, I'm ready to go.  There will be a construction						false


			282									LN			11			12			false			12   phase at the factory lasting about 90 days, and in that						false


			283									LN			11			13			false			13   90 days, I'll hire 20 to 25 employees to do the						false


			284									LN			11			14			false			14   construction work to retrofit buildings so that the						false


			285									LN			11			15			false			15   construction processes can begin about April.						false


			286									LN			11			16			false			16                   I'll bring in approximately 50 employees						false


			287									LN			11			17			false			17   at the beginning, and should start hiring and training						false


			288									LN			11			18			false			18   them in late February, first of March so that we can						false


			289									LN			11			19			false			19   train them how to do the jobs.  And quality is very						false


			290									LN			11			20			false			20   important in our factories because these are homes and						false


			291									LN			11			21			false			21   we do some extreme.  I will raise production.  I will						false


			292									LN			11			22			false			22   expect employment to be somewhere near 100 by the end of						false


			293									LN			11			23			false			23   the year as we continue these training processes and						false


			294									LN			11			24			false			24   ramp up production with the target of about 200						false


			295									LN			11			25			false			25   employees, seven to eight homes a day, somewhere in four						false


			296									PG			12			0			false			page 12						false


			297									LN			12			1			false			 1   months.						false


			298									LN			12			2			false			 2                   That's kind of the synopsis.  What kind						false


			299									LN			12			3			false			 3   of restricts that from even going faster is that we have						false


			300									LN			12			4			false			 4   to develop our product, what type of houses we will						false


			301									LN			12			5			false			 5   build.  Predominantly we will sell in Louisiana.  Our						false


			302									LN			12			6			false			 6   employees will predominantly come from Louisiana, and so						false


			303									LN			12			7			false			 7   we have to do all of this training on our product and						false


			304									LN			12			8			false			 8   our distribution to retailers here in Louisiana.  So						false


			305									LN			12			9			false			 9   it's takes about 24 months to get that going.						false


			306									LN			12			10			false			10                   Any questions for me?						false


			307									LN			12			11			false			11               MR. ROY:						false


			308									LN			12			12			false			12                   Questions or comments?						false


			309									LN			12			13			false			13               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			310									LN			12			14			false			14                   Have y'all started any process of						false


			311									LN			12			15			false			15   looking -- that seems like a significant amount of						false


			312									LN			12			16			false			16   employees in a relatively small community to find that						false


			313									LN			12			17			false			17   many employees.  Do you foresee that being a problem?						false


			314									LN			12			18			false			18               MR. STONEBURNER:						false


			315									LN			12			19			false			19                   I don't.  I have been on the job for						false


			316									LN			12			20			false			20   about two weeks, and I did -- I'm moving here from						false


			317									LN			12			21			false			21   Nashville, Tennessee, so I've kind of met a lot of						false


			318									LN			12			22			false			22   people, talked with a lot of people.  We did have a job						false


			319									LN			12			23			false			23   fair in Leesville about a year ago to check the						false


			320									LN			12			24			false			24   employment numbers, and it looked very positive.  And						false


			321									LN			12			25			false			25   from around town, I am overwhelmed by people wanting to						false


			322									PG			13			0			false			page 13						false


			323									LN			13			1			false			 1   come to work.						false


			324									LN			13			2			false			 2               MR. JACKSON:						false


			325									LN			13			3			false			 3                   What's the nature of the equipment that						false


			326									LN			13			4			false			 4   we're liening against?  Is it built-in for a special						false


			327									LN			13			5			false			 5   purpose or being acquired?						false


			328									LN			13			6			false			 6               MR. BIENEMY:						false


			329									LN			13			7			false			 7                   It will be special purpose, but it won't						false


			330									LN			13			8			false			 8   be industry specific, but it will be large capital						false


			331									LN			13			9			false			 9   equipment.  I looked on the equipment list, and there						false


			332									LN			13			10			false			10   was some large welding materials, large moving materials						false


			333									LN			13			11			false			11   for the modular pieces of it.  So while it will be						false


			334									LN			13			12			false			12   specialized, it won't be industry specific.  It can be						false


			335									LN			13			13			false			13   used for multiple industries.						false


			336									LN			13			14			false			14               MR. JACKSON:						false


			337									LN			13			15			false			15                   Can you design for the local market?						false


			338									LN			13			16			false			16   You don't use the same sorts of designs that are being						false


			339									LN			13			17			false			17   manufactured elsewhere?						false


			340									LN			13			18			false			18               MR. STONEBURNER:						false


			341									LN			13			19			false			19                   We will take a look at those designs						false


			342									LN			13			20			false			20   elsewhere and make sure that they do fit into this						false


			343									LN			13			21			false			21   market.  The housing market is regional, but we will						false


			344									LN			13			22			false			22   start with what we have on the board already and fit						false


			345									LN			13			23			false			23   that.						false


			346									LN			13			24			false			24               MR. JACKSON:						false


			347									LN			13			25			false			25                   And I guess if you're selling primarily						false


			348									PG			14			0			false			page 14						false


			349									LN			14			1			false			 1   in Louisiana, you're comfortable that you've got a						false


			350									LN			14			2			false			 2   product that -- or you'll be able to design a product						false


			351									LN			14			3			false			 3   that will be fairly effective?						false


			352									LN			14			4			false			 4               MR. STONEBURNER:						false


			353									LN			14			5			false			 5                   Prior to coming to Leesville, I was						false


			354									LN			14			6			false			 6   running the factory in Dresden, Tennessee selling into						false


			355									LN			14			7			false			 7   Louisiana, so I'm pretty familiar with what product						false


			356									LN			14			8			false			 8   sells here.  I just have to come down and not copy what						false


			357									LN			14			9			false			 9   another factory has been doing and look at price points						false


			358									LN			14			10			false			10   and factory-owned in high volume in Louisiana.						false


			359									LN			14			11			false			11               MR. JACKSON:						false


			360									LN			14			12			false			12                   Okay.  Thank you.						false


			361									LN			14			13			false			13               MR. ROY:						false


			362									LN			14			14			false			14                   Other questions?						false


			363									LN			14			15			false			15               MS. MITCHELL:						false


			364									LN			14			16			false			16                   Actually, my question had been asked, so						false


			365									LN			14			17			false			17   at the appropriate time, I would like to move favorable.						false


			366									LN			14			18			false			18   This project will bring 200 jobs to a region in our						false


			367									LN			14			19			false			19   state that has, for a number of years, carried an						false


			368									LN			14			20			false			20   unemployment rate that has been higher than the state's						false


			369									LN			14			21			false			21   average unemployment rates, so these are sorely-needed						false


			370									LN			14			22			false			22   jobs in the western portion of our state.						false


			371									LN			14			23			false			23                   And I'd like to commend the work that						false


			372									LN			14			24			false			24   has been done on this project to present to the Board						false


			373									LN			14			25			false			25   not just the benefit to the company, but the benefit to						false


			374									PG			15			0			false			page 15						false


			375									LN			15			1			false			 1   the state through the economic impact of the project						false


			376									LN			15			2			false			 2   along with the jobs for this community.						false


			377									LN			15			3			false			 3                   So at the appropriate time, I would like						false


			378									LN			15			4			false			 4   to move favorable.						false


			379									LN			15			5			false			 5               MR. ROY:						false


			380									LN			15			6			false			 6                   All right.  We'll take that as a motion						false


			381									LN			15			7			false			 7   now.						false


			382									LN			15			8			false			 8               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			383									LN			15			9			false			 9                   Move to accept.						false


			384									LN			15			10			false			10               MR. ROY:						false


			385									LN			15			11			false			11                   Second?						false


			386									LN			15			12			false			12               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			387									LN			15			13			false			13                   Second.						false


			388									LN			15			14			false			14               MR. ROY:						false


			389									LN			15			15			false			15                   Second.						false


			390									LN			15			16			false			16                   Any other discussion?						false


			391									LN			15			17			false			17               (No response.)						false


			392									LN			15			18			false			18               MR. ROY:						false


			393									LN			15			19			false			19                   Hearing none, all in favor, "aye."						false


			394									LN			15			20			false			20               (Several members respond "aye.")						false


			395									LN			15			21			false			21               MR. ROY:						false


			396									LN			15			22			false			22                   All opposed, "nay."						false


			397									LN			15			23			false			23               (No response.)						false


			398									LN			15			24			false			24               MR. ROY:						false


			399									LN			15			25			false			25                   Without objection.						false


			400									PG			16			0			false			page 16						false


			401									LN			16			1			false			 1                   Congratulations.  Please keep us posted,						false


			402									LN			16			2			false			 2   and we wish you the best.						false


			403									LN			16			3			false			 3               MR. STONEBURNER:						false


			404									LN			16			4			false			 4                   Thank you, sir.						false


			405									LN			16			5			false			 5               MR. ROY:						false


			406									LN			16			6			false			 6                   Any comments from the public along those						false


			407									LN			16			7			false			 7   lines?						false


			408									LN			16			8			false			 8               (No response.)						false


			409									LN			16			9			false			 9               MR. ROY:						false


			410									LN			16			10			false			10                   Thank you.						false


			411									LN			16			11			false			11                   We have a modification of an EDAP award,						false


			412									LN			16			12			false			12   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies, Inc.						false


			413									LN			16			13			false			13               MR. BIENEMY:						false


			414									LN			16			14			false			14                   Good morning again.  Stanley Bienemy						false


			415									LN			16			15			false			15   representing staff today.  We have an EDAP modification						false


			416									LN			16			16			false			16   request to increase the approved and unsponsored EDAP in						false


			417									LN			16			17			false			17   the amount of 250,000 that was previously approved						false


			418									LN			16			18			false			18   about.						false


			419									LN			16			19			false			19                   Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies was						false


			420									LN			16			20			false			20   originally approved on June 22nd, 2018 by this Board,						false


			421									LN			16			21			false			21   and the company was to be located at the Michoud						false


			422									LN			16			22			false			22   Assembly Facility in Orleans Parish.  Unfortunately,						false


			423									LN			16			23			false			23   NASA and Advanced Sinter were unable to come to terms						false


			424									LN			16			24			false			24   which would meet both companies' requirements and						false


			425									LN			16			25			false			25   timelines.  Advanced Sinter was proactive and found an						false


			426									PG			17			0			false			page 17						false


			427									LN			17			1			false			 1   alternate site located in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.						false


			428									LN			17			2			false			 2                   Nothing materially changed about the						false


			429									LN			17			3			false			 3   project except the location and the timeline for the job						false


			430									LN			17			4			false			 4   requirements due to the delay because of the site.						false


			431									LN			17			5			false			 5                   Job performance goals that the company						false


			432									LN			17			6			false			 6   has agreed to will stay the same.  They will maintain 15						false


			433									LN			17			7			false			 7   new jobs with a -- create and maintain 15 new jobs and						false


			434									LN			17			8			false			 8   an annual payroll of 800,000 with a two percent annual						false


			435									LN			17			9			false			 9   increase.  All of these jobs and payroll must be						false


			436									LN			17			10			false			10   maintained during the life of the contract.						false


			437									LN			17			11			false			11                   St. Tammany Parish's unemployment rate						false


			438									LN			17			12			false			12   as of September 2018 was 4.4 percent to the state's						false


			439									LN			17			13			false			13   average of 5 percent for the same time period.  The per						false


			440									LN			17			14			false			14   capita income for St. Tammany Parish for 2016 was						false


			441									LN			17			15			false			15   $52,109 as compared to the state per capita income for						false


			442									LN			17			16			false			16   the same time period of 42,298.						false


			443									LN			17			17			false			17                   The projected economic benefits to the						false


			444									LN			17			18			false			18   state with the new site would be a state revenue of						false


			445									LN			17			19			false			19   $1,324,000 minus the $250,000 for the EDAP and $515,000						false


			446									LN			17			20			false			20   for Quality Jobs, which would give us an approximate						false


			447									LN			17			21			false			21   state revenue of $588,000.						false


			448									LN			17			22			false			22                   Staff recommends approval of the project						false


			449									LN			17			23			false			23   modifications for the unsponsored EDAP for payroll						false


			450									LN			17			24			false			24   credit with our basic contingencies that we normally						false


			451									LN			17			25			false			25   have with a two percent annual increase of payroll, also						false


			452									PG			18			0			false			page 18						false


			453									LN			18			1			false			 1   keeping the original approval date of June 22nd, 2018,						false


			454									LN			18			2			false			 2   while moving the start performance period to 2019.						false


			455									LN			18			3			false			 3                   The total capital investment by Advanced						false


			456									LN			18			4			false			 4   Sinter will be $5-million by December 31st, 2019.						false


			457									LN			18			5			false			 5                   And I'll turn it over to Rudolph Von						false


			458									LN			18			6			false			 6   Liechtenstein, and he will give you a little bit more						false


			459									LN			18			7			false			 7   detail about where the project is now.						false


			460									LN			18			8			false			 8               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:						false


			461									LN			18			9			false			 9                   We'd like to start by thanking you once						false


			462									LN			18			10			false			10   again for this application.  So this is an exciting						false


			463									LN			18			11			false			11   moment for us, for Sinter Metal Technologies, which was						false


			464									LN			18			12			false			12   founded more than 50 years ago.  It's, as its name might						false


			465									LN			18			13			false			13   imply, a leading global player in the sinter technology.						false


			466									LN			18			14			false			14   Put simply, that's called technology.						false


			467									LN			18			15			false			15                   For the love of technologies and						false


			468									LN			18			16			false			16   solutions and applications that are proprietary, and						false


			469									LN			18			17			false			17   having Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies leads to						false


			470									LN			18			18			false			18   better serve the U.S. market out of Louisiana is, of						false


			471									LN			18			19			false			19   course, a good choice.  We see from the tests that we						false


			472									LN			18			20			false			20   studied, this project is effectively creating a secure,						false


			473									LN			18			21			false			21   dual-sourcing for high-tech applications soft and						false


			474									LN			18			22			false			22   critical to our products.						false


			475									LN			18			23			false			23                   This project is also very exciting						false


			476									LN			18			24			false			24   because of its nature.  The application (inaudible) of						false


			477									LN			18			25			false			25   the spectrum.  Additionally, Advanced Sinter Metal						false


			478									PG			19			0			false			page 19						false


			479									LN			19			1			false			 1   Technologies' Slidell facility is to be highly						false


			480									LN			19			2			false			 2   automated, among other things, high-tech, automated						false


			481									LN			19			3			false			 3   quality control systems.						false


			482									LN			19			4			false			 4                   I'd like, once again, to emphasize that						false


			483									LN			19			5			false			 5   despite the location and the schedule being pushed back,						false


			484									LN			19			6			false			 6   the project essentially remains the same.  The plans,						false


			485									LN			19			7			false			 7   stakeholders and commitments remain unchanged.						false


			486									LN			19			8			false			 8                   We'd also like the share some of the						false


			487									LN			19			9			false			 9   recent and latest developments.  So at the beginning of						false


			488									LN			19			10			false			10   November, Advanced Sinter Metal Technologies secured the						false


			489									LN			19			11			false			11   location of production in Slidell in St. Tammany Parish.						false


			490									LN			19			12			false			12   As of now, most of the pieces of equipment required to						false


			491									LN			19			13			false			13   start industry production of our metal parts have been						false


			492									LN			19			14			false			14   assembled in that facility.  Advanced Sinter Metal						false


			493									LN			19			15			false			15   Technology plans to start production in the end of						false


			494									LN			19			16			false			16   January 2019, at which time you are kindly and cordially						false


			495									LN			19			17			false			17   invited.						false


			496									LN			19			18			false			18                   And as a final point, we entered into an						false


			497									LN			19			19			false			19   extending with LSU through a support letter for a						false


			498									LN			19			20			false			20   project to further confirmation to begin manufacturing						false


			499									LN			19			21			false			21   in Louisiana.  The project, with your involvement, will						false


			500									LN			19			22			false			22   come to fruition.  So, again, this is an exciting						false


			501									LN			19			23			false			23   project for us, and despite some unforeseen change, we						false


			502									LN			19			24			false			24   are grateful for the hospitality and the warm welcome						false


			503									LN			19			25			false			25   Louisiana has given to this project.						false


			504									PG			20			0			false			page 20						false


			505									LN			20			1			false			 1                   Thank you.  If you have any questions.						false


			506									LN			20			2			false			 2               MR. ROY:						false


			507									LN			20			3			false			 3                   Questions or comments?						false


			508									LN			20			4			false			 4               MS. MITCHELL:						false


			509									LN			20			5			false			 5                   No questions for me.  I just wanted to						false


			510									LN			20			6			false			 6   confirm my understanding that the only change is the						false


			511									LN			20			7			false			 7   start time of the project and the actual physical						false


			512									LN			20			8			false			 8   location.  Everything else that had been approved in						false


			513									LN			20			9			false			 9   June remains the same?						false


			514									LN			20			10			false			10               MR. BIENEMY:						false


			515									LN			20			11			false			11                   That is correct.						false


			516									LN			20			12			false			12               MS. MITCHELL:						false


			517									LN			20			13			false			13                   Okay.						false


			518									LN			20			14			false			14               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			519									LN			20			15			false			15                   And at this point, you're saying that						false


			520									LN			20			16			false			16   there's actually equipment that has already been						false


			521									LN			20			17			false			17   installed and the work has started?  I guess when we						false


			522									LN			20			18			false			18   approved it in June, that work had not yet started.						false


			523									LN			20			19			false			19                   I guess I kind of had the understanding						false


			524									LN			20			20			false			20   in June that you were already set to go in at the						false


			525									LN			20			21			false			21   Michoud Facility.  That seemed kind of surprising to see						false


			526									LN			20			22			false			22   that that changed.						false


			527									LN			20			23			false			23               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:						false


			528									LN			20			24			false			24                   It was indeed.  At the end of it, we was						false


			529									LN			20			25			false			25   unable to get commitment in a timely manner, and while						false


			530									PG			21			0			false			page 21						false


			531									LN			21			1			false			 1   for all projected, Michoud costs and energy costs, and						false


			532									LN			21			2			false			 2   so at the end, we're lucky enough to find a beautiful						false


			533									LN			21			3			false			 3   spot in Slidell to move forward in a timely manner.						false


			534									LN			21			4			false			 4               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			535									LN			21			5			false			 5                   Okay.  So you're -- how far is the						false


			536									LN			21			6			false			 6   schedule slipped then?						false


			537									LN			21			7			false			 7               MR. VON LIECHTENSTEIN:						false


			538									LN			21			8			false			 8                   So we had a new official announcement at						false


			539									LN			21			9			false			 9   the Michoud the first of November last year, and the						false


			540									LN			21			10			false			10   understanding at the time was we could move in first						false


			541									LN			21			11			false			11   quarter of 2018.  Well, right now, production we think						false


			542									LN			21			12			false			12   will start at the end of January 2019, so it slipped one						false


			543									LN			21			13			false			13   year.						false


			544									LN			21			14			false			14               MR. BIENEMY:						false


			545									LN			21			15			false			15                   Due to one year of their time						false


			546									LN			21			16			false			16   commitments sliding back, we've had to move back the job						false


			547									LN			21			17			false			17   marker.						false


			548									LN			21			18			false			18               MR. SIMPSON:						false


			549									LN			21			19			false			19                   Okay.						false


			550									LN			21			20			false			20               MR. ROY:						false


			551									LN			21			21			false			21                   Any other questions or comments?						false


			552									LN			21			22			false			22               (No response.)						false


			553									LN			21			23			false			23               MR. JACKSON:						false


			554									LN			21			24			false			24                   Move to approve.						false


			555									LN			21			25			false			25               MR. ROY:						false


			556									PG			22			0			false			page 22						false


			557									LN			22			1			false			 1                   Motion for approval as presented.						false


			558									LN			22			2			false			 2               MS. MITCHELL:						false


			559									LN			22			3			false			 3                   Second.						false


			560									LN			22			4			false			 4               MR. ROY:						false


			561									LN			22			5			false			 5                   Second.						false


			562									LN			22			6			false			 6                   Any other discussion?						false


			563									LN			22			7			false			 7               (No response.)						false


			564									LN			22			8			false			 8               MR. ROY:						false


			565									LN			22			9			false			 9                   Any comments from the public?						false


			566									LN			22			10			false			10               (No response.)						false


			567									LN			22			11			false			11               MR. ROY:						false


			568									LN			22			12			false			12                   Hearing none all in favor, "aye."						false
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